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UniCredit firmly believes that to truly understand real life, we must directly experience
it. That way we are more prepared to find sustainable solutions while the world’s
needs and values constantly change.

For us, helping customers fulfil the basic necessities of modern life is just as important
as offering the very best financial and banking products.

This means providing a complete range of services to support families and businesses,
fully aware that responding to their needs builds a sustainable future for everyone.

Our products begin with real human insights that help us accompany customers
throughout their lives. Because life is full of ups and downs, but it is also full of many
other things, like buying a home, getting married, having children and sending them
to university, etc.

It's @ 360-dedree approach that we call Real Life Banking.

Over the following pages, our aim is not just to present data and numbers about our
Group’s performance. We also want to share stories that show how we have helped
people realize their dreams and supported the communities that host our branches.

Because the drive to build a better future is what keeps people going.

And supporting people keeps us going too.

Welcome to

Life is full of ups and downs. 92 Bank Austria
We're there for both, wernber of ¥ UNiCredit



Bank Austria at a glance

Income statement figures

(€ million) 2015 20141 +/-
Net interest 3,386 3,511 -3.6%
Dividend income and other income from equity investments 535 496 +7.8%
Net fees and commissions 1,439 1,364 +5.5%
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 420 487 -13.8%
Operating income 5,875 5,982 -1.8%
Operating costs -3,076 -3,136 -1.9%
Operating profit 2,800 2,846 -1.6%
Net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments -1,007 -782 +28.8%
Net operating profit 1,792 2,064 -13.2%
Profit before tax 1,621 1,733 -6.5%
Net profit attributable to the owners of the parent company 1,325 1,329 -0.3%

Volume figures

(€ million) 31 DEC. 2015 31 DEC. 20141 +/-
Total assets 193,639 189,118 +2.4%
Loans and receivables with customers 116,377 113,732 +2.3%
Direct funding (deposits from customers and debt securities in issue) 139,148 132,285 +5.2%
Equity 15,394 14,925 +3.1%
Risk-weighted assets (overall)2 128,259 130,351 -1.6%

Key performance indicators

2015 20141
Return on equity after tax (ROE) ") 9.4% 9.7%
Cost/income ratio 52.3% 52.4%
Cost of risk (provisioning charge/avg. lending volume) 1) 0.86% 0.68%
Loans and receivables with customers/direct funding 83.6% 86.0%
Leverage ratio3) 5.8% 5.6%
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio4) 11.0% 10.3%
Tier 1 capital ratio4 11.0% 10.3%
Total capital ratio 14.9% 13.4%
Staff
31 DEC. 2015 31 DEC. 20141 +/-
Bank Austria (full-time equivalent) 35,534 36,192 —658
Central Eastern Europe business segment 24,143 24,124 19
Ukraine (held for sale) 4,343 4,830 —487
Austria (other business segments) 7,048 7,237 -190
Offices
31 DEC. 2015 31 DEC. 2014 +~
Bank Austria 1,510 1,664 —154
Central Eastern Europe business segment 1,065 1,130 —-65
Ukraine (held for sale) 240 291 -51
Austria (other business segments) 205 243 -38

1) Comparative figures for 2014 recast to reflect the current structure and methodology. / 2) Regulatory risk-weighted assets, not adjusted. / 3) Leverage ratio under Basel 3 based
on the current status of transitional arrangements. / 4) Capital ratios based on all risks under Basel 3 (transitional) and IFRSs.
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Let’s talk about financial ad /wheri
Imagine you are in the middle of a ski holiday. Everythingis ~  Thanks to SmartBanking in Austria, it's possible to bring the
beautiful and the conditions are just right. You feel likeyou ~ branch to you. Whether at home with your laptop or on the 4o
don’t have a single worry in the world. But suddenly a thought "__yvith your mobile phone, SmartBanking enables you to manage
comes along to disturb your peace: Did you forget to settle W your finances in the most convenient way for you.
financial business last week? o -
\‘R:lationship managers will give advice quickly and conveniently,
That’s exactly what happened to Nico. During his first romantic by any possible method you want, from SMS to video chat. So
holiday with Emma, he realized that this little banking detail "nowgnsv?ers that you need on every possible financial topic,
was driving him crazy, and spoiling the fun. And he thought to from taking out a loan to explaining your banking transactions,
himself: “You know what would be really useful right now? are at your fingertips.
A bank manader | can call or, even better, text.” .
That means we can help you save for your holiday, and save

No sooner said than done. your holiday.
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Introduction

“The digitalisation of business

meets customer demand and
will also enable us to become

more efficient in our internal
procedures.??

WilLibald Cernko
CEO UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG

Ladies and Gentlemen,

In this Annual Report, Bank Austria is again
presenting good results: net profit for 2015 was

€ 1.3 billion, a respectable performance matching
the previous year's level. Net operating profit came
close to €2 billion in 2015, excluding the exceptional
charge which resulted from the mandatory
canversion of Croatian foreign currency loans. From
a sustainability perspective, it is important to note
that this operating performance was both stable and
well-balanced in regional terms: net operating profit
generated by the three Austrian customer business
segments was €679 million, exactly repeating the
previous year’s figure. Operating performance from
customer business in CEE was €1,742 million,
matching the level of the previous year (+0.3%
without the Croatia-related effect and without the
CEE Corporate Center, which was affected by the
workout of exposures in Ukrsotsbank), despite the
impact of geopolitical crises. The strong operating
performance helped absorb the balance of non-
operating items, which was a substantial net
expense of about €500 million.

This stable performance is a remarkable achievement
for a number of reasons:

The European banking sector, and also Bank Austria’s
financial statements for 2015, still reflect the long-
term repercussions of the financial market crisis. Since
the setback experienced several years ago, Western
Europe’s economic momentum has not shown any
sustained strength, with demand for classic banking
products consequently also languishing. While
monetary policy measures initially stabilised the
situation, it is currently characterised by debt, excess
liquidity and interest rates that are close to zero. All
interest-bearing products, on the assets side and on the
liabilities side, have been moving towards a zero rate
over the past few years. Earning adequate margins on
such business is hardly possible any longer, especially
in Austria’s competitive environment. The net interest
performance reflected in Bank Austria’s income
statement has been declining for years, and our banks
in advanced CEE economies have also experienced the
impact of this trend in the past two years.

6 2015 Annual Report - Bank Austria



Post-Lehman crisis management has also had another
direct impact on the banking sector: measures which

were initially reasonable to restore confidence have in the
meantime turned inta a burden which is becoming heavier.
Detailed regulation is making business more expensive and
significantly limiting business patential. Retroactive ad-hoc
intervention is no londer an exception (Hundary in 2013,
Croatia in 2015). Moreover, the bank levy in Austria is the
highest throughout Europe, imposed as a tax on assets.
Shortfalls of income which result from the regulatory
environment, and also bank levies, are making it difficult
to earn the cost of capital under significantly tighter capital
adequacy rules, and other compliance costs. This statement
is not mere lobbyism but a clear-cut diagnosis. However,
Bank Austria can be proud of having coped without state
aid during the difficult years.

The pressure for higher profitability has become stronger
from year to year in all parts of Europe. We have
responded to these developments in time, by performing
relentless analyses and taking far-reaching measures. In
line with Group strategy, we focused on our core business
and our core markets, in divisional and regional terms.

In Central and Eastern Europe we terminated those
international exposures which looked promising before
the onset of the financial market crisis. Following the
withdrawal from Kazakhstan and the full write-off of
goodwill in 2013, our bank in Ukraine has been classified
as held for sale, with a strong negative impact on profits
for 2015. This strategy was an important factor for
excellent results achieved in 2015 by the banks in EU
member states, such as the Czech Republic and Slovakia,
and in the growth market of Turkey.

UniCredit Bank Austria AG’s sub-holding company
functions are to be transferred to the UniCredit parent
company in the course of 2016. This is in line with
the logic of @ major international group of companies.
Bank Austria will in the future focus on business in its
home market proper, with the more favourable risk
profile and the lower capital absorption of a mature
market, while continuing to benefit from integration
in one of the largest banking networks.

According to a strategic principle of responsible business
management, each customer business segment
should be profitable, without any cross-subsidies, if the
universal bank is to last. In Austria we therefore started
three years ago to make structural adjustments in the
retail banking segment by introducing SmartBanking
and redesigning branch-based sales activities; in
contrast to retail banking, business with corporate
customers and with large international customers as
well as the expanding Private Banking operations are
very successful. Everyone can easily see in their own

daily lives, however, that all-embracing digitalisation
has been progressing faster than expected. In view

of these rapid changes in customer preferences, we
further accelerated our efforts in 2015. Our package of
measures will enable us to establish the multi-channel
bank faster — with digital channels for basic customer
needs and personal advisory services for occasions
involving major decisions, and with services available
around the clock as well as larger but fewer branches.
With the complete switch from a provision-based
pension system to a defined-contribution scheme, we
are putting all employees on the same footing while
achieving further cost reductions. We are thereby
removing a legacy dating from the time when savings
banks were established as public-law entities.

Let me conclude by emphasising two points: first, the
adjustments made in Austria will enhance, not limit,
our performance capabilities for our customers. The
digitalisation of business meets customer demand
and will also enable us to move faster and become
more efficient in our internal procedures. Once retail
banking operations return to profitability, everyone
will see that we have taken the right action. Second,
our custamers in international business benefit from
our services as UniCredit Bank Austria, @ member of
one of Europe’s ten largest banking groups and part
of one of the 30 dglobal systemically important banks.
Given our 150-year history in Central and Eastern
Europe, transferring the sub-holding company function
for operations in CEE may hurt, but we are now sailing
under a single flag, on an equal footing with all the
other 17 banks in Europe.

Customer numbers confirm that our customers
welcome, or at least accept, the adjustments we are
making. | would like to take this opportunity to thank
them. And | also thank the employees of Bank Austria,
who — despite significant changes and capacity
adjustments — demonstrate a strong commitment to
serving their customers day by day.

Yours sincerely,

Willibald Cernko
CEO of Bank Austria
29 February 2016

Bank Austria - 2015 Annual Report 7



Introduction

é¢8ank Austria is the leading
universal bank in Austria
and — backed by UniCredit, a
large, systemically important
European bank — the top

international banking partner??

Erich Hampel
CHAIRMAN OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
OF UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG

Ladies and Gentlemen,

In early March 2016 the Supervisory Board approved the
2015 financial statements of UniCredit Bank Austria AG,
which were thereby adopted. A net profit of €1.3 billion
and a return on equity of 9.4% (ROE after tax) are satis-
factory results in view of low economic growth and low
interest rates, the difficult situation in several markets
including Russia, and above all special burdens in
connection with the withdrawal from Ukraine.

These results are based on a stable operating
performance. In Central and Eastern Europe, very

good results achieved by our UniCredit banks in
neighbouring EU member states, and also in South-
East Europe and the Western Balkan countries, offset a
weaker performance in other countries; in this context
one should note the resilience and profitability of

our Russian banking subsidiary in the second year of
recession.

Operating profit in Austria also held up well, with
unfavourable trends in interest rates and mardins being
balanced by fee-based business. The virtual absence of

a provisioning requirement supported results in Austria.
Corporate banking, business with large international
customers and Private Banking operations — areas in
which Bank Austria holds undisputed market leadership
positions — showed favourable developments although
the general environment continued to be characterised
by restraint. The bank benefited especially from its
market position in international services, as part of the
UniCredit Group network and based on the investments
made. Retail banking operations recorded lively new
business as demand picked up. However, the cost/
income ratio in this segment must be significantly
improved. Initial steps to carry out reforms have been
taken and further steps will follow in the coming years.

The Supervisary Board intensively discussed Bank Austria’s
multi-year plan and approved it at the beginning

of March. In line with the medium-term strategy of
UniCredit Group as a whole, reducing complexity is

an essential objective defined in the plan. To simplify
gavernance, the equity investments held by UniCredit
Bank Austria AG, in its capacity as sub-holding

8 2015 Annual Report - Bank Austria



company, in UniCredit banks in Central and Eastern
Europe (CEE) are intended to be transferred directly to
UniCredit S.p.A., the Group’s holding company, in 2016.

From early on, the commitment to Central and Eastern
Europe was a key feature of Bank Austria’s predecessor
banks. When Eastern Europe opened itself to the West,
we moved quickly to transform the representative
office in Hungary, which had been set up in 1975,

into the first banking subsidiary in CEE. This was
followed by expansion into the Czech Republic, Poland,
Slovenia, Russia and Slovakia, in most cases through
the establishment of our own banking subsidiaries.
Ahead of EU enlargement, both Bank Austria and
UniCredit made further moves to expand in CEE. With
the combination of banking netwarks in Central and
Eastern Europe in 2005/2006/2007, we became by far
the largest bank in CEE. Bank Austria can be proud of
having pursued internationalisation from the very start,
leading its CEE banks to impressive maturity.

The elimination of the sub-holding company function
has recently been initiated in response to changes in
the overall environment, including tighter regulation
and fiscal conditions. Most impartantly, however,
cross-regional banking supervision and numerous
reforms mark decisive steps towards a European
banking union. This means that a one-tier structure
enhances the ability of such a large banking group
to manage liquidity and capital. And the higher level
of risk in young markets and the related capital
requirements can also be better managed by the
Group’s ultimate parent company. This change in
the shareholding structure will not in any way affect
business opportunities available to our customers
and to ourselves. There are plans to continue performing
impartant management functions out of Vienna. Our
relationship managers and experts will continue to
maintain close links and contact with the banking
subsidiaries in CEE.

After transferring the CEE business, Bank Austria
will remain an important bank within UniCredit,
with total assets of about €100 billion, one of the
highest market shares of banks within the Group, and
1.7 million customers. The focus on the home market
has favourable effects on risk intensity, the cost of
capital, the liquidity reserve and funding costs.

Bank Austria remains the leading universal bank in
Austria and the top international banking partner —
backed by UniCredit, a large, systemically important

European bank with total assets of €860 billion and
shareholders’ equity of €50 billion.

Further adjustments are required to strengthen

Bank Austria’s market position. The tardets which have
been set for Austria in the multi-year plan and are to
be achieved by 2018 include an increase in return on
allocated capital (RoAC) to about 13% while the cost/
income ratio is to be reduced to 60%. The measures

to enhance efficiency relate to the bank as a whole, in
particular with regard to process chains and information
technology. Digitalisation requires the bank to leave
the beaten track, primarily in retail banking, with the
transformation of the branch netwaork to create the
optimum mix of digital and analogue service offerings.
A further adjustment of staff numbers will be inevitable
and will be carried out in a socially responsible

manner, as has always been done in Bank Austria. But
the Supervisary Board has affirmed the fundamental
decision in favour of a universal banking business model
as sound retail banking operations are the basis for
continued long-term success in business with corporate
custormers and high net worth individuals, and in
Corporate & Investment Banking — as an important
source of funding and as a guarantor of a broad
customer base as well as an important driver of the
brand presence in the market.

| would like to thank our customers for long-standing
successful cooperation. My thanks also go to Bank Austria’s
Management Board and employees for their professional
approach, their readiness to embrace change and their
strong personal commitment. Backed by UniCredit,

and with its expertise in international business and

the courage to take timely action, Bank Austria is well
positioned to meet the challenges ahead.

Yours sincerely,

Erich Hampel
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
UniCredit Bank Austria AG

Bank Austria - 2015 Annual Report 9
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Corporate Profile

Highlights

UniCredit is a leading European commercial bank operating in 17 countries with
more than 144,000 employees, over 7,900 branches and with an international
network spanning about 50 markets.
UniCredit benefits from a strong European identity, extensive international presence

and broad customer base.

Qur strategic position in Western and Eastern Europe gives us one of the region's

highest market shares.

Qver

& 144,000

EMPLOYEES!

Qver

w 7900

BRANCHES?

Revenues by Business Lines™ (%)

® Commercial Banking Italy
© CEE Division
@ CB

@ Commercial Banking
Germany

© Poland
® Commercial Banking Austria
® Asset Management

Asset Gathering

Financial Highlights (€ million)
Operating income

22,405

Net profit

1,694

Shareholders’ equity

50,087

Total assets

860,433

Common Equity Tier 1 ratio

10.73%

Revenues by Region™ (%)

® ltaly
49 © Germany
7 ® CEE
® Austria
® Poland

16
19

1) Data as at 31 December 2015. FTE = full-time equivalent: number of employees counted for the rate of presence. Figures include all employees of Yapi Kredi Group (Turkey).
2) Data as at 31 December 2015. Figures include all branches of Yapi Kredi Group (Turkey).
*) CET1 transitional pro-forma for 2015 scrip dividend of 12 €cents per share assuming 75%—25% shares-cash acceptance.

**) Data as at 31 December 2015.
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Where we are

Austria

Azerbaijan

Bosnia
and Herzegovina

Bulgaria
Croatia
Czech Republic
Germany
Hundgary
Italy
Poland
Romania
Russia
Serbia
Slovakia
Slovenia
Turkey
Ukraine

Market Shares? (%)

Austria

Bosnia and Herzegovina | - -

Bulgaria

Croatia | -7 .6

Czech Republic

Germany [} 25
Hungary

8.2

85

148

taly | 125

3) Market shares in terms of total loans as at 31 December 2015.

Source: Company data, national central banks.

20.3

Market Shares? (%)

Poland 114
Romania _ 8.8

Russia 1.8

Serbia [ G 105
Slovakia 84
Slovenia [N 7.2

Turkey 10.2

Ukraine [ 5.5

Total loans definition includes corporate, household, self-employed, non-profit institutions serving household, insurance companies, pension funds, other financial intermediaries, local government,

central government. For Poland and Romania central government is not included.
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Corporate Profile

Industrial Plan

UniCredit intends to reaffirm its standing as a rock-solid European commercial bank, backed by
a well-diversified presence in 17 countries and an international network that spans 50 markets.

Due to the challenging and rapidly changing business environment, UniCredit has decided

to accelerate its transformation by adopting a stratedgy that aims to achieve growth and
development through increased efficiency and simplification. This is the direction outlined
in the Strategic Plan approved by UniCredit’s Board of Directors on 11 November 2015.

First and foremost, UniCredit will be a bank that is efficient, integrated and easy to deal with.
The Group is working to reduce its cost base and streamline its structure. This will enable it to be
maore responsive and more effectively allocate resources by leveraging its pan-European profile.

UniCredit will also invest in the growth of traditional businesses by providing credit to the real
economy, and in areas with significant growth potential such as corporate & investment banking,
asset management, asset gathering and, in general, in Central and Eastern Europe.

The result will be a rock-solid, profitable bank that is able to generate sustainable value, maintain
a strong balance sheet and transform challenges into opportunities.

Accelerating implementation of our Stratedic Plan
Mn{uropean corporate and retail bank
Mffective and innovative
d more integrated

Q@ y . ., .
n digital, high growth, capital light businesses

le profitability and organic capital generation

2018 TARGET

CET1 RATIO AT 12.6 % POTENTIAL UPSIDE

RoTE PRE DIVIDEND FROM DISCONTINUITY

TARGET 11% DISTRIBUTION ACTIONS
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Digital Stratedy

Digitalisation is essential to successfully addressing ongoing changes and sustained growth.

UniCredit has decided to invest heavily in this area to make the Group highly competitive
in the new digital arena.

The first order of work will be to accelerate the Group’s digital transformation. This will improve
the speed and quality of our services, as well as the experience of our customers. We will do this
with a full commitment to creating an excellent and engaging digital user experience through
better accessibility and instant feedback from our clients. In short, providing a complete, multi-
channel service.

Second, we will develop our future digital business model, which will be based on a new

IT infrastructure. This model will meet customers’ basic needs, reducing our cost-to-serve.
The buddybank initiative will be key to the success of this endeavour. A clear discontinuity from
traditional banking, buddybank will absorb less capital and be accessible solely via mobile
devices, with customer service available 24/7.

Digital strategy to accelerate retail multichannel transformation
Supported by €1.2 bn investments (2016-2018)
ACCELERATE THE DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION

b =l EA S e 202 Continue transaction migration to remote channels
Right-sizing footprint with new and flexible formats

SIMPLIFICATION AND Digitalise and simplify back-end processes

cllelelEss ) e n e b Fully-digitalised document management
Credit Revolution programme supporting real time automatic

credit decisions
INCREASE SALES Extend end-to-end

BUILD A FUTURE DIGITAL BUSINESS MODEL

A NEW DIGITAL New cheaper IT infrastructure to respond to customers’ basic
CORE BANKING SYSTEM purchase behaviour, reducing cost-to-serve

First molecular bank offering a pure mobile customer
experience with a 24/7 live-caring concierge
Plug-and-play platform to facilitate entry into new markets
Implementation started, launch early 2017

Bank Austria - 2015 Annual Report 15



Corporate Profile

Bank Austria in UniCredit —
UniCredit in Austria

Bank Austria is a leading bank in Austria, with a long
tradition in the country, and today a member of UniCredit,
a major European bank. Bank Austria offers its customers
the professional services of a leading bank in Austria and
access to a unique cross-regional network, based on the
stature of a larde international bank.

UniCredit Bank Austria AG is the parent company of
the Bank Austria group of credit institutions. It is an
Austrian credit institution within the meaning of Sec-
tion 1 (1) of the Austrian Banking Act and operates
in Austria under the Bank Austria brand name.
UniCredit Bank Austria AG comprises the Austrian
business operations including subsidiaries and other
companies which support Bank Austria’s core banking
activities. As at 31 December 2015, Bank Austria also
held and managed the equity investments in thirteen
banking subsidiaries in Central and Eastern Europe
(CEE). Bank Austria’s consolidation perimeter includes
400 consolidated companies; investments in 37 com-
panies are accounted for using the equity method.

UniCredit S.p.A., Rome/Milan, a listed company,
owns 99.996 % of UniCredit Bank Austria AG; the
remaining shares are 10,000 registered shares held
by “Privatstiftung zur Verwaltung von Anteilsrechten”
(a private foundation under Austrian law) and 115
registered shares held by “Betriebsratsfonds” (the
Employees’ Council Fund), which carry special rights.
The Bank Austria companies are consolidated in
UniCredit’s consolidated financial statements. UniCredit
is a listed company and one of the systemically
important major European banks, with total assets of
€860 billion and shareholders’ equity of €50 billion.

@® In Austria, Bank Austria holds market shares of
14.8% in lending business and 14.3% in deposits. One
in six private customers (17 %) — and within this total,
one in four (23 %) high net worth individuals and one in
six students (17 %) — maintains an account relationship
with Bank Austria. The bank is market leader in the
Austrian corporate banking sector, with 16.8 % of total
lending volume and 23.5% of total deposits, and it also
holds the leading position in business with public

sector entities (in a comparison of individual
universal banks, not sectors of the banking industry).
Bank Austria’s services are used by 17 % of small
businesses, 36 % of medium-sized companies (with
a turnover between € 3 million and €50 million)
and 69 % of larde corporate customers (with an
annual turnover of over €50 million). Moreover,
Pioneer Investments Austria (PIA), an affiliated company,
is among the three largest investment management
companies in Austria, with €17.4 billion in fund
assets accounting for 10.7 % of the total volume

of mutual funds in Austria; tagether with Schoeller-
bank’s investment management company and
Real Invest, the leading Austrian real estate fund,
and the other investment funds of Bank Austria,
total volume amounts to €25.3 billion, giving a
market share of 14.9 %.

Bank Austria maintains almaost 300 offices through-
out Austria, of which 205 are branches in a narrower
sense (separately accessible to customers and count-
ed only once per location). Of the total number,

174 branches serve private customers only. Branches
in 55 of these locations also provide advisory services
for small businesses and independent professionals.
In the three customer business segments, 4,887
employees (full-time equivalents — FTEs) serve
about 1.7 million customers. Together with the
employees of the Corporate Center, staff numbers

at Bank Austria without CEE totalled 7,048 (FTEs).

If the employees of affiliated companies in Austria —
mainly companies supporting the core banking
business (including UBIS), and the Pioneer Invest-
ments investment management company — are
included in the calculation, UniCredit employs
9,254 FTEs in Austria (all data as at year-end 2015).

@ The UniCredit banks in Central and Eastern
Europe (CEE) together are market leader in CEE by
a wide margin. This outstanding position is the result
of a long development which started more than

20 years ago with the establishment of subsidiaries
and continued as the CEE network grew into ever
larger dimensions. These were the three major inte-
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gration processes: the intedration of the CEE subsidi-
aries of the two predecessor institutions Bank Austria
and Creditanstalt; the inclusion of the CEE network of
HypaoVereinsbank (now UniCredit Bank, Munich) at
the beginning of 2000; and finally, as a decisive step,
the transfer of UniCredit’s CEE banks to Bank Austria,
which thereby became a sub-holding company with
effect from the beginning of 2007. The Polish market
is fully divisionalised and under direct management
responsibility of UniCredit; Poland is among the four
core countries (Italy, Austria, Germany, Poland).

The financial market crisis of 2008 and subsequent
recession led to new strategic priorities in the entire
banking sector. Years of strang external growth in
international banking business were followed by a
phase of consolidation. With a view to optimising
the portfolio, UniCredit concentrated resources on
advanced CEE countries and those growth markets
which offered calculable overall conditions and pursued
convergence with the EU. In April 2013 we therefore
sold ATF Bank, Kazakhstan, a bank acquired at the
end of 2007. Since the fourth quarter of 2013,

Ukrsotsbank, a bank in Ukraine, has been classified
as a disposal group held for sale and reflected in
the income statement as a discontinued operation.
The withdrawal from Ukraine is to be completed in
2016. In Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania, our activities
have been limited to leasing business since the
middle of 2014. The integration of our Czech and
Slovak banking subsidiaries to form UniCredit Bank
Czech Republic and Slovakia a.s. was an organisa-
tional measure to unlock synergies; this move has
proved to be very successful.

Developments in 2015 confirmed the strategy:
profit growth in the young EU member states, con-
tinued expansion in the growth market of Turkey
and our Russian banking subsidiary’s focus on inter-
national corporate banking made it possible to
achieve stable results which also offset the negative
impact of non-operating items.

At the end of 2015, Bank Austria’s CEE perimeter
encompassed banking operations in 13 countries.
Added to this were representative offices in three

Business volume and operating performance in Austria and CEE

.ss volume

Austria

(€ billion)

CEE

Turkey and

Ukraine

Corporate
Center

Averade loans to customers
Averagde loans to customers

ing performance
omer business

Austria

(€ million)

CEE

3,816

Cost of
risk:
1.40%

Operating income

*) Net operating profit = operating profit less net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments. Costs as a percentage of operating income (cost/income ratio), CEE
without Turkey. Net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments as a percentage of average loans to customers (cost of risk). CEE adjusted for one-off effect from
mandatory conversion of foreign currency loans in Croatia (+€205 million in net write-downs of loans).
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other countries. Overall, 47,463 employees (includ-
ing Turkey at 100% and Ukraine, without Poland)
are active in head offices and branches in 2,348
locations.

® In 2015, the two large sectors of Bank Austria’s
operations were more or less equal in terms of lend-
ing volume and deposits. Differences between the
mature market and the banks in CEE markets can be
seen mainly in growth rates, progressive monetisation
and market penetration, and in different levels of risk
intensity and capital absorption.

Average loans to customers in Austria were € 59 billion.
Although growth has been moderate (+2.5% p.a. in
the past two years), volume is still high, with recently
significant rollover. Deposits totalled €55 billion, grow-
ing more strongly (+5.5% p.a.) than loans. Together
with debt securities in issue, direct funding in Aus-
tria totalled €81 billion and was much larger than
in CEE. While risk-weighted assets (RWAs) in Aus-
tria, at € 36 billion in 2015 (without the Corporate
Center: €29 billion), were substantially lower than
lending volume, RWAs in CEE were significantly
higher than total loans. Growth of lending volume

in CEE in euro terms (+0.6% p.a. in the past two
years) was not much stronger than in Austria;
within CEE, credit expansion in Central Europe
slowed on account of excess liquidity and efforts

to reduce debt while the slowdown in growth of
loans in the other countries was mainly due to
currency depreciation. On the other hand, deposits
rose strongly (+9.2% p.a.) and thus funding from
local sources improved in all countries. RWAs in
CEE were £97 billion, more than two and a half
times the figure for Austria.

The overall picture is confirmed by income state-
ment items reflecting operating activities, which
may be taken as indicators of long-term develop-
ments. Operating income from Austrian customer
business (€2,114 million) showed a downward
trend, in parallel with reductions of interest rates to
a level close to zero, and margin compression was
only partly offset by improvements the other
income components. Most recently, operating costs
absorbed 67.8 % of income (cost/income ratio),
mainly due to heavy costs associated with the sales
network in retail banking. On this basis, operating
profit amounted to €681 million. Net write-downs
of loans and provisions for guarantees and commit-
ments had hardly any negative impact on the

income statement. Net operating profit thus came
to €679 million, more or less matching operating
profit, and was equal to 2.34% of average risk-
weighted assets.

Operating income in the CEE Division was € 3,816
million in 2015, substantially higher than in Austrian
customer business. The fact that revenue was
stagnant compared with the previous year is mainly
explained by shortfalls in Russia, and partly also by
interest rate convergence in highly integrated CEE
countries, where margins started to decline from a
high level. Nevertheless, at 42.5%, the cost/income
ratio in CEE is disproportionately low (without Turkey,
which is accounted for using the equity method and
is thus reflected in operating income but not in
operating costs). Operating profit in CEE was
€2,341 million in 2015. The charge for net write-
downs of loans came to €1,017 million, 140 basis
points of average loans to customers (adjusted for
the one-off effect resulting from mandatory conversion
of Croatian foreign currency loans). Net operating
profit, at €1,529 million in adjusted terms, was
slightly lower than the previous year’s level and
was equal to 1.58 % of average risk-weighted assets.

@ If the exceptional charge of €205 million result-
ing from retroactive mandatory conversion of Croa-
tian foreign currency loans is excluded from the cal-
culation, net operating profit of Bank Austria as a
whole for 2015 came close to €2 billion. Given the
difficult situation in Ukraine, as in 2014, the loss
recorded by Ukrsotsbank and related write-downs
absorbed a portion of the profits denerated in 2015
by the CEE Division and by Bank Austria as a whole.
Substantial provisions for restructuring in Austria
(see the next page) were financed by the release of
a provision. Net profit for 2015 was €1.3 billion,
almost exactly matching the previous year'’s level.
This gives a return on equity (ROE after tax) of
9.4%.

At the end of 2015, Bank Austria’s total assets were
€194 billion. This moderate growth of 2.4 % was driven
by customer business, with loans increasing by 2.3 %
and deposits expanding by 7.9 %. Direct funding (cus-
tomer deposits and debt securities in issue) rose by
5.2% and covered lending volume to the extent of
120%. Equity amounted to €15.4 billion, an increase
of 3.1% over year-end 2014, although the movement
in the foreign currency translation reserve and the
change relating to pension provisions had negative
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impacts. At the end of 2015 the requlatory total capital
ratio was 14.9% and the Commmon Equity Tier 1 capital
ratio stood at 11.0 %.

@ The European banking sector is experiencing grow-
ing pressure to adjust to various developments:
first, demand for classic banking products is weak
and margin erosion continues on account of eco-
nomic stagnation, excess liquidity and interest rates
that are close to zero. Second, tighter regulation,
detailed requirements and fiscal levies are limiting
banks’ room for manoeuvre. Third, the process of dig-
italisation is rapidly changing customer preferences
while fintechs, near-banks and non-banks are posing
a serious challenge to the banking industry. To meet
this challenge in a timely manner, UniCredit Group
has initiated far-reaching adjustment measures
under its current multi-year plan.

=> The shareholding interests in CEE companies
are to be transferred to the Group’s Milan-based
holding company in 2016. This move will reduce
complexity in the Group as Bank Austria will no
longer perform sub-holding company functions. In
the current requlatory environment, on the way
towards the banking union, the one-tier structure will
enhance UniCredit’s ability to manage liquidity and
capital. Regardless of where the equity investments
in the CEE banking subsidiaries are held, our interna-
tionally active corporate customers will benefit from
service continuity. The full expertise and customary
high advisory service quality will continue to be
available to them.

After the transfer of the CEE network, Bank Austria
will have total assets of about €100 billion, thus
remaining the largest individual institution in the
Austrian banking market, with all the advantages
offered to customers by an international, global
systemically important banking group. The con-
centration on the home market will significantly
improve Bank Austria’s risk profile: risk intensity,
capital absorption, the cost of capital, liquidity
reserve and funding casts will then be those of a
mature universal bank operating in core Europe.

=> The Management Board has set targets for the
implementation of the current multi-year plan:
return on allocated capital in Austria is to be in-
creased to about 13% by 2018, and the cost/income
ratio is to be improved to 60%. With the Bank Austria
Reloaded project we are accelerating the transfor-

mation, launched two vears ado, into a modern uni-
versal bank taking advantage of digitalisation in
banking business. The measures include streamlining
sales operations, the product range and process
chains across the bank. A focus is on structural
adjustments in retail banking operations, which
report a loss due to large costs, the erosion of oper-
ating income and changes in consumer preferences.
Branches and the digital marketplace, with the
Online-Shop and the online branch, will be given
equal weight as channels for product sales and advis-
ory services in the medium term. Banking services
for daily needs are already available around the clock
at our service branches, in self-service zones and via
OnlineBanking. High-quality advisory services are
delivered online via SmartBanking on weekdays from
8 a.m. to 8 p.m., wherever our customers need such
services. The target number of 120 branches refers
to fewer but significantly larger and better branches.
We will further expand our online branch, which cur-
rently has about 250 employees. The product range
offered in the Online-Shop will soon be extended to
include consumer loans and investment advisory
services. At the same time we will continue to offer
madern advisory services centres with extended
opening hours and direct involvement of specialists.
At the beginning of 2016 we significantly expanded
our advisory services for business customers, which are
now offered in 55 locations. In addition to initiatives
on the revenue side, annual payroll costs and other
administrative expenses will be reduced by about
€300 million in the period to 2018. Cost savings in
back-office activities will be achieved through a
reduction of IT and settlement costs, a higher degree
of standardisation, the establishment of end-to-end
processes and streamlining of the product rande.

A further cost reduction will result from the full switch
from a provision-based pension system to a defined-
contribution pension scheme.

Major structural changes will make 2016 one of the
key years in Bank Austria’s long history. We will firm-
ly position Bank Austria as an Austrian and interna-
tional universal bank with sustainable profitability,
based on lean sales operations geared to the needs
of our private customers, a well-balanced mix of
online and offline products and services, and with
fast transaction settlement, further expansion of our
successful Private Banking activities, and an initiative
for internationalisation and growth aimed at the
campanies and large customers we serve within the
UniCredit network.
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Chairman of the
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Carlo Vivaldi

Deputy Chairman of the
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CEE BANKING DIVISION

Stakeholder and Service
Intelligence CEE Division

CEE Legal
CEECIB
CEE Retail

Bosnia and Herzegovina:
UniCredit Bank d.d.
UniCredit Bank a.d. Banja Luka

Bulgaria: UniCredit Bulbank AD
Croatia: Zagrebacka banka d.d.

Czech Republic: UniCredit Bank
Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s.

Hungary: UniCredit Bank Hungary Zrt.
Romania: UniCredit Tiriac Bank S.A.
Russia: AO UniCredit Bank

Serbia: UniCredit Bank Serbia JSC
Slovenia: UniCredit Banka Slovenija 0.0.
Turkey: Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S.
Ukraine: PJSC Ukrsotsbank

Baltic States: SIA “UniCredit Leasing”
Macedonia: BA Representative Office

Montenegro: BA Representative Office

UniCredit Turn-Around
Management CEE GmbH

Mirko Bianchi

Member of the
Management Board
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Controlling Austria

Strategy, Planning &
Controlling CEE

CEE Stratedic Analysis

Shareholding & Business
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Tax
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Member of the
Management Board

CRO RISK MANAGEMENT
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Management & Control
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CIB Credit Operations
CEE Credit Operations

Private Individuals & SME
Credit Operations

Market & Liquidity Risk
Austria & CEE
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UniCredit Academy Austria

Human Resources
Management & Strategy

Human Resources Expertise
Center & Operations

CEE Human Resources
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Member of the
Management Board

COMMERCIAL BANKING
DIVISION

CB Strategic Management
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A word of thanks to our employees
The commitment and professionalism of our employees help achieve a good performance in day-to-day customer business and

are decisive for the implementation of our plans. The Management Board thanks all employees of Bank Austria for their dedication,
and for their readiness to support and further promote changes in the banking business.

Dieter Hengl

Member of the
Management Board

CORPORATE & INVESTMENT
BANKING DIVISION

Multinational Corporates
Financial Institutions Group
Financing & Advisory
Global Transaction Banking

Global Transaction Banking
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Products & Advisory

PB Sales Network
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Just made
a mess!

Let’s talk about ei}eryday challenges.

Who said that everyday life is boring? It certainly isn’t if customers to not only do their banking

you’re dealing with a rascal like Agata. Around her, simple access to their public administratio

things like getting to school on time, managing the family

buddet or walking the puppy become far more complicated. This means you can check your acco

Adata’s mom and dad — and countless other parents — face funds online in the same place where

more complications every day. Clearly they could use our help. school grades, see an electronic copy
certificate or order your European Healt

For Adgata’s parents we have designed dozens of new services
that simplify life. Take, for example, what Zagrebacka Now with a bit more time for cleaning up her me
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The banking environment in 2015

The turnaround which the European banking sector has been hoping for
failed to materialise in 2015: while the moderate upturn in the euro area
was subsequently more robust, as expected, adverse global economic
factors and new uncertainties prevented banking business from gaining
momentum. This is for example reflected in lending volume, which has
been stagnating for years and has most recently been 2% below the level
Seen seven years ago, with corporate loans down by 11 %. Monetary policy
measures taken by the ECB to stimulate economic growth were once again
unprecedented in the reporting period: surplus liquidity, intervention and
interest rate declines pushed benchmarks down to zero or even less,
a development which in the past two years also affected interest rates of
countries in the euro area periphery and of corporate bond issues as well
as bank interest rates. The combined effect of all these developments
impacted the earnings situation of the banking sector, with earnings
squeezed to the extent that it was increasingly difficult to earn the cost of
capital and the expenditure for compliance with regulatory requirements,
prudential supervision and direct controls. Banks therefore resorted to
defensive measures, continued to discard non-core business and started
to restructure core business components with low profitability. When
adjusting their business models and internal processes, banks took into
account the trend in digitalisation in business with customers and in
back office operations.

Global economy: globalisation in transition

@ In 2015 the European environment was shaped by strong global
economic trends. As the year progressed, the dynamic of economic
growth shifted back to the industrial countries from the emerging econo-
mies, almost suggestive of a pause in globalisation. In 2015, the real
growth of emerging markets is likely to have fallen to 4 %; without China,
which accounts for two-thirds of this group of countries, real growth is
expected to have contracted to less than 2%. China was one of the rea-
sons for the loss of momentum, with the country reducing overcapacity in
heavy industry and in the construction industry, suggesting a transition to a
higher, service-intensive level of development where companies are closer
to consumers and their needs. This has resulted in short-term changes in
demand for, and the structure of, imports in China. These changes were
one important reason for the global decline in commaodity prices (—13.3%
without oil), which was not compatible with the growth model of other
emerging markets. This impacted global trade, which is expected to have
expanded by about 3% in 2015 after contracting from time to time during
the year. The significant decline in oil prices was a further disruptive fac-
tor. Starting from a level of US$112.6/bl at the end of June 2014, the price
of oil fell to US$45.19/bl in a first step until the middle of January 2015.
After recovering brigfly to US$69.63/bl (6 May 2015), it resumed its down-
ward trend. This is explained by a fight for market share with the advent of
new market players (US, Libya, Irag, soon also Iran) and the export pressure
experienced by Russia. The decision by OPEC in December to abandon its
production ceiling led to a sharp fall in oil prices to US$37.2/bl by the end
of 2015; in January 2016 oil prices continued to decline to under US$28/bl.
While the pronounced movement in oil prices supported growth in
industrial countries, it also curbed global demand for imports. 2015 again
showed that the global economy is a closely interlinked closed system.

Monetary policies and financial markets

Financial markets were in a very good mood until spring 2015, with
peaks seen in stock markets and lows in bond markets. These devel-
opments were followed by a volatile downward trend in the summer
and autumn, which further intensified until the editorial close of this
report. The main factors responsible for these movements were diver-
gent monetary policies in the USA and the euro area; geopolitical cri-
ses and the repercussions of the sharp decline in oil prices for Russia;
and most importantly, doubts emanating from Chinese financial
markets and economic policy about the patterns which had stabilised
the global economy in previous years.

@ Monetary policy: It was several times that the Federal Reserve post-
poned the overdue change in monetary policy after a 7-year period of very
low interest rates. When key interest rates were finally raised to 0.25%—
0.50% towards the end of 2015 — on 16 December — this move had
already been priced in and markets only expected a moderate and steady
increase in interest rates for the future. Long-term expectations of inflation
in the euro area, on the other hand, fell to a level significantly below 2%
(reaching a low of 1.6 %). On 22 January 2015, the European Central
Bank (ECB) decided to extend its asset-backed securities purchase
programme (ABSPP) and its covered bond purchase programme (CBPP)
launched in autumn 2014 by adding a new public sector purchase
programme (PSPP). Monthly purchases of euro area government bonds
totalling €60 billion will be made (in proportion to the ECB’s capital key)
until inflation is close to the target rate of just below 2 %; such purchases
will be carried out until at least September 2016. In view of the renewed
decline in inflation rates (and expectations), the ECB extended the mini-
mum period of its programmes by half a year. At the same time, the
deposit facility interest rate was lowered by 10 basis points to —0.30 %.
Securities held for monetary policy purposes were increased in a year-end
2015/2014 comparison, by €586 billion to €803 billion. The volume of
securities purchases added to the banking sector’s excess liquidity held in
Eurosystem accounts (year-end 2015: €662 billion, after €260 hillion a
year earlier) rather than feeding through to the economic cycle. The volume
of conventional refinancing transactions declined slightly, by €71 billion to
€559 hillion, in the course of the year. Most recently, the outstanding vol-
ume of Targeted LTROs, which are linked to actual lending, amounted to
€470 billion; the main participants were banks from Italy, France and
Spain, with Austria also participating in these operations.

@ Interest rates: The announcement of quantitative easing (QE) and
initial interventions on 9 March 2015 had significant impacts on expec-
tations and thus on the pattern of interest rates and exchange rates.
Money market rates, which are closely related to central bank interest
rates, fell to levels which were significantly below zero (year-end 2015;
repo rate —0.29 %, unsecured overnight swap/3-month —0.24 %, inter-
bank 3-month Euribor —0.13 %). Benchmark yields fell below zero
step by step up to the eight-year maturity. Historically low levels were
seen on 17 April 2015, with the yield on the ten-year benchmark bond
at 0.049% p.a. (intraday). However, when euro inflation rates in April
and May returned to positive territory after negative figures in four periods,
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and when good quarterly growth figures were published, this dispelled . . L .
fears of deflation, and expectations and the yield curve abruptly reversed | Economic growth n the euro area picking up in a weak
(“flash crash”). The ten-year benchmark yield rose to 1.059% in two environment Purchasing Managers’ Index (PMI) / Manufacturing

major moves by 10 June 2015. Subsequently, yields declined again in PMI euro area 54
the later part of the year to about 0.60 % (year-end 2015: 0.64 %), PMI global Lo 53
reflecting the influence of purchases by the ECB and a slowdown in eco- ?éiﬁ 52
nomic growth. Intervention and the search for yield pick-up (and also on M 51
account of a gradual improvement in fundamentals) pushed bond yields |~ ========semmamatiia s O-(g========="= S0 growtn ] 50
of peripheral countries in the euro area lower. In a situation of balanced thresholld 49
portfolios and direct bond purchases, interest rates on mortgage bonds 48
(vield of 0.07 % p.a. on 5 to 7-year covered bonds in Germany, 0.23 % 47
in the euro area) and corporate bonds (yield of 0.62% on AA rated 5 to Uncertainty in stock markets Year-end 2013=100

7-year bonds and 1.58 % on BBB rated bonds) subsequently also 195 Euro area

declined. In the course of the year, there were increasing signs that
intervention caused deviations from the fundamentals (allocation distor-
tions) and — in technical terms — a market liquidity shortage.

120
115
110

Interest rates in credit markets in the euro area also continued to fall: by 105

0.28 percentage points to 1.87 % (from 6.30% in the middle of 2008) for 100

loans to non-financial companies across all maturities, with stronger 9% Emerging markets
declines seen in the peripheral countries (—0.44 percentage points to 85
2.24%) but also in core countries (—0.17 percentage points to 1.68 %). Exchange rate movements

Appreciation/depreciation of currencies against the euro (2014 indices = 100)
@ Exchange rates: The exchange rate effect was the main transmission “ US dollar 130
channel of the new monetary policy during the announcement and imple- TN _ ~ |10
mentation phase of securities purchases. As a consequence of divergence ndex gf_f@'ﬂg_ﬁ%?@fﬂgp@dl o 1;8
in monetary policies, the US dollar appreciated against the euro by 15.7 % 9%
from year-end 2014 to the annual high of 1.0456 USD/EUR on 16 March ‘ 80
2015, subsequently declining again in response to disappointing US 70
growth rates and the turnaround in German yields. After the interest rate For comparison: crude ol price (without sca\e‘)'\\, 60
reversal in the USA and a further easing of monetary policy by the ECB, - i 50
the US dollar closed the year at 1.0887 USD/EUR, thus appreciating by ﬁ”gg‘g; ECB: unconventional monetary policy ~
11.5%. In effective (trade-weighted) terms, the euro depreciated by 6.2 % Hgg ECB: open marhet operations
from year-end 2014 to the end of 2015, reflecting the strength of the 1,000 including securities purchases
British pound and the Swiss franc as well as the weakness of the Russian | 900
rouble, the Turkish lira and the yuan. After the Swiss National Bank sur- 288 Excess liquidity
prisingly ended the Swiss franc’s link to the euro on 15 January 2015 500
(inter\gantic/)n IimitS: 1.20), the cur;ency kr)]rieﬂy overshot tc()j ablevel of :potz? ggg ECB kev interest rate 658
0.85 CHF/EUR. Subsequently, the exchange rate moved between 1. 200 J_\_\ 0.20
and 1.08 CHF/EUR; the year-end 2015 level (1.0835 CHF/EUR) reflected | 1) i = oo
appreciation of 11.0%. The Russian rouble experienced dramatic :12 88 "’M :8;8
exchange rate movements exactly in line with crude oil prices: from a level | _3g0 3'm|°nth EONIA swap N 030
of 45.97 RUB/EUR at the end of June 2014 it weakened to 81.53 RUB/ Yields up from low levels
EUR at the end of January 2015; after recovering to about 55 RUB/EUR 10-year benchmark yields
in the second quarter of 2015, the exchange rate declined to 83.60 RUB/ 3.00
EUR (24 August), reaching 81.23 RUB/EUR at the end of 2015. When the | 2.50 US Treasuries
price of Brent fell to below 28 US$/bl after the turn of the year, the rouble 2.00 N
exchange rate reached a new low of 89.55 RUB/EUR. The introduction of 150
a new exchange rate regime of the Chinese renminbi yuan, coupled 100

with currency depreciation (peaking at —3.7 % against the US dollar on

11 and 12 August), was related to the partial liberalisation of capital 0.50 Euro benchmark
movements ahead of the currency’s inclusion as the fifth currency in the 0.0 2014 | 2015 |

IMF Special Drawing Rights basket. Despite substantial interventions, the
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yuan continued to depreciate in the period to the end of 2015 (-4.5%
against the US dollar since the end of 2014), reversing latent appreciation
in the past years.

@ Stock markets advanced to reach new highs in spring 2015, being
the only investment category promising to generate a return, driven by
global excess liquidity. The EuroSTOXX index showed a particularly
strong recovery, additionally supported by favourable depreciation
effects and commodity price movements as well as hopes for economic
growth (annual high: 392.98 on 13 April/+22.8 %). The renewed esca-
lation of the Greek crisis (see timeline column) put a damper on the bull
market as early as May and June. In August and September, however,
world stock markets saw a sharp increase in volatility and a bout of risk
aversion. This was triggered by the plunge in prices on the Shanghai-
Shenzhen stock market (down by 27 % within a few days, 40% below
the annual high reached in the middle of June), where debt-financed
investments had created a huge speculative bubble (with a two-and-a-
half-fold increase from the middle of 2014 to the middle of 2015). Con-
cern about a general slump in growth led to massive capital outflows
from China. Emerging market indices followed suit, as did stock markets
in industrial countries. A year-on-year comparison shows hardly any
changes in the MSCI world index and Wall Street in local currency.
Emerging markets, on the other hand, were affected by heavy losses,
reflecting their overall economic performance (MSCI/EM —4.2%; of
which BRIC: —8.0%). While the EuroSTOXX was the only index that still
recorded a year-on-year gain (+8.0%), it lost this head start in the first
few days of 2016. At year-end 2015 the price of gold was 1,061 USD/
0z, down by 10.4% on a year earlier (but remaining unchanged in euro
terms, —0.1 %), not to speak of commodity price indices (S&P/GS spot:
—27.7% in US dollar terms, Rogers euro hedged: —26.3 %).

This means that investment performance in 2015 was primarily
driven by exchange rate effects resulting from translation of the US
dollar and other currencies into the weaker euro (e.g. MSCI/USA:
+1.3%/+12.9%, MSCI World: +1.8% in local currency/+9.3%
in euro terms). Bond markets did not permit any significant capital
growth, either, even at higher risk levels (corporate bonds BBB:
—2.3%; iBoxx covered bonds Europe: +0.0%, iBoxx euro government
bonds: +1.9%; CEE government bonds EMBI Europe: +4.5%).

Economic developments in our core markets

The moderate upturn in the euro area was more pronounced and more
widely spread in 2015. After a good start to the year, uncertainty around
the middle of 2015, including the escalation of the Greek debt crisis,
subsequently doubts about global economic growth and finally new geo-
political tensions led to a slowdown in economic growth in summer. But
growth became self-sustaining thanks to a number of external factors and
the impetus from monetary policy. Real GDP growth averaged 1.5% in
2015 (up from 0.9% in 2014). According to an estimate of our economists,
the strongest impetus to growth came from the euro’s weaker external
value (+0.7 percentage points), while falling oil prices supported growth
with +0.4 percentage points. Budget policy (almost +0.2 percentage

points) was moderately expansive and interest rate declines stimulated
growth by about +0.2 percentage points. According to this analysis,
weak foreign trade (—0.5 percentage points) eroded most of the growth
achieved by the depreciation of the euro. This is reflected in the growth
rates of specific economic components: growth was clearly driven by
domestic demand (+1.7 %), primarily private consumption, supported by
a livelier labour market, gains in purchasing power (inflation rate, energy
prices/wage increases) and the improved financial position. Investments
also increased but lost momentum in the second half of the year due to
the factors mentioned above that created uncertainty. Exports are likely
to have overcome the summer lull, expanding by about 5% in 2015,
with imports growing a little more strongly.

The favourable development was more broadly based: Spain was easily
the top performer with growth of 3.2 % (industrial output + 3.1 %), while
the French economy also experienced a strong economic revival (+1.2%,
industrial output +1.5%), although from a low initial level. Even Italy’s
economy again boasted positive growth (+ 1.4 %, industrial output
+1.0%) after three years of recession. In Germany, the economy grew
by 1.7 % (industrial output +0.7 %), corresponding to the euro area
average. In this context one should note that the German economy
expanded at a similar rate in 2014 (+1.4 %, industrial output + 1.5 %)
and that booming domestic demand was covered by growing imports.

@ While the Austrian economy achieved GDP growth of 0.9% in 2015
and thereby grew stronger than in the previous year (+0.4 %), it was still
clearly lagging behind the euro area. After a strong start to the year, eco-
nomic growth was impacted by uncertainty and pessimism that is difficult
to explain. Moreover, Austria lost export market share to advancing CEE
competitors. The most prominent feature which distinguished Austria from
its neighbouring countries was the sluggish growth of domestic demand
(+0.7%). Sentiment was further impacted by the situation on the labour
market: the increase in the labour supply, primarily through migrants from
other EU countries, pushed up unemployment from 5.6 % to0 5.8%
(according to Eurostat criteria) despite an almost 1% rise in employed per-
sons (almost entirely through part-time jobs). Disposable income hardly
rose although wages and employment increased. Purchasing power was
moreover lost through inflation: the inflation rate fell from 1.7 % in 2014
to an average 0.9% in 2015, while consumer prices in the euro area
remained unchanged. With the low energy prices exerting downward pres-
sure, inflation was driven by the services segment. The savings ratio rose
slightly, to 8.0%. On this basis, private consumption grew by 0.4 %,
making only a negligible contribution to economic growth as a whole.

Investment activity remained weak (+0.3 %), strengthening slightly in the
latter part of the year as export demand picked up. Given substantial
capacity levels there was little demand for expansion investments, which
were largely limited to equipment (+ 2.6 %); investment in construction
declined again (—1.6%). Exports of goods and services grew at a rela-
tively modest 1.8 % in real terms. Supported by the weaker euro, mer-
chandise exports grew somewhat faster in the second half of 2015, with
exports to third countries, especially the US and Switzerland, outperforming
those to EU countries, while the Russia/Ukraine crisis and economic
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performance in emerging economies continued to impact foreign trade.
Net exports made a slight contribution to economic growth as weak
domestic demand limited import growth (+1.6 %).

Lending volume picked up slightly in the latter part of 2015 and at the
end of 2015 it was 1.7 % up on the level of the previous year. Demand for
corporate loans stagnated in 2015 given the lacklustre investment climate.
The total volume of corporate loans was down by 0.1 % on the level at the
end of 2014, with short-term loans decreasing. Loans to private house-
holds increased by 3.9 %, with consumer loans declining by 3.5% while
demand for housing loans recovered significantly in the course of the year
(+7.0%). Deposits with banks rose by 4.0 % despite low interest rates.
Deposits by companies increased by 3.5% (mainly on account of sight
deposits) and deposits by private households by 2.8 % (mainly savings
deposits). While the volume of mutual funds reflected erratic price move-
ments on stock markets, net inflows of funds were positive. At the end of
2015 mutual fund volume was 3.7 % higher than in the previous year.
Sales of bank bonds continued to decline significantly in 2015.

@ 2015 was a good year for most countries in Central and Eastern
Europe (CEE)! although the boom years that preceded the financial
market crisis are now a thing of the past. Overall (excluding Russia,
which is a special case), the countries in our perimeter of operations!
achieved real economic growth of 3.3% in 2015 after 2.5% in 2014.

» The CEE countries which are members of the EU (CE+RO-+BG,
without Croatia) are currently in a stage of the business cycle which is
characterised by strong economic growth, with an external impetus trig-
gering a strong revival of domestic demand: these countries benefited
to a disproportionately large extent from more robust growth in Western
Europe through their highly integrated, competitive key industries, whose
capacity has been expanded until most recently. This has resulted in
high growth in exports and output as well as current account surpluses.
Additional factors which supported the positive basic balance were funding
from EU financial assistance schemes, which were most recently tapped
more heavily, and capital inflows. Given their stable external position, the
countries pursued a non-restrictive monetary policy and maintained low
interest rates. Loans expanded at a faster rate although foreign currency
loans declined in five countries. This was accompanied by higher local
funding as a result of an increase in deposits with banks.

The economy of the Czech Republic recorded the strongest growth. Its
industry operated at capacity, with output growing by an average 5.2 %.
Real GDP expanded by 4.3%2 in 2015 although imports grew faster than
exports. Domestic demand was driven by private consumption (+ 3.1 %)
and investment (+8.0%). Under pressure to appreciate, the Czech crown
was consistently held at over 27.00 CZK/EUR, and the country’s currency
reserves consequently rose by over one-third in the course of the year to

1) Country groups: CEE = Bank Austria perimeter = CE (CZ, SK, H, SLO) + SEE (RO, BG;
CRO, BiH, SRB) + RUS + TK; PL is consolidated within the UniCredit holding company;
Ukraine is no longer included; CESEE = CE + SEE = CEE without RUS and TK; CEE/EU
members: CZ, SK, H, SLO, RO, BG, CRO. / 2) Annual figures for 2015 are in some cases
still estimates or projections.

€59.5 billion. Although loans expanded strongly (+8.1% yoy) as interest
rates had fallen to a record low (at euro benchmark level), they were still
equal to only 71.2% of deposits; asset quality is good (NPL ratio: 5.8 %).
Slovakia presents a similar picture (GDP + 3.4 %, industrial output
+4.7 %). Domestic demand expanded significantly for two reasons:
double-digit growth in investment in equipment in the automotive industry,
and private consumption, which expanded mainly as a result of social
transfers, an increase in minimum wages and a reduction of several VAT
rates. Public spending reached the limit imposed by the debt brake. Lend-
ing activity remained lively (most recently +8.4 %), also fully funded by
deposits. In Hungary, economic growth slowed somewhat but still came
10 2.9% in 2015. Exports were the mainstay of growth (+8.2%, industrial
output Jan./Nov. +6.5%). Unlike other countries, domestic demand grew
more slowly than in the previous year, when extensive government pro-
grammes resulted in rises in real wages and public spending. The conver-
sion of foreign currency loans led to a 7.7 % decling in lending volume in
2015. The Funding for Growth Scheme Il (FGS), a programme introduced
to provide small and medium-sized businesses with financial assistance,
has meanwhile expired. It failed to adequately boost lending in local cur-
rency, primarily because companies and private households are focusing
on repaying their debt. At almost 16 %, the impaired loans ratio is rela-
tively high for this group of countries. Significant sales of government
bonds by foreign investors were offset by purchases by private domestic
investors and banks (supported by interest rate swaps). The forint
remained stable thanks to a high external surplus and an interest rate
lead of about 3 percentage points. Slovenia’s economy experienced a
sound recovery since the local banking crisis in 2013 (GDP growth of
+2.6% in 2015, industrial output +4.6 %). The main factors in this
connection were private consumption and public-sector investment duge to
greater use of EU funds for structural projects. Growth was also supported
by exports (+4.6 %), with the demand shortfall (Russia, neighbouring
countries to the south) offset by exports to third countries; this develop-
ment was underpinned by the depreciation of the euro. Slovenia moreover
benefited from a good tourist season. The local banking sector regained
public confidence. Companies have however not yet completed the
restructuring of their balance sheets. The marked contraction in lending
volume seen in the two previous years was followed by a slight decline in
2015 (~2.7%). The NPL ratio was most recently 11.5%.

Romania achieved surprisingly strong real economic growth of 3.7 % in
2015. Exports and industrial output declined as the year progressed,
reflecting the shortfall of demand from Russia, the Middle East and Turkey
and also the gradual loss of competitiveness due to rising unit labour
costs and a lack of productive investment. Still, the trade deficit for 2015
was almost offset by services (IT maintenance work, settlement activities).
Domestic demand, on the other hand, is expanding strongly, driven by
large increases of 7% in real wages and purchasing power gains resulting
from reductions of value-added tax rates, which became possible
with higher tax revenue (based on economic trends and more efficient
tax collection). The banking sector saw a significant shift from foreign
currency loans to RON-denominated loans in 2015; overall, however,
lending volume was stagnant. The NPL ratio continued to decline to
11.8% (2013: 32.1%). In view of high real interest rates (10-year yield:
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3.80%/inflation rate: —1.75%) the currency remained stable through-
out the year (most recently, RON/EUR —0.9%). Bulgaria’s economic
growth of 2.8% in 2015 was also stronger than in 2014 (+1.5%).
Exports were up by 6.7 %, reflecting an expansion of exports to the EU
and to third countries, a development which also benefited from depre-
ciation of the euro as Bulgaria followed suit with its currency board.
Services offshoring (exports of ICT maintenance and back-office activi-
ties) plays an important role in trade with EU countries. Employment in
this sector grew in the higher wage brackets, pushing down the unem-
ployment rate to below 10%. Private consumption grew slowly, by just
under 1%, despite the need to catch up and although the inflation rate
was negative. Financial consolidation was still a priority. This means that
domestic demand was driven by investment (+5.5 %), mainly due to
EU-supported infrastructure projects for which EU funds were used
shortly before the funding programme expired. The banking sector
coped well with the resolution of Corporate Commercial Bank (CCB) and
with uncertainty caused by Greek capital controls. Lending volume
again declined; at 79.4 %, the loan/deposit ratio is the second lowest
after the Czech Republic. The NPL ratio improved slightly to 15.7 %.

P While the Western Balkan countries were still experiencing economic
imbalances and structural problems, they gradually emerged from the
cyclical trough which resulted from various factors including the disas-
trous floods a year earlier. A recovery of exports of merchandise and ser-
vices (including an excellent tourist season, which contributed two-fifths
to GDP in the third quarter) helped Croatia achieve economic growth of
1.3% in 2015 after six years of recession. In the meantime the improve-
ment is reflected in domestic demand components, even if the rates of
growth are low, ranging between %% and 1%. The EU excessive deficit
procedure and the country-specific recommendations to resolve structural
and governance problems present the country with a challenge. On
18 September 2015, ahead of the elections, parliament adopted amend-
ments to the Consumer Credit Act and the Credit Institutions Act under
which the banks will, within three months, have to convert customer loans
denominated in Swiss francs into Croatian kuna at the historical exchange
rates applied when the loans were granted. Since 2009, the euro has
depreciated by 27.0% against the Swiss franc (in which most of the loans
that had to be converted were denominated) and the Croatian kuna has
depreciated by 30.2 % against the Swiss franc.

In Bosnia and Herzegovina, services and construction activity to repair
damage to agricultural land and production facilities — caused by disas-
trous floods a year earlier — resulted in economic growth which is
estimated to have reached 2 %. The large current account deficit (about
7.5% of GDP) reflects the local structure of production together with a
structurally high propensity to import; it is financed primarily via loans
from international financial institutions. There is no alternative but to
renew the stand-by agreement with the IMF, which expired in June
2015. Until such renewal the country is trying to use domestic borrow-
ing as bridge-over finance. Lending volume expanded moderately, by
2.4%, while inflation was close to zero. Loans recently exceeded
deposits by 5%. Serbia’s economy has also succeeded in overcoming
recession, thanks to reconstruction efforts and from a low base (annual

growth forecast for 2015: +0.6%). Contributions to this development
came from large exports of wheat, the resumption of steel production
and electricity generation, and also from the Fiat car manufacturing plant.
But austerity conditions imposed by international lenders (including wage
cuts and dismissals in the public sector) are having an impact on private
and public consumption. The twin deficits (budget and current account)
still exceed 4 % of GDP, despite the favourable effect of low oil prices.
Lending volume and deposits with banks expanded slightly, by about 2 %,
in 2015. The NPL ratio was 22.0%. As foreign currency loans account
for three-quarters of total loans to private customers and two-thirds of
these loans are denominated in euro, the country had to pursue a restric-
tive monetary policy (short-term interest rates: 3.50 %, 5-year bonds:
6.30%) to maintain currency stability (RSD/EUR —0.4 %).

» In Turkey, fears of economic risks materialised in view of domestic
political uncertainty ahead of the elections (1 November 2015), the coun-
try’s increasing involvement in the Middle East conflict and recently also the
Russian sanctions. Against the background of a large external financing
requirement — the current account deficit remained at 4 % of GDP although
the terms of trade improved significantly — country risk premiums rose by
100 basis points (bp) to over 300bp in late summer and towards the end
of the year (compared with 180bp in early 2015). In an environment of
growing global risk aversion, Turkey saw intermittent withdrawals of capital.
The Turkish lira depreciated by 18.8 % against the euro in the period to the
middle of September, and by 10.8 % from year-end 2014 to the end of
2015, with significant volatility. This led to rising inflationary pressure and
high market interest rates: most recently, the inflation rate was 8.8 %; the
key interest rate stood at 7.50 %, and short-term and long-term interest
rates were about 10.50% (in TRY). Nevertheless, the real economy
achieved stronger-than-expected growth (GDP 2015: +3.4%). Industrial
output caught up with this momentum towards year-end 2015, rising by
3.1% although exports were stagnant; impetus was provided by a new
refinery which commenced operations. Private consumption (+4.4% in real
terms) and public consumption (+6.0 %) were the mainstays of growth,
also because of election promises at the expense of the budgetary situa-
tion, which has been favourable until now. The current account deficit has
so far been financed without any problems via short-term capital imports by
banks. But companies’ foreign indebtedness in foreign currency and their
borrowings from banks are at very high levels. Loans and deposits rose
strongly again in 2015, by 21.8% and 21.4 %, respectively. The high loan/
deposit ratio of 120.3 % reflects the strong growth seen in previous years.
Nevertheless, the NPL ratio is the lowest in the CEE region (2.9 %).

» The recession in Russia in 2015, with a 3.7 % decline in real GDP, was
not as deep as had been feared. In early December 2015, oil prices and
the rouble exchange rate started to fall again in a spiral movement which
has raised doubts about signs that the downward trend has bottomed out
as a result of the numerous measures taken. The double shock — Russian
Urals crude oil prices down by 34.2% from year-end 2014 to year-end
2015, since then down by 29.1 %; rouble/currency basket down by
34.2%, since then down by 8.1 % — hit an economy which has been expe-
riencing a decline for structural reasons since 2012. The combined impact
of oil price movements, currency depreciation and sanctions resulted in

28 2015 Annual Report - Bank Austria



2015 timeline

lower export earnings and direct revenue shortfalls for the government as
well as a sharp increase in inflation (with a peak of 16.9% in March 2015
and 12.9% in December), leading to a pronounced fall of 14 % in real
wages and an unusually weak expansion of domestic demand. Private
consumption decreased by 9% in 2015, investment declined by 8.5%
and imports by 27 %. Although the terms of trade deteriorated, the current
account improved to +5.9% of GDP, partly supported by import substitu-
tion programmes. As the sanctions were renewed several times, Russian
state-owned banks in particular had no access to international financing.
This may have been one of the reasons why Russian companies repatri-
ated foreign assets and there was an inflow of capital in the course of
2015, reversing the traditional capital outflows. As the situation stabilised
temporarily until June 2015, the central bank lowered its repo rate, which
had been raised to 17 % at the end of 2014, to 11 % and subsequently
took further supportive action (foreign exchange swaps, FX repos, recapi-
talisation of banks with recourse to the deposit guarantee scheme, gov-
ernment purchases of bank issues). In this restrictive environment, nomi-
nal lending volume grew by 4.7 %, implying a significant decline of about
10% when adjusted for price and exchange rate movements. In corporate
lending business, foreign currency loans accounted for 30 % of the total
volume, up from 18 % because of the exchange rate effect. Among loans
to private households, foreign currency loans are not significant. The slow-
down in monetary expansion is also reflected in the decline in the loan/
deposit ratio from 109% to 97 %. The NPL ratio on its broader definition
rose from 12% to 19% at the end of 2015, despite less stringent FX
valuation rules.

» After the dramatic slump in Ukraine it appears that the economy
is gradually bottoming out — at least in those regions which saw no
direct fighting; the tenuous truce has more or less held. In 2015,
GDP shrank by 10%, reflecting a sharp fall of between 15% and
20% in demand aggregates, with inflation rates reaching almost
50%. The current account deficit narrowed as imports contracted
more strongly than exports. The main reason why the situation
eased within a short time was the successful debt restructuring of
US$18 billion in government bonds and government-guaranteed
bonds. The key elements of the debt restructuring include a 20 %
haircut, a four-year grace period, a high coupon of 7.75% and
some kind of recovery arrangement in the event that economic indi-
cators improve faster than expected. The conditions imposed by the
IMF were met with this arrangement in a timely manner. In the mid-
dle of December 2015 the IMF changed one of its lending rules and
disbursed tranches from its Extended Fund Facility of US$17 billion
to Ukraine although the country stopped servicing a Russian bond in
the amount of US$3 billion by way of a moratorium, a move which
has become a controversial issue. Since the hryvnia recovered from
its sharp fall in value in February 2015 (-50.7 %), exchange con-
trols have helped to keep the currency stable; from year-end 2014
to year-end 2015, the hryvnia depreciated by 26.7 %. Slow progress
in reforms suggests that framework conditions will not meet West-
ern standards in the foreseeable future. Moreover, the banking sec-
tor can hardly fulfil its functions in view of capital controls, a perma-
nent shortage of liquidity and the workout of problem loans.
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Lithuania joins the euro area as its 19th member.

Swiss franc’s link to the euro ends. After a brief overshooting, the
currency appreciates against the euro by about 15% in the period to
the end of March 2015.

ECB decides to extend its asset purchase programme (EAPP)

to include government bonds issued by all euro countries and
securities of supranational issuers, in addition to covered bonds and
asset-backed securities. Monthly purchases of €60 billion start on
9 March 2015. The strong effect of the announcement drives the
euro lower (to a low of 1.0456 USD/EUR on 16 March).

Syriza left-wing alliance wins parliamentary election in Greece. Reform
projects and negotiations with the troika are stopped spontaneously.
Interest rates at historically low level: 10-year euro benchmark yield falls
t0 0.049 %; European equities reach a high (EuroStoxx: +22 % ytd).
Speculation about a Grexit at meeting of EU Finance Ministers in Riga.
Flash crash in bond markets: 10-year benchmark yield rises to 0.80%

p.a. within a single week as widespread fears of deflation recede in
response to positive news of inflation rates and the Greek crisis.

10-year benchmark yield at annual high of 1.06 %. Signs of decreasing
market liquidity as a result of purchases by the ECB.

European Council extends sanctions against Russia until January 2016.
Greece announces referendum despite ongoing negotiations. EU Finance
Ministers let the aid programme expire without disbursing the last tranche.
Greek crisis comes to a head: introduction of capital controls, bank
counters closed. Greece fails to pay a loan instalment to the IMF.
Negotiations on a third aid package resumed. Greek parliament adopts
the second reform package (22 July).

Ukraine: IMF Executive Board completes review of Extended Fund
Facility (EFF) and approves disbursement of further tranches.

New exchange rate regime in China: yuan switched to managed floating.
Markets briefly shocked by currency depreciation of 2.7 % within two days.
Bailout (€86 billion over three years) eases Greek crisis for the time being.
Shanghai stock market falls sharply (for the second time after the
slump in June/July), by 28.9% within a single week. Uncertainty over
China leads to strong declines in global stock markets and in prices

for crude oil and commodities as well as significant depreciation of the
Russian rouble.

Ukraine achieves private debt restructuring for US$18 billion in
government bonds against a 20 % haircut, an extension of time for
repayment and a four-year grace period, a high coupon (7.75%) and
an agreement on value recovery instruments.

ECB holds out prospect of further expansionary measures.

Stronger rise in refugees moving from Middle East to Germany and
also to Austria.

US Environmental Protection Agency claims VW violated the Clean Air Act.

Parliamentary elections in Turkey result in one-party government
formed by AKP.

IMF decides to include the yuan in the IMF Special Drawing Right
basket as a fifth currency from 1 October 2016 (weight: 10.92 %).
PBOC widens target range for exchange rate.

ECB disappoints expectations: 10 basis point cut in deposit facility rate
t0 —0.30%, bond purchases extended until at least spring 2017 but
not massively increased.

IMF decides to lend also to countries in default on debt (€. g. Ukraine).
OPEC cancels oil production ceiling: oil price falls to below 37 US$/bl.

Fed ends 7-year period of zero interest rates: key rate raised to
0.25%-0.50%.

Ukraine: legal dispute after moratorium on Russian bond (US$3 billion).
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Bank Austria in 2015 — overview

As mentioned earlier in the annual report, the hoped-for impetus
from economic growth was too weak for a sustained revival of
demand in the banking sector in 2015, seven years after the financial
market crisis. Instead, there is now renewed widespread uncertainty.
In Austria, the financial behaviour of customers, investors and com-
panies was still defensive and focused on putting balance sheets on
a sound footing, although the situation improved in the latter part of
the year. The extent to which CEE regions were affected by global
economic turbulence and geopolitical crises varied greatly, resulting
in significant divergence. An unconventional monetary policy assured
ample liquidity and easy money, while stricter regulatory require-
ments imposed higher standards with regard to equity and increased
the cost of capital. On this basis the levels of performance expected
of banks have become increasingly challenging over the past few
years. The environment of low interest rates, in particular, which is
now impacting all areas of classic lending and deposit-taking busi-
ness, made it difficult to achieve the level of profitability needed to
build the necessary risk buffers which are required by regulators.

Bank Austria’s strategy — in line with UniCredit's Group-wide strategy —
was geared to this environment. By giving priority to customer centricity
and using the trend towards digitalisation, the business model is to be
adjusted to the significant changes in day-to-day business, reflecting
a forward-looking approach. Supported by enhanced process and cost
efficiency, and by professional risk management, operating income is to
be increased on a sustainable basis to meet expectations of shareholders
and to strengthen the bank’s capital base for further growth through its
own efforts.

On this basis the recent multi-year plans focused on core business,
in both regional and divisional terms. This involves withdrawal from
markets such as Kazakhstan and Ukraine, where growth and profitability
expectations from the time of the expansion euphoria have not been
met, disposal of peripheral activities and unproductive assets which tie
up substantial amounts of capital, and the sale of real estate. In the
bank’s core business, the challenging revenue situation required an in-
depth analysis of weaknesses in the business and customer segments
based on the management principle requiring every unit to contribute
to the bank’s profitability without any cross-subsidies. This made it
necessary to restore the Austrian retail banking business to profitability.
The digital transformation, which is gaining momentum, supports the
changes required in sales and marketing activities and in internal
processes as well as in meeting specific regulatory requirements
(supervision, reporting, compliance, risk management). In addition to
the necessary investments this calls for clear governance, simplified
organisational structures and new work methods.

=> Besides the factors mentioned above (demand, low interest rates,
geopolitical impact), and in addition to increasingly higher fiscal charges
(systemic charges, ad hoc intervention such as the mandatory conversion
of foreign currency loans in Croatia), Bank Austria’s consolidated finan-
cial statements for 2015 reflect a large number of internal measures
which resulted in numerous special effects and one-off factors.

Profit performance in 2015 (€ million, 2014 recast)

2015 2014 +/- +-%
Operating profit 2,800 2,846 -47  -1.6%
Net write-downs of loans —-1,007 —782 -226 +28.8%
Net operating profit") 1,792 2,064 =272 -132%
Profit before tax 1,621 1,733 -112  -6.5%
Net profit? 1,325 1,329 -4 -0.3%

1) Operating profit less net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and com-
mitments. / 2) Net profit attributable to the owners of the parent company.

@ With a net profit of €1.3 billion in a difficult environment in 2015,
Bank Austria matched the level of the previous year (—0.3 %; adjusted
for exchange rate movements: +0.7 %). The result was achieved through
an overall stable operating performance and one-off effects related to
the bank’s reorganisation. Deductions for non-operating items were
lower than in the previous year following the release of a provision.

P In 2015, operating profit was €2,800 million, close to the level of the
previous year (—1.6 %). Operating income fell slightly (—1.8 %), with the
decline in net interest and in net trading, hedging and fair value income (in
the latter case the fall was due to the fact that Bank Austria no longer par-
ticipated in profits of the UniCredit CIB/Markets product ling) partly offset
by an increase in net fees and commissions and dividend income. Operat-
ing costs remained stable in all segments in 2015; overall, they declined
by 1.9%, as did staffing levels (FTEs —1.8%). Net write-downs of loans
and provisions for guarantees and commitments rose by 28.8 % compared
with 2014. The increase of €226 million is primarily explained by a one-off
effect from the mandatory conversion of foreign currency loans at historical
exchange rates in Croatia, resulting in a charge of €205 million. This
largely accounted for the decline of a similar amount in net operating profit.
Besides this development, the anticipated increase in loan loss provisions
in Russia (and in loan loss provisions relating to customer loans in Ukraine
which are booked in Vienna) was almost entirely offset by the improvement
in all other CEE countries and especially in Austria. On this basis net oper-
ating profit (operating profit less net write-downs of loans and provisions
for guarantees and commitments) in 2015 declined by 13.2% over 2014
largely due to the conversion of foreign currency loans in Croatia; without
this major one-off effect the decline was 3.3 %. Additionally adjusted for
exchange rate movements, net operating profit increased slightly (+1.1 %).

P Net operating profit also remained stable in regional terms: in the three
Austrian customer business segments net operating profit came to a
combined €679 million in 2015, matching the level of the previous year
(€678 million). This reflected the upturn in business with corporate
customers and in the Corporate & Investment Banking business segment,
while business with private customers recorded a loss due to the burden
of high structural costs. In CEE, net operating profit was impacted by the
mandatory conversion of foreign currency loans in Croatia, referred to
above, and other special effects burdened the CEE Corporate Center. With-
out these two factors net operating profit in CEE came to €71,742 million,
equalling the good performance of the previous year (+0.3%). This is an
impressive result as the foreseeable decline in Russia (—€168 million to a
good €285 million) was more than offset by the excellent performance of
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the other CEE countries (+€173 million to €1,457 million). This once again
underlines Bank Austria’s good regional diversification.

Net operating profit1) (€ million, 2014 recast)

2015 2014 +/- +-%

Austrian customer business 679 678 +0 +0.0%

Central Eastern Europe (CEE) 1,324 1,648 =324 -19.7%
...... without CEE Corporate

Center, without FX/Croatia 2 1,742 1,737 +5  +0.3%

... of which Russia 285 453 -168 -37.0%

... other CEE countries 1,457 1,284 +173 +13.5%

Corporate Center/Bank Austria -210 —262 +52 -19.8%

Bank Austria 1,792 2,064 -272 -13.2%

... without FX/Croatia 1,997 2,064 -67 -3.3%

1) Operating profit less net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and com-
mitments. / 2) Without the Corporate Center of the CEE Division and the impact of the
mandatory conversion of foreign currency loans in Croatia.

» Non-operating items in the income statement between net operating
profit and net profit reflect strategic measures and decisions taken in
2015. The main factors are the withdrawal from Ukraine and the provi-
sions required for restructuring the bank. In December 2015 UniCredit
Bank Austria AG and UniCredit SpA signed a binding agreement to transfer
Ukrsotshank to the Alfa Group in exchange for shares. The closing of the
transaction is expected for 2016. The current loss for 2015 and the impair-
ment charges recognised in respect of Ukrsotsbank in accordance with
IFRS 5 in June and December 2015 resulted in a combined charge of
€408 million, which is reflected in the item “Total profit or loss after tax
from discontinued operations”. Of this total amount, €111 million was
attributable to UniCredit SpA, which is a minority shareholder in Ukrsots-
bank. (This is the main reason why the item “Non-controlling interests”
shows a positive figure of €93 million.) Together with a further provision
made by Bank Austria in the amount of €53 million and included in the
item “Provisions for risks and charges”, and with the inclusion of all other
positive and negative effects (and after tax and non-controlling interests),
the negative impact of Ukraine on profit for 2015 was —€367 million. This
was partly offset by gains on the structured sale of the portfolio of the Imm-
mobilien Holding companies. On balance, total profit or loss after tax from
discontinued operations was a loss of €303 million (—€408 million result-
ing from Ukraine, +€105 million in connection with Immobilien Holding).

In view of the medium-term targets set in the multi-year plan for Austrian
customer business (including the future Corporate Center: a return on
allocated capital, RoAC, of 13% and a cost/income ratio of 60 %), the
Management Board adopted resolutions on a package of measures in
November 2015 (see page 51 of this report). An important component
of these measures is the transfer to the state scheme under the Austrian
General Social Insurance Act (ASVG) of those active employees for whom
Bank Austria assumed the obligations of the mandatory social insurance
scheme under employment contracts in the past. In the future, the transfer
will reduce the volatility of provisioning requirements in this context, signifi-
cantly relieving the impact on the income statement. Large provisions have
been made for the transfer to the ASVG state scheme, for compensation
payments to the employees concerned, and for initiatives on the revenue

and costs sides under the Bank Austria Reloaded programme (with a view
to meeting staffing targets, restructuring the branch network, digitalisation
and enhancing efficiency in back-office activities). The transition from a
defined benefit system to a defined contribution system enables the bank
to release provisions for active employees who will be transferred to the
ASVG state scheme. As a result the figure shown in the income statement
for the item “Integration/restructuring costs” is positive, reflecting income
of €312 million. The net effect of this transaction, taking into account the
related tax expense and expenses recognised directly in equity, was slightly
negative (—€27 million).

Non-operating items (€ million, 2014 recast)

2015 2014 +- +-%

Net operating profit ) 1,792 2,064 =272 -132%
Provisions for risks and charges -137 —147 +10 -6.8%
Systemic charges? —-326 -237 -89 +37.7%
Integration/restructuring costs 312 -14 +326 n.m.
Net income from investments -20 66 —-86 n.m.
Profit before tax 1,621 1,733 -112  -6.5%
Income tax —-86 —296 +209 -70.9%
Discontinued operations3) -303 -132 -172  >100%
Non-controlling interests 4 93 23 +70 >100%
Net profits 1,325 1,329 -4 -0.3%

1) Operating profit less net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments. / 2) Bank levies and other systemic charges (without FTT, which is included
in net other expenses/income). / 3) Total profit or loss after tax from discontinued
operations. / 4) Minority interests. / 5) Net profit attributable to the owners of the parent
company. / n.m. = not meaningful

Among the other non-operating items, systemic charges including
bank levies increased by 37.7 % to €326 million in 2015. Without these
charges, net profit would have been higher by one-quarter (24.6 %).

@ Bank Austria’s total assets at the end of 2015 were €194 billion,
up by €4.5 billion or 2.4% year-on-year. Expansion was supported by
customer business with an increase of €2.6 billion or 2.3% in customer
loans and growth of €8.1 hillion or 7.9% in deposits. Direct funding
(customer deposits and debt securities in issue) rose by 5.2 %, covering
lending volume to the extent of 120 %. IFRS equity amounted to €15.4 bil-
lion, an increase of 3.3 % over year-end 2014 on account of the inclu-
sion of net profit although the foreign currency translation reserve and
the change relating to pension provisions had negative impacts. At the
end of 2015, the leverage ratio (based on the current status of transi-
tional arrangements) was 5.8 %, underlining the bank'’s conservative
business policy focusing on customer business.

@ Capital resources increased in the course of 2015: the total risk
exposure amount was €128.3 billion, down by €2.1 billion (~1.6%)
while credit risk remained more or less unchanged (+0.1 %). Total regu-
latory capital rose by 8.8% to €19.1 billion on account of the inclusion
of net profit and issues of Tier 2 capital. On this basis the total capital
ratio rose from 13.4% at the end of 2014 to 14.9% at year-end 2015.
The Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio was 11.0% compared with
10.3% at the end of 2014.
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Quarterly trends in 2015

Bank Austria’s operating performance in 2015 was characterised by a
sideways movement, without any major peaks or slumps in the four quar-
ters, except for a large-volume special effect in the third quarter of 2015
caused by the mandatory conversion of foreign currency loans in Croatia.
A number of influences from a rather volatile environment (e.g. the reper-
cussions of the oil price shock on Russia, with other countries benefiting
from the same development) had varying impacts on the regions in the
perimeter of Bank Austria’s operations and offset each other in the aggre-
gate totals and ultimately also in operating profit. Moreover, some items in
the income statement showed trends which moved in opposite directions
(e.g. net interest declined slightly while net fees and commissions
increased). Exchange rate effects from the translation of the figures in
local income statements also had a strong influence on quarterly trends;
these effects related mainly to the exchange rate of the Russian rouble,
which in the first quarter of 2015 temporarily fell to an extremely low level
and subsequently recovered before declining again in the final quarter of
2015. Net operating profit fluctuated around a mean level from quarter to
quarter while remaining more or less constant on an annual average. Net
profit, on the other hand, showed a volatile development due to a number
of one-off effects and non-operating measures taken by the bank.

@ Operating income and operating profit reached peak levels in the
second and third quarters of 2014. The figures for the fourth quarter
of 2014 and for the first and third quarters of 2015 were dispropor-
tionately low, moving in parallel with the contribution from Russia,
which was mainly determined by the rouble’s exchange rate. Operating
income for the fourth quarter of 2015 came close to the previous
peaks, reaching €1,566 million — an increase of 8.3% over the rela-
tively low figure for the fourth quarter of the previous year — and thus
more or less matching the O3 2014 level (€1,570 million). Operating
profit showed a similar development as costs remained largely stable:
at €768 million, operating profit for the fourth quarter of 2015 was
up by 23.4% on the same period of the previous year, though lower
than the peak figures for the second and third quarters of 2014.

@ Net operating profit, additionally reflecting net write-downs of loans
and provisions for guarantees and commitments, was more volatile. After
a strong performance in the second and third quarters of 2014 (€636 mill-
ion and €622 million, respectively), net operating profit declined signifi-
cantly in the fourth quarter of 2014, to €373 million, providing a very low
base for comparisons with developments in 2015 (see table on the next
page). Net operating profit in the first and second quarters, and (adjusted
for the FX effect in Croatia) also in the third quarter of 2015, increased
and finally reached €518 million in Q4 2015 (+38.8 % compared with Q4
2014). In 2015 as a whole, net operating profit (on an adjusted basis) was
€1,997 million, down by 3.3% on 2014, despite the strong final quarter.

Net operating profit from Austrian customer business (Retail & Corpo-
rates, Private Banking and Corporate & Investment Banking business seg-
ments) in 2015 developed more or less steadily from quarter to quarter;
the total figure for 2015 exactly matched the previous year’s performance.
A decline in net interest was offset by a rise in net fees and commissions,
and the other components, primarily net write-downs of loans and provi-
sions for guarantees and commitments, led to slight quarterly fluctuations

in net operating profit. Net interest fell strongly in the first quarter of 2015
and remained at that level; the figure for the fourth quarter of 2015 was
€312 million, down by 6.3 % year-on-year. Business volume grew con-
stantly, a remarkable development given the low level of demand in the
market. This translated into market share gains: at the end of 2015 aver-
age lending was up by 4.5% on the previous year, and deposit growth
was even stronger, reaching 6.2 %. However, this growth compares with
a significant narrowing of the interest margin in the first quarter of 2015,
which affected all three segments of Austrian customer business and
was further accentuated by the effect of strongly expanding deposits. Net
fees and commissions, on the other hand, showed an upward trend, with
growth of 5.1% in Q4 2015 over the same period of the previous year
supported by all business segments. Securities business in Retail &
Corporates and in Private Banking rose steadily and net fees and com-
missions were up by 5.1% in the fourth quarter of 2015, reflecting the
placement of investment fund units and assets under management; net
inflows of funds were recorded even in the third quarter of 2015 when a
setback in China hit global stock markets. Assets under management, an
area generating high net fees and commissions, were up by 6.0% at the
end of 2015; within Private Banking, where a new fee model was
launched very successfully, assets under management increased by a
substantial 16.3%. Net fees and commissions from financial services
also expanded; CIB benefited from the settlement of a major transaction
in the second quarter and recorded a year-on-year increase of 43.7 % in
net fees and commissions in the fourth quarter of 2015. Quarterly fluctu-
ations were mainly due to net write-downs of loans and provisions for
guarantees and commitments: net additions to loan loss provisions were
recorded only in the first quarter (€37 million) and in the third quarter of
2015 (€6 million), while the second and fourth quarters saw net releases
of provisions of €37 million and €3 million, respectively.

Net operating profit generated by the CEE Division rose significantly
from quarter to quarter in 2015 (see table on the next page). In the fourth
quarter of 2015 it was €351 million, up by 12.7 % on the same period of
the previous year; the strong increase reflects the low level of €312 mil-
lion achieved against the background of developments in Russia a year
earlier. In each of the first to third quarters of 2015 net operating profit in
CEE was at a high level of about €400 million, mainly due to a strong
performance in the Central European countries (CE) and especially in
South-East Europe (SEE). Overall, net operating profit in CESEE reached
an adjusted level of €405 million in the third quarter of 2015. The figure
for the fourth quarter, which reflects the impact of larger net write-downs
of loans, amounted to €220 million, up by 22.1% on the same period of
the previous year. This resulted in a strong increase of 18.6 % for the
year as a whole. Contributions to this development came from operating
income, which was stable in CE and increased in SEE, and from signifi-
cantly declining net write-downs of loans (if the FX conversion in Croatia
is excluded). In the Central European countrigs, a narrowing interest mar-
gin was offset by strong volume growth as the year progressed, in line
with the economic environment in this highly integrated group of coun-
tries. In SEE, volume rose mainly on the deposit side and interest rates
declined in the absence of inflation and with stable exchange rates.
Performance in Bulgaria includes a special effect (Greece is one of the
country’s neighbours) and our banking subsidiaries in the Western Balkan
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Net operating profit (€ million)
Q114 0214 Q314 Q414 Q115 Q215 Q315 ADJ Q415 2014 2015  ADJ
Bank Austria 433 636 622 373 422 564 288 493 518 2,064 1,792 1,997
Austrian customer business 127 210 159 183 121 232 142 185 678 679
Retail & Corporates 61 110 99 114 57 14 79 86 383 363
Private Banking 11 12 13 23 17 11 10 17 59 56
Corporate & Investment Banking 56 88 47 45 47 80 52 81 236 260
CEE 370 437 529 312 382 390 200 405 351 1,648 1,324 1,529
Central Europe/South-East Europe (CESEE) 235 236 292 180 318 270 107 311 220 943 914 1,119
Russia 112 137 149 55 81 78 53 73 453 285
Turkey 50 86 93 112 70 87 63 129 341 349
Cross-regional” =27 -22 —4 -36 -88 —44 -22 71 -89 225
Bank Austria Corporate Center -65 -11 -65 -121 -80 -58 -54 -18 -262 =210

*) Cross-regional business (Profit Center Vienna, UCTAM restructuring unit etc.) and CEE Corporate Center sub-holding company functions (capitalisation, liquidity management,
equity interest management). / ADJ = adjusted for the effect of —€204.8 million resulting from the conversion of foreign currency loans in Croatia.

countries benefited from their important role as international banks. The
other components of operating income from commercial banking opera-
tions showed an upward trend throughout CESEE: net fees and commis-
sions in CESEE rose steadily, with the Q4 2015 figure up by 8.1 % on the
same period of the previous year. Net trading income made positive con-
tributions to operating income in every quarter of 2015, with the usual
quarterly fluctuations reflecting commercial needs in the context of foreign
exchange trading and interest rate risk management; net trading, hedging
and fair value income for 2015 as a whole more or less matched the fig-
ure for the previous year. Our Russian banking subsidiary coped well in
the difficult environment — characterised by recession, dramatic currency
depreciation, sharp changes in capital movements as a result of sanc-
tions, strong interest rate movements — thanks to its position as an inter-
national bank active in corporate banking: after a sharp fall in its net oper-
ating profit towards year-end 2014 (mainly on account of currency depre-
ciation and a decline in net trading income), performance stabilised with
some fluctuations (Q4 2015: €73 million/+32.5% year-on-year); in aver-
age terms for 2015, net operating profit was down by about 40% on the
good results achieved in 2014. Exchange rate effects work in two direc-
tions: a large portion of corporate finance volume is denominated in for-
eign currency (US dollar) and therefore volume and income are inflated in
rouble terms; this effect reverses upon translation of local income state-
ment figures into euro. For example, adjusted for exchange rate move-
ments, i.e. in local currency, lending volume rose strongly, by 11.1% from
Q4 2014 to Q4 2015, while in euro terms it decreased by 13.3%. A
similar though less dramatic effect was seen in the income statement: net
interest in local currency rose by 6.5% in 2015 but declined by 11.1% in
euro terms. In addition to the volatile net trading performance (which was

positive throughout 2015), the Russian banking subsidiary’s performance
was determined by net write-downs of loans and provisions for guaran-
tees and commitments, which rose as the year progressed. The cost of
risk (provisioning charge/average lending volume), which had ranged
between 50 and 60 basis points (bp) in the four quarters of 2014,
increased to a level of 204bp in Q4 2015, exceeding the CEE average of
184bp. The Turkish bank in which we have a shareholding is a joint ven-
ture accounted for using the equity method. After the first three quarters
of 2015, when a period of economic uncertainty ended, it made a stable
contribution to profits, with its performance doubling to €129 million in
the fourth quarter of 2015. On this basis the contribution from Turkey rose
also for 2015 as a whole.

@ Quarterly trends in the items below net operating profit were deter-
mined by the above-mentioned one-off effects and special factors
(see table below). Total profit or loss after tax in Ukraine (including an
impairment charge in the fourth quarter of 2015) led to a large 10ss in
the CEE Division’s cross-regional units (—€158 million in Q2 2015
and —€210 million in Q4 2015). The transactions described above
and reflected in integration/restructuring costs (release of provisions,
additions to provisions) and other factors related to year-end account-
ing procedures (e.g. deferred taxation) led to a positive contribution of
€482 million in the Corporate Center of Bank Austria as a whole in
Q4 2015. In the fourth quarter of 2015, net profit attributable to the
owners of the parent company thus amounted to €664 million after
an average €220 million in the three preceding quarters; for this rea-
son, the trend in net profit is of limited informational value for a com-
mercial evaluation of quarterly results.

Net profit (€ million)
Q1 14 Q2 14 Q314 0414 Q115 0215 Q315 Q4 15 2014 2015
Bank Austria 348 430 412 139 198 291 172 664 1,329 1,325
Austrian customer business 84 142 106 114 60 149 87 83 446 379
CEE 248 290 307 158 195 150 159 100 1,003 604
Countries 257 314 346 176 257 309 182 310 1,092 1,057
Cross-regional ) -9 -24 =39 =17 —61 —158 -23 -210 -89 —453
Bank Austria Corporate Center 16 -1 -1 -134 -58 -8 -74 482 -120 342

*) Cross-regional business (Profit Center Vienna, UCTAM restructuring unit etc.) and CEE Corporate Center sub-holding company functions (capitalisation, liquidity management,
equity interest management). Also includes the share of current profit or loss after tax (and impairment charge) of Ukraine.
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Note to the 2015 income statement

The income statement for the 2015 financial year reflects strategic
measures and provisions for forthcoming structural changes.

@ In November 2015, as part of the implementation of UniCredit’'s
multi-year plan, the Management Board adopted a package of
measures to restructure Bank Austria and to improve the cost/
income ratio on a sustainable basis. The transformation of the retail
banking business model is accompanied by a cost reduction pro-
gramme. It focuses on reducing IT and settlement costs by raising
the degree of standardisation and streamlining the product offering;
downsizing the branch network while expanding the digital market-
place; and making capacity adjustments in the Corporate Center,
comprising all of the bank’s back-office and support functions.

The restructuring of Austrian business also involves removing a
structural cost burden resulting from the bank’s historical devel-
opment: In the past, UniCredit Bank Austria AG assumed the obli-
gations of the mandatory social insurance scheme for a number
of its employees, especially with regard to pension obligations.
In December 2015, UniCredit Bank Austria AG and the Employ-
ees’ Council made an agreement to the effect that for almost all
of the employees who have rights to future benefits (essentially
the active employees covered by the bank’s own pension scheme)
the bank’s own pension system is terminated and the rights to
future pension benefits will consequently be transferred to the
state scheme under the Austrian General Social Insurance Act
(Allgemeines Sozialversicherungsgesetz — ASVG). The employees
concerned will receive compensation, in the form of one-off
lump-sum payments, for any disadvantages resulting from this
transfer. In addition, UniCredit Bank Austria AG has to make a
contribution, defined by law, to the state scheme under the Aus-
trian General Social Insurance Act for the transfer of the rights
to future pension benefits. The agreement with the Employees’
Council was signed with legal effect in December 2015 and
terminates the bank’s own pension system for the employees
concerned upon expiry of 29 February 2016. The employees
concerned are automatically, by operation of law, taken over by
the state scheme under the Austrian General Social Insurance
Act. While the entitiements will not be transferred, and the pay-
ments will not be made, until the first quarter of 2016, the effect
of this plan curtailment and the related reduction of the present
value of the pension obligation are to be recognised in the financial
statements in accordance with IAS 19 already in 2015.

Under a commitment to provide defined benefits, UniCredit

Bank Austria AG continues to recognise a pension provision for the
entitliements of employees who retired before the pension reform as
at 31 December 1999 became effective, and — as a special feature
of UniCredit Bank Austria AG’s staff regulations — for the future bene-
fits, equivalent to those under mandatory insurance, earned by active
employees and pensioners for whom UniCredit Bank Austria AG has
assumed the obligations of the mandatory pension insurance scheme

pursuant to Section 5 of the Austrian General Social Insurance Act if
these persons signed a pension agreement not later than 29 Febru-
ary 2016 and if they leave the company to take retirement by

31 December 2016.

@ The equity interest in Ukrsotshank continued to be classified as
held for sale in the 2015 financial statements. Current profit or loss of
Ukrsotshank is included in the CEE business segment in the income
statement item “Total profit or loss after tax from discontinued opera-
tions”. In the course of exclusive negotiations, UniCredit Bank Austria AG
and UniCredit SpA signed a binding agreement to transfer Ukrsotsbank
to Alfa Group. According to the transaction structure, UniCredit Group
(UCG) will contribute its exposure in Ukrsotshank to ABHH, a Luxem-
bourg-based company, in exchange for a 9.9 % minority interest in
ABHH. Bank Austria and UniCredit are thus transferring their direct
ownership interest in Ukrsotsbank and will become a minority share-
holder in a successful diversified banking group in the Commonwealth
of Independent States (CIS). The planned transaction, which requires
regulatory approval, will reduce UniCredit Group’s business risk in
Ukraine and enables the Group to further optimise its capital allocation.
In the future, Bank Austria and UniCredit will cooperate with ABHH in
banking business for their customers in Ukraine.

® The commentary in this management report refers to the con-
densed income statement as shown on the opposite page. The
same format is used for segment reporting. This makes it possible to
consistently explain the contributions made by the various business
segments to the items in the income statement and to Bank Austria’s
overall development. A reconciliation of the condensed income state-
ment to the mandatory reporting schedule is given in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 214 to 215.

Starting with the Interim Report at 30 June 2015, income and
expenses arising from sub-holding company functions which are
closely connected with operating activities of the commercial banks
in CEE are assigned to the CEE business segment. Comparative
figures for the previous year have been recast. These items, which
have so far been reflected in the Corporate Center of Bank Austria
as a whole, mainly include income and expenses arising from
asset/liability management, items relating to equity interest man-
agement and results from the hedging of the annual profits of indi-
vidual CEE banking subsidiaries.

Starting with 2014 our equity interest in a bank in Turkey, Yapi Kredi
ve Bankasi (a joint venture with our partner Kog Group) has been
accounted for using the equity method instead of the previously used
proportionate consolidation method. This reflects the implementation of
IFRS 11. In the income statement, the contribution from Turkey is
shown in a single line, with the share of profit being included in the
item “Dividend income and other income from equity investments”. For
the calculation of regulatory RWAs and capital resources, however, the
relevant companies continue to be included on a proportionate basis.
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Condensed income statement of Bank Austria®)

(€ million)

RECAST 2 QUARTERLY FIGURES RECAST? CHANGE

Q12015 Q22015 Q32015 Q42015 2015 2014 +-€ +-%
Net interest 816 871 847 852 3,386 3,511 -125  -3.6%
Dividend income and other income from equity investments 98 136 107 193 535 496 +39 +7.8%
Net fees and commissions 341 373 350 375 1,439 1,364 +75 +55%
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 107 124 78 111 420 487 —-67 -13.8%
Net other expenses/income 20 19 22 34 95 124 -29 -23.0%
Operating income 1,383 1,522 1,405 1,566 5,875 5,982 -107 -1.8%
Payroll costs -390 -404 -384  -384 -1,562 -1,648 +86 -52%
Other administrative expenses -320 —-338 -331 —-367 —-1,356 -1,318 -39 +3.0%
Recovery of expenses 0 0 0 0 1 1 -0 -20%
Operating costs =751 —776 — 751 —-798 -3,076 -3,136 +61  -1.9%
Operating profit 632 746 653 768 2,800 2,846 -47  -16%
gﬁ;r‘g;‘tt:égOQ’:’]ZSC%fn'ﬁsQ;ZQESpmViSiO”S for 210 -181 366  -250 ~1,007 782 -226 +28.8%
Net operating profit 422 564 288 518 1,792 2,064 -272 -13.2%
Provisions for risks and charges ) 0 —43 -85 -137 —147 +10  -6.8%
Systemic charges -103 -72 -58 -94 —-326 -237 -89 +37.7%
Integration/restructuring costs -1 -1 -3 317 312 -14 +326 n.m.
Net income/loss from investments 0 2 1 =22 =20 66 -86 n.m.
Profit before tax 310 493 184 634 1,621 1,733 -112  -6.5%
Income tax for the period -60 -69 -49 92 —-86 -296 +209 -709%
Total profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations -60 -123 25 —145 -303 -132 -172  >100%
Profit or loss for the period 190 301 160 581 1,232 1,306 74 -57%
Non-controlling interests 7 -9 11 84 93 23 +70 >100%
Net profit or loss before PPA 3) 198 291 172 664 1,325 1,329 -4 -0.3%
Purchase Price Allocation effect 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n.m.
Goodwill impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n.m.
Net profit or loss 3) 198 291 172 664 1,325 1,329 -4 -03%

n.m. = not meaningful. / 1) Bank Austria’s income statement as presented in this table is a reclassified format corresponding to the format used for segment reporting. / 2) Recast

to reflect the consolidation perimeter and business structure in 2015. / 3) Attributable to the owners of the parent company.
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Details of the 2015 income statement

Bank Austria’s earnings position in 2015 more or less matched the
previous year’s level. The economic recovery forecast for the euro area
became more tangible only towards the end of the reporting period and
did not yet stimulate demand to any significant extent, least of all in
Austria or in Austrian retail banking business. In the Central Eastern
Europe business segment, the advanced EU member countries
achieved a stable performance and the banking operations in South-
East European countries even further improved their operating income
and profits. This helped offset shortfalls in Russia, which remained
within limits in a difficult environment. Overall, a comparison of 2015
with the previous year shows stability without any dramatic changes.

@ Operating income in 2015 totalled €5,875 million, a decrease of
€107 million or 1.8% on 2014. Translated at constant exchange
rates (adjusted for currrency movements) operating income increased
slightly, by 2.5%. Net trading, hedging and fair value income declined
on account of a base effect: the participation in profits of the UniCredit
Markets product line, to which Bank Austria was entitled in the past
five years under the terms of the sale of UniCredit CAIB, expired in
2014. This led to a decrease of €99 million in operating income;
without this effect, operating profit would have matched the previous
year’s level. Net interest was lower by €125 million while net fees
and commissions rose by €75 million and net trading, hedging and
fair value income increased (on an adjusted basis) by €32 million.

Operating income by component € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014 +/- +-% CONST
Net interest 3,386 | 3511 -125 -36% +23%
Dividend income and other
income from equity
investments 535 496 +39 +7.8% +10.5%
Net fees and commissions 1,439 | 1,364 +75 +55% +6.6%
Net trading, hedging and fair
value income 420 487 -67 -138% -7.0%
without compensation”) 421 389 +32 +83%
Net other expenses/income 95 124 -29 -230% -33.9%
Operating income 5875 | 5982 -107 -18% +25%
without compensation”) 5877 | 5885 -8 —01% +4.2%

*) Without the participation in profits of the UniCredit Markets product line (compensa-
tion agreement related to the sale of UniCredit CAIB), which was included in the 2014
income statement for the last time.

Developments in 2015 show that higher growth of the real economy in
Austria’s neighbouring CEE countries and in CEE as a whole no longer
simply translates into revenue growth at banks, as it did in previous
years. Nevertheless, operating income and profits held up well, despite
continued efforts of local companies and private households to reduce
their debt. Our banks in South-East Europe benefited from their func-
tion as international banks and from their reputation and market shares
of up to 20% (Bulgaria) and 27 % (Croatia); their operating income and
profits increased significantly. However, commercial banking business
in CEE also reflects advanced convergence. Austrian customer business
had been affected by an erosion of margins for a long time, with inter-

est rates remaining close to zero. More recently, the advanced CEE
countries also recorded a decline in customer interest rates and com-
mercial spreads in the low interest rate environment. While net interest
was unusually low — due to volume and margin trends —, net fees and
commissions rose significantly, partly because of reviving investor
interest, especially in Austria, and partly as a result of fee and commis-
sion income from guarantees, loan commissions and account/payment
services in GEE (with varying trends and weights), and above all
because digital services advanced.

Operating income by region € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014 +/- +-% CONST

Austrian customer business | 2,114 [ 2,162 -48 -2.2%

Central Eastern Europe (CEE) | 3,816 | 3,824 -8 -02% +67%
Central Europe (CE) 1,066 | 1,047 +19  +18% +1.5%
South-East Europe (SEE) 1599 | 1,543 +55 +3.6% +38%
At-equity contribution from
Turkey 349 341 +8  +24% +6.3%
Russia 715 79% -81 -102% +20.0%
CEE cross-regional 1) 87 96 -9  -98% -11.1%

Corporate Center -55 -3 -5 n.m.
without compensation 2) =53 | =101  +48 -47.3%

Bank Austria as a whole 5875 | 5982 -107 -18% +25%

CONST = adjusted for exchange rate movements = translated at constant exchange rates. /
1) Cross-regional business (Profit Center Vienna, UCTAM restructuring unit etc.) and CEE
Corporate Center sub-holding company functions (capitalisation, liquidity management,
equity interest management). / 2) Without the participation in profits of the UniCredit Mar-
kets product line (compensation agreement related to the sale of UniCredit CAIB), which
was included in the 2014 income statement for the last time. / n.m. = not meaningful

An analysis by region and division shows that volatile business devel-
opments in Russia were the main factor determining trends in operat-
ing income in 2015. The Russian rouble depreciated strongly in the
first few months of the year, then strengthened temporarily before
starting to lose in value again in autumn and towards the end of the
reporting year. The average exchange rate of the Russian rouble in
2015 was 25.2 % lower than in 2014. Moreover, monetary trends
(inflation and interest rates) moved in the opposite direction compared
with developments in Western countries. In this environment, our highly
professional Russian banking subsidiary strengthened its market posi-
tion as a local and international bank. Despite restrictions on interna-
tional capital movements, an economic slump and volatile interest
rates, the Russian banking subsidiary achieved revenue growth in local
currency and generated a net profit of €224 million. Turkey was again
the fastest-growing economy, with a surprisingly strong performance
towards year-end 2015. Our joint venture in Turkey, accounted for
using the equity method in accordance with IFRS 11 and thus reflected
in the income statement only in the item “dividend income and other
income from equity investments”, again strongly supported operating
performance with a stable contribution of €349 million.

» Among the revenue components, net interest accounted for 58 %
of total operating income with a contribution of €3,386 million,
down by 3.6 % on the previous year. While underlying average
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lending volume grew by 1.5%, interest margins declined. Measured
against all interest-bearing assets, net interest in 2015 was 189 basis
points (bp), down by 13bp on the previous year (203 bp); the net
interest margin on customer loans/deposits declined even more
significantly, by 27bp to 196bp (2014; 222bp). In addition to inter-
est rate and margin developments on the assets and liabilities sides
in 2015, a volume effect should also be noted: average deposits
rose more strongly than loans (+10.5% compared with +1.5%).

These trends apply especially to the mature Austrian market, where
net interest declined across all customer segments (overall down by
6.9%, see table). In the wake of the accelerated convergence pro-
cess of the past two years, interest margins narrowed also in CEE
countries, where deposits increased at a disproportionately fast pace
in 2015 (deposits: +12.9%/loans: + 1.8 %; adjusted for exchange
rate movements, deposits: +20.9%/loans: +12.9%). Net interest
therefore also declined in the CEE business segment (—3.1 %); with-
out Russia, net interest in CEE rose by a low 1.8 %.

Net interest € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014 +- +- % CONST

Austrian customer business 1,247 | 1,340 -93 -6.9%

Retail & Corporates 895 974 -79 -81%
Private Banking 58 64 -5 -8.0%
CIB 294 302 -8 -28%

Central Eastern Europe (CEE) | 2,381 | 2456 -75 -31% +5.3%
Central Europe (CE) 627 625 +2 +03% -0.1%
South-East Europe (SEE) 1,063 | 1,002 +52 +52% +54%
Russia 590 697 -106 -153% +13.2%
Cross-regional ) 110 132 -22 -168% -16.8%

Corporate Center -242 | -285 +43 -151%

Bank Austria as a whole 3,386 | 3511 -125 -3.6% +23%

*) Cross-regional business (Profit Center Vienna, UCTAM restructuring unit etc.) and
CEE Corporate Center sub-holding company functions (capitalisation, liquidity manage-
ment, equity interest management).

In the three segments of Austrian customer business, net interest
continued to decline in 2015, by €93 million or 6.9% to €1,274 mil-
lion, although lending volume increased again (+2.8 %). The low
level of interest rates seen in the past years has a strong impact on
the mature Austrian market: customer interest rates fell to new lows
as there is intense competitive pressure on the assets side and
interest rates on the liabilities side can hardly be reduced further. In
2015, customer interest rates in lending business fell more strongly
than those on deposits. The resulting narrowing of the interest mar-
gin was further accentuated by a volume effect: deposits increased
more strongly (+8.3%) than loans (+2.8 %).

All business segments in Austria achieved significant growth in
new business. As a result of repayments, however, total business
volume rose only slightly. Disproportionately strong growth was
recorded in construction and housing finance in the retail bank-
ing sector, even after the higher valuation of loans following

appreciation of the Swiss franc in the middle of January 2015;
this resulted in slight market share gains for Bank Austria. On
the other hand, short-term finance and consumer loans declined.
Among deposits, growth was seen especially in demand depos-
its. The Retail subdivision recorded the strongest decline in net
interest (—9.5%), mainly because the interest margin narrowed
(—44bp). Developments in the Corporates subdivision were
slightly better; business with corporate customers was impacted
by the fact that key euro reference interest rates moved into
negative territory, with the 3-month Euribor remaining negative
from April onwards; this led to historically low levels of interest
rates on loans and deposits. Although financing terms were
extremely favourable in 2015, companies’ investment propensity
remained moderate and credit demand was weak. Nevertheless,
Bank Austria recorded slight growth in loans to corporate cus-
tomers, thereby gaining market share. The improvement was
supported by successful marketing initiatives (including the
energy efficiency package, which helps companies identify
financial assistance schemes and links them with financing
transactions, or loans for investment purposes backed by a Risk-
Sharing guarantee under an EIF framework agreement). Deposits
from corporate customers rose more strongly than loans
(+9.6 % compared with +1.9%); this was one of the reasons
why net interest was down by 7.6 % on the previous year and
the interest margin also declined (—18bp).

In the CIB Division’s business with large customers, lending volume
rose again after a long interval (year-end 2015/2014: +9.5%,
annual average growth: +2.4%). Demand for structured export
finance and working capital solutions increased while trends in
standard lending business were weak as customers remained
reluctant to take up loans and companies preferred liquidity. Fund-
ing activities of corporate customers were at a very low level in
2015 while new business in export finance and trade finance
showed a favourable development. Substantial excess liquidity in
the corporate sector translated into a strong increase in deposits
(+23.3% year-on-year/average growth: +15.2%), all of which in
the area of sight deposits, where interest rates are very low. Net
interest came close to the previous year’s level (—2.8 %) although
the interest margin narrowed (—12bp). Net interest generated by
the CEE Division was also lower than in the previous year (—€75 mil-
lion/—3.1% to €2,381 million). Without the special case of Russia
net interest in CEE increased moderately, by €31 million or 1.8 %,
to €1,791 million although volume based on this definition was up
by 4.4% on the previous year. While interest margins narrowed in
all country groups, they are still wide enough for net interest to
grow at a disproportionately high rate the next time volume
increases again. In euro terms, net interest generated in Russia
(€590 million) fell by €106 million or 15.3% on the previous year,
with average lending down by 5.7 %. Adjusted for exchange rate
movements (translated at constant exchange rates prevailing at the
end of 2013), net interest in Russia rose by 13.2 %, with volume
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growing by 25.9%. Both figures, especially volume, reflect the
higher valuation of foreign currency loans in rouble terms as a result
of exchange rate movements. In economic terms, the underlying
development is more likely to move in line with euro figures; about
one-half of lending volume is denominated in US dollar, for which
exchange rate movements against the rouble were similar to those
of the euro. Net interest in Central Europe (CE: +0.3 %) was stable,
due to expansion in the Czech Republic and in Slovakia (+2.8 %)
which offset the effect of persistently low interest rates. Special
mention should be made of the net interest performance of South-
East European countries (combined growth: +5.2 %), especially
Bulgaria but also the Western Balkan countries. In these countries,
interest rates are declining from a very high level (with inflation
close to zero and partly fixed exchange rates), enabling the local
banks to reduce interest rates on the deposit side. Bulgaria addition-
ally benefits from special effects (destination country adjacent to
Greece, market position after the end of the previous year’s local
banking crisis). Apart from developments in day-to-day commercial
banking activities, net interest was lower in some countries because
in 2014, when interest rates started to decline significantly, the local
banks (mainly in Romania and Hungary) had realised gains on sub-
stantial holdings of available-for-sale investments.

In 2015, net interest was strongly impacted by the higher cost,
reflecting market conditions, of maintaining liquidity and by the
cost of Tier 2 capital.

Net fees and commissions € million (2014 recast)

Total commercial spread
(customer rate loans less customer rate deposits in basis points of
lending volume and deposit volume; selection)

550

Bulgaria
500
450 Romania

— Turkey
400
< Central
and Eastern
350

Europe (CEE)

— Russia
300
250 \v — Czech Republic
and Slovakia
200
OO
150 ~|:'\D—D—D < Austrian
customer business
100

laelo3las]ar a2l a3l a4
2014 2015

2015 2014 +- +-% CONST

Austrian customer business 724 672 +53 +7.8%

Retail & Corporates 506 479 +28 +5.8%
Private Banking 114 109 +5 +46%
CB 104 84 +20 +23.8%

Central Eastern Europe (CEE) 718 702 +16  +22% +4.5%
Central Europe (CE) 295 2716 +20 +71% +6.8%
South-East Europe (SEE) 360 346 +14  +40% +4.1%
Russia 64 126 -62 -489% -31.8%
Cross-regional ) -2 -46 +44 -966% -97.4%

Corporate Center -3 -10 +6 -64.0%

Bank Austria as a whole 1439 | 1,364 +75 +55% +6.6%

*) Cross-regional business (Profit Center Vienna, UCTAM restructuring unit etc.) and CEE
Corporate Center sub-holding company functions (capitalisation, liquidity management,

equity interest management).

» Net fees and commissions increased by €75 million or 5.5%
to €1,439 million. This may be interpreted as a sign of stronger
commercial activity as the general wait-and-see attitude has partly
been overcome, if not in the financing sector at least in the area of
transactions. Particularly gratifying growth of €53 million or 7.8 %
to €724 million was achieved in Austrian customer business, with
the Retail subdivision making the largest contribution to growth
(+€27 million/+8.8 % to €329 million). Private Banking achieved
a further increase of 4.6 % on the high level of the previous year. In
both divisions, growth was driven by customers’ stronger propensity
to invest; while this is partly to be seen in the context of currently
unattractive interest rates on deposits, efforts to win new business in
mutual fund investments and asset management were successful.
The volume of mutual funds (at current prices) placed with retail cus-
tomers rose by 5.7 % year-on-year, to €6.0 billion at the end of
2015. As direct investments declined, growth in mutual fund invest-
ments indicates higher value creation. Private Banking recorded very
strong expansion of 16.3% in assets under management, to a total
of €8.3 hillion (if safe-custody business is included, +10.0% to
€14.4 billion). Despite sharp movements in share prices (in August/
September and towards year-end 2015), net inflows of funds were
recorded throughout the year. A new flat-rate fee model giving
investors considerable leeway also contributed to the favourable
development (see commentary on the Private Banking business
segment). The Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB) Division generated
net fees and commissions of €104 million in 2015, an increase of
€20 million or 23.8 % over the previous year. This was mainly due to
significant growth (+73.1 %) of financing services, which accounted
for one-half of net fees and commissions in CIB. Moreover, a large-
volume arrangement was settled in June 2015.

Net fees and commissions in the CEE business segment were
€718 million, slightly higher than in the previous year; without
Russia, a special case, net fees and commissions in CEE were up by
€77 million or 13.4% on 2014. Within CEE, trends vary from country
to country on account of structural differences as the significance of
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sources of net fees and commissions differs. In the Central European
countries, investment in mutual funds — currently supported by rising
disposable income — is a growing business line; significant increases
were achieved especially in the Czech Republic (+9.1%) and in
Hungary (+5.8%). In South-East Europe (+4.0%), growth in net fees
and commissions was partly driven by loan/guarantee commissions
and transaction services. In Russia, a strong decline was due to
technical reasons (commission paid for intra-group guarantees to
assume credit risk associated with major international customers).

» Net trading, hedging and fair value income again reached a sub-
stantial amount of €420 million in 2015, reflecting a number of factors
with effects partly offsetting one another. All of the decline of €67 million
or 13.8% on the previous year was accounted for by the Corporate
Center, where net trading, hedging and fair value income was €7 million
after €143 million. As mentioned before, the main reason was the expiry
of the participation in profits of the UniCredit Markets product line (effect:
—€99 million year-on-year). Net trading income from Austrian customer
business came to €84 million in 2015, up from €78 million in the previ-
ous year. The underlying trading volume is low, largely complementary
to commercial banking business, and the change was due to a more
favourable view of counterparty risk (CVA).

Net trading, hedging and fair value income € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014 +/- +/-%  CONST

Austrian customer business 84 78 +6  +7.8%

Retail & Corporates 34 24 +10 +401%
Private Banking 3 2 +1 +38.8%
CIB 48 52 -4 -8.3%

Central Eastern Europe (CEE) 329 266 +63 +239% +36.8%
CE 118 128 -10 -77% -86%
SEE 163 152 +12 +77% +8.1%
Russia 62 -30  +92 n.m. n.m.
Cross-regional -14 16 =31 n.m. n.m.

Corporate Center 7 143 -137 -95.4%
compensation agreement -2 98 -99
without compensation’) 8 45 =37 -821%

Bank Austria as a whole 420 487 —-67 -138% -7.0%
without compensation”) 421 389 +32 +83%

*) Without the participation in profits of the UniCredit Markets product line (compensation
agreement related to the sale of UniCredit CAIB), which was included in the income
statement in 2014 for the last time.

For the banking subsidiaries in CEE, net trading, hedging and fair
value income is of greater significance because of local interest-rate
and exchange-rate volatility, management of larger foreign currency
volume and the related customer needs: the CEE Division’s contribu-
tion to net trading, hedging and fair value income totalled €329 mil-
lion in 2015, an increase of €63 million or 23.9% (adjusted for
exchange rate movements: +36.8 %), although the sub-holding com-
pany functions assigned to the CEE business segment had an
adverse impact on net trading performance. Trading in interest-rate/
foreign-exchange derivatives developed very favourably against the

background of volatile market conditions. Securities trading, on the
other hand, was lagging behind the trend seen in the previous year,
when strong interest rate reductions made it possible to realise gains
in the trading book. In regional terms, all country groups reported
positive trading results: Central Europe (CE) generated net trading
income of €118 million, with growth in the Czech Republic/Slovakia
being offset by a decline in Hungary (after large gains realised in
2014). Our banking subsidiaries in South-East Europe (SEE) achieved
strong increases in net trading income (+7.7 % to €163 million);
commercial foreign exchange trading made the largest contribution
in this context. Our Russian bank recovered from the setback in the
turbulent fourth quarter of 2014 (—€51 million) and achieved a turn-
around in 2015, with net trading income of €62 million (after a net
trading loss of €30 million in the previous year) thanks to a good
performance from derivatives and bond trading, despite the adverse
environment in foreign exchange trading and rising negative valuation
effects (CVA) in trading operations.

» Dividend income and other income from equity investments
came to €535 million in 2015, up by €39 million or 7.8 %. The
pro-rata profit contribution of €349 million from Yapi Kredi ve
Bankasi, a joint venture in Turkey with our partner Kog Group, is
included in this item in accordance with IFRS 11. The amount
contributed by the Turkish bank was again slightly above the level of
the previous year (+€8 million or +2.4%; adjusted for exchange
rate movements: +6.3 %) despite unfavourable economic conditions
in much of 2015 and depreciation of the local currency. This good
performance resulted from very strong volume expansion (loans:
+29.6 %), with a favourable development of net interest, and from
continued growth of fee and commission income. The other companies
accounted for using the equity method, mostly financial services
providers in Austria, also performed well.

P Net other expenses/income covers many minor items not
included in core banking business. This item showed net income of
€95 million in 2015, a decline of €29 million on the figure for the
previous year. The decrease reflects the sale of Istraturist, a Croatian
tourism company, in November 2014, so that income from the 2015
season was no longer received.

@ The trend in operating costs reflects the success of various cost
reduction initiatives in Austria and CEE. In 2015 operating costs were
€3,076 million, down by €61 million or 1.9% compared with 2014.
Even when adjusted for (in this case favourable) exchange rate
effects, costs present a stable picture (+0.5%). An analysis by type
of costs shows that payroll costs (€1,562 million) were reduced by
€86 million or 5.2 % year-on-year, and this was the main factor in
overall cost reduction. Other administrative expenses, depreciation/
amortisation and recovery of expenses rose only slightly, by a com-
bined 1.7 %, despite modernisation initiatives in customer business
(digitalisation, implementation of the new branch concept in Austria
and several other countries, development of new software).
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Operating costs (increase = +) € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014  +/~  +/-% CONST

Austrian customer business 1,433 1,431 +1 +0.1%

...with the Corporate Center | 1,601 1,635 -85 -2.1%
Central Eastern Europe (CEE) 1,475 1501 =26 -1.7% +32%
Bank Austria as a whole 3,076 3136 -61 -19% +0.5%
Cost /income ratio
Austrian customer business 67.8% | 66.2% +1.6 pp

...with the Corporate Center | 77.7% | 79.3%7) —1.6pp
Central Eastern Europe (CEE) | 38.7% | 39.3% —-0.6 pp

... without at-equity

contribution fromTurkey 2) 425% | 431% -0.6 pp
Bank Austria as a whole 52.3% | 52.4% -0.1pp

... without at-equity

contribution fromTurkey ) 55.7% | 55.6% +0.1 pp
Types of costs
Payroll costs 1,562 1648 -86 -52% -27%

... average FTEs 9 30,946 | 31,543 -597 -1.9%
Other administrative expenses | 1,356 1,318 +39 +3.0% +4.9%
Depreciation/amortisation
on tangible/intangible assets 159 172 14 -79% -27%

1) Figures are comparable as 2014 data were adjusted for the share in profits of the UniCredit
Markets product line. / 2) The contribution from Turkey is accounted for using the equity
method. It is included in operating income but not in operating costs. / 3) Without operations
classified as held for sale (Ukraine and Immobilien Holding). / pp = percentage points

Total costs in Austria (customer business including the Corporate Center)
declined by €35 million or 2.1% to €1,601 million, with payroll costs
decreasing by €56 million or 6.1 %. Our Initiative 2020, implemented from
2014 until the middle of 2015, helped to reduce effective employment,
primarily through part-time models, and provided flexible working arrange-
ments. In average terms for 2015, and without Immobilien Holding which
was classified as held for sale, payroll costs in Austria reflected a decrease
of 307 full-time equivalents (FTEs, —4.3 %) in the reporting period com-
pared with the previous year. Staff reductions were most pronounced in
the Retail subdivision of the Retail & Corporates business segment (down
by an average 272 FTEs). The cost/income ratio in this business seg-
ment was nevertheless much too high at 99.2% and, on account of lower
revenues in 2015, higher than in 2014 (96.4 %). The retail banking opera-
tions are to be restructured on a sustainable basis with the package of
measures adopted at the end of 2015 with the aim of increasing revenue
and cutting costs. The cost/income ratio for Austria as a whole (customer
business segments including the Corporate Center) was 77.7 % compared
with 79.3% in 2014 (without income from the compensation agreement).

In euro terms, operating costs in the CEE Division amounted to
€1,475 million. At this level they were 1.7 % lower compared with the
previous year and up by 3.2 % at constant exchange rates, with both
effects being due to developments in Russia (down by 16.3% in euro
terms/up by 11.8% in rouble terms). Payroll costs in Russia rose as a
result of higher social charges, and other administrative expenses
increased in connection with IT projects; moreover, rent agreements
denominated in US dollars had an impact on account of exchange rate
movements. Without Russia, operating costs rose by only 1.3%

(adjusted for exchange rate movements: +1.2%). In average terms for
2015, staff numbers in the CEE Division (without Turkey and Ukraine) were
24,088 FTEs, more or less unchanged. The decling of 289 FTES (—1.2%)
was accounted for by Croatia (—303 FTEs) following the deconsolidation
of Istraturist. The cost/income ratio in CEE — without Turkey, whose contri-
bution is accounted for using the equity method and is therefore included
in operating income but not in operating costs — declined by 0.6 percent-
age points to 42.5%. In 2015, the cost/income ratio for Bank Austria as

a whole remained more or less constant at 55.7 % (2014: 55.6 %).

P Net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments in 2015 were €1,007 million, up by €226 million or
28.8% on the previous year (€782 million). The increase is largely due to
a special effect; the mandatory conversion of foreign currency loans at
historical exchange rates in Croatia, required to be carried out with retro-
active effect, resulted in a charge of €205 million in 2015. This one-off
effect was recognised in net write-downs of loans as the loans concerned
thereby became impaired. Without the one-off effect, the provisioning
charge amounted to €803 million, an increase of €21 million or 2.7 %.
In Russia the provisioning charge started to rise in 2015, from €85 million
in 2014 to €214 million in the reporting year. The increase is not that sur-
prising in view of the challenging environment. In addition, net write-downs
of loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments in the cross-
regional loan portfolio rose from €24 million to €148 million. This devel-
opment reflected specific loans granted in Central and Eastern Europe,
including Ukraine, which were booked by UniCredit Bank Austria AG.

=> Besides this development, 2015 saw net write-downs of loans and
provisions for guarantees and commitments decline in all countries,
Austria and GEE, with the exception of Russia and the cross-regional loan
portfolio booked in the Profit Center Vienna (PCV). Without Russia and
the cross-regional loan portfolio the provisioning charge amounted to
€441 million, one-third (—34.5%) lower than in the previous year.

Net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees
and commitments (increase = +, decrease = -) € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014 +/- +- % CONST
Austrian customer business S 52 =50 -94.7%
Corporate Center —-127 55 —67 n.m.
... Austria incl.
Corporate Center =100 | 107 -117 n.m.
Central Eastern Europe (CEE) 1,017 675 +343 +50.8% +639%
... without FX, Russia, PCV 2 450 565 —-115 -20.3%
... Central Europe (CE) 109 149 -39 -263% -264%
... South-East Europe (SEE)
without FX 341 417 -76 -182% -182%
... FX conversion Croatia 205 +205 n.m.
... Russia 214 85 +129 >100% >700%
... cross-regional 148 24 +124 >100% >7100%
Bank Austria as a whole 1,007 782 +226 +28.8% +40.2%
... without FX, Russia, PCV 2) 441 673 +232 -34.5%

1) Negative amount = income from net release of provisions / 2) Without mandatory
conversion in Croatia (“FX"), without Russia and without “cross-regional”, i.e. without the
cross-regional portfolio booked in the Profit Center Vienna. / n.m. = not meaningful
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In Austria (customer business including the Corporate Center) a net
release of provisions led to income of €10 million; this compared with a
provisioning charge of €107 million in the previous year. The cost of risk
(provisioning charge/income in per cent of average lending volume) is a
negative 2 basis points (op) after 19bp in 2014. The high asset quality of
the loan portfolio was underlined across all Austrian customer business
segments: in the Retail subdivision net write-downs of loans and provisions
for guarantees and commitments temporarily increased in early 2015 as
the Swiss franc’s link to the euro ended and the currency appreciated. The
Corporates subdivision benefited from a net release of provisions, reflecting
the very good quality of its loan portfolio. Overall, the provisioning charge

in Retail & Corporates declined significantly to €28 million compared

with €56 million in 2014. In the Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB)
business segment, where additions to loan loss provisions remained at

a generally low level, the release of a provision for a major customer in

the middle of the year resulted in a net release of loan loss provisions in
2015 as a whole (positive contribution of €25 million). In view of market
developments and Bank Austria’s experienced risk management, the risk
situation in Austria is favourable even without the above-mentioned effects.

In the CEE business segment net write-downs of loans and provisions for
guarantees and commitments in 2015 were €1,017 million, significantly
higher than the previous year’s figure (+ €343 million or +50.8%,
adjusted for exchange rate movements: +63.9 %). Besides the one-off
effect in Croatia (+€205 million), the increase — as mentioned earlier —
was due to developments in Russia (+€129 million) and in the cross-
regional CEE portfolio (+€ 124 million), which was impacted by the
Russia/Ukraine conflict. In the other countries the provisioning charge
declined by a combined €115 million or 20.3%. Contributions to the
decline came from the Central European countries — reflecting their good
economic performance —, led by our banking subsidiary in the Czech
Republic/Slovakia with a reduction of one-third (—32.4 %) and by Slovenia
and Hungary, following the reduction of foreign currency exposure in these
countries. In South-East Europe (SEE) the combined charge for loan loss
provisions (without the special effect in Croatia) declined by 18.2%; the
decrease was strongest in Bulgaria and Romania, but also in Serbia. The
improvement in the cost of risk was most pronounced in the latter two
countries, although it was still one of the highest at 225bp (Romania) and
182bp (Serbia). In Russia, the provisioning charge came to €214 million,
two and a half times the 2014 figure (€85 million). The increase reflects
the commercial impact of the depreciation of the rouble, the recession
and the sanctions on the balance sheets of corporate customers. Until
the crisis started, Russia was among the countries with the lowest cost-
of-risk levels and in 2014 the cost of risk was still as low as 66 bp of
average lending volume; in the reporting year, however, the cost of risk
rose to 177 bp. On this basis it was already above the CEE average
(without FX Croatia) of 140bp.

Asset quality of Bank Austria’s portfolio improved in the course of 2015,
despite adverse impacts from Russia and the cross-regional portfolio:
non-performing exposures declined by 6.1% to €10.4 hillion and lending
volume rose by 2.1 % (gross) or 2.3% (net of loan loss provisions).

Most recently, non-performing exposures (NPE) accounted for 8.4 % of
gross loans to customers compared with 9.2 % at the end of December
2014. In net terms, i.e. measured by lending volume after deduction of
loan loss provisions, the NPE ratio was 3.9 % after 4.3%. While specific
write-downs were also reduced, as a result of developments in Austria,
they declined more slowly than non-performing exposures. As a result,
the coverage ratio improved from 55.4 % to 56.3 % compared with the
previous year.

In CEE the NPE ratio was 11.8% (in net terms, 5.9 %) at the end of
2015, down by 0.6 percentage points on year-end 2014. The CEE
business segment also benefited from a significant reduction of

Lending volume and asset quality )

(€ million) 31 DEC. 2015 31 DEC. 2014 +H- +H-%
Bank Austria as a whole

Gross loans to customers 123,068 120,536 +2,532 +2.1%
Total write-downs —6,691 -6,804 +113 -1.7%
Net loans to customers 116,377 113,732 +2,645 +2.3%
Gross non-performing exposures 10,381 11,057 -675 -6.1%
... % of gross loans

to customers 8.4% 9.2% -0.7 pp
Specific write-downs —-5,842 -6,130 +287 -4.7%
Coverage ratio 56.3% 55.4% +0.8pp
Net non-performing exposures 4,539 4927 -388 -7.9%
... % of net loans

to customers 3.9% 4.3% -0.4pp
Central Eastern Europe (CEE)

Gross loans to customers 61,439 60,544 +896 +1.5%
Total write-downs —4,337 -4,165 -172 +41%
Net loans to customers 57,102 56,378 +724 +1.3%
Gross non-performing exposures 7,220 7,499 =279 -3.7%
... % of gross loans

to customers 11.8% 12.4% —-0.6 pp
Specific write-downs -3,857 -3,836 -21 +05%
Coverage ratio 53.4% 51.2% +2.3 pp
Net non-performing exposures 3,363 3662 -300 -82%
... % of net loans

to customers 5.9% 6.5% -0.6 pp
Austria (incl. Corporate Center)

Gross loans to customers 61,629 59,992 +1,636 +2.7%
Total write-downs —2,354 -2,639 +284 -10.8%
Net loans to customers 59,274 57,353 +1,921 +3.3%
Gross non-performing exposures 3,162 3,557 =396 -11.1%
... % of gross loans

to customers 51% 5.9% -0.8 pp
Specific write-downs —1,985 -2,293 +308 —-13.4%
Coverage ratio 62.8% 64.5% —1.7pp
Net non-performing exposures 1177 1,264 -88 —-7.0%
... % of net loans

to customers 2.0% 2.2% -0.2 pp

*) Ukraine (classified as held for sale) and Turkey (accounted for using the equity method)
are no longer included in the relevant items of the statement of financial position and of
the income statement. Comparative figures for 2014 reflect the figures in the statement
of financial position. / pp = percentage points
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Cost of risk by country (Cost of risk = net write-downs of loans
expressed as basis points of average lending volume)
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1) CEE Corporate Center and Profit Center Vienna (also includes the Ukraine portfolio).
2) Turkey not included in the total because it is accounted for using the equity method.
3) Austrian customer business including the Corporate Center.

non-performing exposures (—3.7 %). The coverage ratio improved to
53.4% after 51.2% in the previous year. Non-performing exposures
in Austria declined substantially, by 11.1% to €3.2 billion. As total
lending volume in Austria amounted to €61.6 billion, the NPE ratio
declined to 5.1% (year-end 2014: 5.9%). In net terms, the NPE ratio
in Austria continued to fall to 2.0% (after 2.2 % at year-end 2014);
at the end of 2015, the coverage ratio was 62.8 % after 64.5%.

=> Operating income less costs and net write-downs of loans and
provisions for guarantees and commitments gives a net operating
profit of €1,792 million for 2015. The figure was down by €272 million
or 13.2% on the previous year because of the impact of various
one-off effects explained above (expiry of the participation in profits of
UniCredit Markets, foreign currency conversion in Croatia) and was
partly also lower due to exchange rate movements. In purely economic
terms, net operating profit slightly exceeded the previous year’s level.

Net operating profit” € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014 +/- +- % CONST
Operating profit 2,800 [ 2,846 -47 -1.6% 4.8%
.. without participation in
profits of UniCredit Markets 2801 | 2748 53 1.9% 8.6%
Net write-downs of loans -1,007 | -782 -226 288% 40.2%
.. without FX/Croatia -803 | -782 -21 27% 14.6%
Net operating profit 1,792 | 2,064 -272 -132% -85%
.. without one-off effects 1,998 | 1,967 32 1.6% 6.2%

*) Operating profit less net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments.

Net operating profit in Austrian customer business exactly matched
the previous year’s figure; a decline in operating income was offset
by cost reductions and the improvement in net write-downs of loans.
The banking subsidiaries in CEE countries (CEE Division without
cross-regional items) also achieved a net operating profit which —
without the Croatia effect — matched the figure for the previous year.
This means that the bank’s wide diversification helped to balance out
a weaker performance in Russia and increased expenses related to
overall bank management.

Net operating profit1) by region and division € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014 +- +-% CONST

Austrian customer business 679 678 +0  +0.0%

Central Eastern Europe (CEE) 1,324 | 1,648 -324 -197% -132%
.. CEE countries without

FX/Croatia 2 1,754 | 1,737 +16 +09% +6.5%
.. cross-regional +

FX/Croatia 3 —430 -89 -341 >100%

Corporate Center -210 | -262 +52 -19.8%
.. without participation in

profits of UniCredit Markets =209 | -360 +151 —-42.0%

Net operating profit 1,792 | 2,064 -272 -132% -85%
.. without one-off effects 1,998 | 1,967 +32 +1.6% +62%

1) Operating profit less net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments. / 2) FX/Croatia = effect from the conversion of foreign currency loans.
/ 3) Cross-regional business (Profit Center Vienna, UCTAM restructuring unit etc.) and
CEE Corporate Center sub-holding company functions (capitalisation, liquidity manage-
ment, equity interest management) plus effect from the conversion of foreign currency
loans (FX/Croatia).

@ In addition to a number of minor items, the non-operating items
from net operating profit to net profit attributable to the owners of the
parent company in the 2015 income statement reflect three factors
which had a strong impact on performance: first, the effects and
provisions related to the package of measures which was adopted at
the end of 2015 for restructuring Austrian operations and enhancing
their profitability; second, the withdrawal from Ukraine; and third,
large systemic charges.

Among the items between net operating profit and profit before tax,
provisions for risks and charges were €137 million, slightly lower than
in the previous year (2014: €147 million). The total figure includes a
charge of €42 million resulting from a tax risk associated with a trans-
action in 2010 involving an equity interest. A provision of €53 million
was made for risks arising from the workout of Ukraine-related exposure.
Without these two factors, provisions for risks and charges in 2015
amounted to only €42 million, mainly relating to legal risks and litigation.

Systemic charges including bank levies had the strongest impact
on net operating profit in 2015. These charges increased by 37.7 %
to €326 million (2014: €237 million). In Austria (after allocation for
segment reporting purposes), bank levies and other systemic charges
totalled €171 million, of which €126 million related to the bank levy
(2014: €116 million) and €45 million related to contributions to the
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deposit guarantee scheme and the bank resolution fund. In CEE the total
charge was €155 million, of which bank levies (in Hungary and Slovakia
and in the PGV) accounted for €41 million and other systemic charges
totalled €114 million, of which €86 million contributed to the deposit
guarantee schemes and €28 million contributed to the bank resolution
funds in Hungary, Croatia, Slovenia, Bulgaria and Romania. Without these
systemic charges, profit before tax would have been 17.0% higher.

The item integration/restructuring costs reflects the above-men-
tioned package of strategic measures and, as part of the measures,
the transfer of pension entitlements to the state scheme under
the Austrian General Social Insurance Act (Allgemeines Sozialversiche-
rungsgesetz — ASVG). In December 2015, UniCredit Bank Austria AG
and the Employees’ Council made an agreement to the effect that
for almost all of the employees who have rights to future benefits
(essentially the active employees covered by the bank’s own pension
scheme) the bank’s own pension system is terminated and the
rights to future pension benefits will consequently be transferred to
the state scheme under the Austrian General Social Insurance Act.
The employees concerned will receive compensation, in the form of
one-off lump-sum payments, for any disadvantages resulting from
this transfer. In addition, UniCredit Bank Austria AG has to make a
payment, defined by law, to the state scheme under the Austrian
General Social Insurance Act for the transfer of the rights to future
pension benefits. The agreement with the Employees’ Council was
signed with legal effect in December 2015 and terminates the
bank’s own pension system for the employees concerned upon
expiry of 29 February 2016. The employees concerned are auto-
matically, by operation of law, taken over by the ASVG state
scheme. While the entitlements will not be transferred, and the pay-
ments will not be made, until the first quarter of 2016, the effect of
this plan curtailment and the related reduction of the present value
of the pension obligation are to be recognised in the financial state-
ments in accordance with IAS 19 already in 2015. The relevant
pension provision was released and the related effect on the
income statement is reflected in the item “Integration/restructuring
costs”. This effect was offset by provisions for the transfer to the
ASVG state scheme and for compensation payments to the employ-
ees concerned. Integration/restructuring costs also include provi-
sions made for the restructuring of the Austrian business model in
the next three years and for the resulting need for adjusting effec-
tive employment figures (FTEs). The measures are aimed at imple-
menting a new advisory services model for retail banking opera-
tions, based on a leaner product range and further digitalisation,
and at extensively overhauling the Corporate Center, including the
related expenses for staff reductions. Outdated software which is
no longer needed for the new strategy will be written off. The item
“Integration/restructuring costs” in 2015 therefore reflects income
of €312 million, after a small expense of €14 million in the previ-
ous year. As a result of expenses which had to be recognised
directly in equity, the balance of effects in the income statement
and in equity was slightly negative.

The item “Net income/loss from investments” shows a small loss
of €20 million, while the comparative figure for the previous year
shows income of €66 million, reflecting gains on the sale of real
estate (including the head office building) in 2014.

=> Profit before tax for 2015 was €1,621 million, €112 million or
6.5% down on the figure for the previous year.

Non-operating items € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014 +/- +-%
Net operating profit?) 1,792 2,064 -272 -13.2%
Provisions for risks and
charges -137 —147 +10 -6.8%
Systemic charges 2 —-326 -237 -89  +37.7%
Integration/restructuring costs 312 -14 +326 n.m.
Net income/loss from
investments -20 66 —-86 n.m.
Sub-total 1 -171 -331 +160 —48.4%
Profit before tax 1,621 1,733 -112 —6.5%
Income tax —-86 —296 +209 -70.9%
Discontinued operations3) -303 -132 -172 >100%
Non-controlling interests 4 93 23 +70 >100%
Sub-total 2 -296 —405 +108  -26.7%
... non-operating items 1+2 —-467 -736 +268 -36.5%
Net profit5) 1,325 1,329 -4 -0.3%

1) Operating profit less net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees
and commitments. / 2) Bank levies and other systemic charges (without FTT, which
is included in net other expenses/income). / 3) Total profit or loss after tax from
discontinued operations. / 4) Minority interests / 5) Net profit attributable to the owners
of the parent company. / n.m. = not meaningful

@ Among the items to be deducted from profit before tax to deter-
mine net profit, the largest impact came from “Total profit or loss
after tax from discontinued operations”: in line with Group strategy,
which focuses on growth — and the required allocation of capital —
in CEE countries with higher sustainable growth and earnings potential,
and on further reducing risk, UniCredit Bank Austria AG and UniCredit
SpA have signed a binding agreement for the transfer of Ukrsotsbank
to the Alfa Group in exchange for shares. Ukrsotshank, the banking
subsidiary in Ukraine, will continue to be classified in the statement
of financial position as a disposal group held for sale until the trans-
action is completed; the closing of the transaction, subject to resolu-
tions adopted by the corporate bodies in this context, is expected for
the current year. The income statement items applicable to Ukrsots-
bank were combined and are included, together with write-downs
and additional expenses, in the item “Total profit or loss after tax
from discontinued operations”. The current loss in 2015 and
impairment charges recognised in respect of Ukrsotshank in June
and December 2015 in accordance with IFRS 5 (€298 million),
together with the effects from consolidation, had a negative impact of
€408 million (2014: —€180 million) on the item “Total profit or loss
after tax from discontinued operations”. A second asset group classi-
fied as held for sale is the Immobilien Holding GmbH Group (with its
subsidiaries and Wien Mitte Immobilien GmbH and that company’s
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parent company Wien Mitte Holding GmbH), which has an extensive
portfolio of properties throughout Austria. This portfolio is gradually
being sold in a structured sales process. Gains on sales amounted to
€105 million in 2015 (2014: €48 million). On balance, total profit or
loss after tax from discontinued operations shows a loss of €303 mil-
lion compared with a loss of €132 million in 2014.

The item “Non-controlling interests” shows income of €93 million
for 2015 (2014: +€23 million). This is explained by the fact that of
the total loss arising from Ukrsotsbank, €111 million — including a
pro-rata share of the impairment charges — was attributable to
UniCredit SpA, which is a minority shareholder in Ukrsotsbank.

Income tax was €86 million in 2015, significantly lower than in
2014 (€296 million) because the balance of changes in deferred tax
assets (+€290 million) and deferred tax liabilities (—€284 million)
was slightly positive (+€6 million) after a negative amount in the
previous year (—€108 million). Moreover a significant amount of
€252 million in deferred tax liabilities is offset directly against equity.

=> With the inclusion of non-operating items after profit before tax
(a combined charge of €296 million after €405 million in 2014),
net profit attributable to the owners of the parent company for
2015 was €1,325 million, only €4 million or 0.3% below the level
of the previous year.

Net profit1) € million (2014 recast)
2015 2014 +/- +-%
Austrian customer business 379 446 -67 -151%
Retail subdivision -62 20 -83 n.m.
Corporates subdivision 236 218 +18 +8.4%
... Retail & Corporates? 184 250 -66 -26.5%
... Private Banking 38 40 -2  -49%
... Corporates & Investment
Banking 157 156 +1  +05%
Central Eastern Europe (CEE) 604 1,003 -399 -39.7%
... CEE countries 3 1,194 1,250 -55  -4.4%
... cross-regional 4 -590 —247 -343 >100%
Corporate Center 342 -120 +462 n.m.
Bank Austria as a whole 1,325 1,329 -4 -0.3%

1) Net profit attributable to the owners of the parent company. / 2) The Retail & Corporates
Division includes Leasing and Factoring. / 3) Total for banking subsidiaries in CEE. /
4) Cross-regional business (Profit Center Vienna etc.) and CEE Corporate Center
sub-holding company functions. Includes total profit or loss after tax and valuation
processes from discontinued operations in Ukraine.

Return on equity (ROE after tax), based on average equity (after
deduction of the cash flow hedge reserve and the available-for-sale
reserve in accordance with I1AS 39, of actuarial losses in accordance
with I1AS 19 and of non-controlling interests) was 9.4 % for 2015
(2014: 9.7 %).

@ The three Austrian customer business segments contributed
€379 million to net profit in 2015. The €67 million decline over the
previous year was due to developments in the Retail & Corporates
Division (—€66 million), within which the Retail subsegment experi-
enced a deterioration of €83 million and posted a net loss of €62 million.
Performance of the other business segments was stable (see table),
with the Corporates subsegment showing a very favourable improvement
and the Private Banking Division and the Corporate & Investment
Banking Division again achieving good results and high returns (also
in a comparison within the banking sector).

The Central Eastern Europe Division (CEE) contributed €604 mil-
lion to net profit in 2015 (2014: €1,003 million); it should be noted
that the figure reflects exceptional burdens (Ukraine) and one-off
effects (mandatory conversion of foreign currency loans in Croatia).
Operations in the CEE countries made a combined net profit of
€1,194 million. This is only 4.4% below the previous year’s figure;
given the mixed environment, an impressive performance made
possible by the CEE Division’s broad diversification. The results of
the cross-regional units in CEE (a combined —€590 million) reflect
the impacts from divisional steering functions, the management of
the cross-regional loan portfolio and of international guarantees, but
first and foremost the charge related to the workout of exposures in
Ukraine, which — with all related positive and negative effects after
tax and non-controlling interests and including consolidation effects
— had an adverse impact of €367 million on net profit in 2015.

The favourable contribution to net profit by the Corporate Center
(+€342 million after —€120 million) reflects the aforementioned
changes in provisions in connection with the transfer of some of the
pension obligations to the state scheme, as well as provisions made
for the comprehensive restructuring programme in Austria. These
measures are taken with a view to increasing, on a sustainable basis,
the profitability of Austrian retail banking business and the efficiency
of operations in Austria.
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Financial position and capital resources

As at 31 December 2015, Bank Austria’s total assets were
€193.6 billion, up by €4.5 billion or 2.4% on year-end 2014.
This development reflects moderate growth in loans and receiva-
bles with customers and a strong rise in deposits from customers.
Growth/declines in other areas partly offset one another. Hedging
derivatives on the assets side and the liabilities side declined
from their year-end 2014 levels, as did financial assets/liabilities
held for trading. Financial market investments, including holdings
of government bonds, which are important for the bank’s liquidity
management, rose strongly. Growth was also seen in loans and
receivables with banks. Non-current assets and disposal groups
classified as held for sale were lower than in the previous year.

A significant change on the liabilities side was the release of pro-
visions for risks and charges. Equity increased slightly, reflecting
the net profit for 2015.

® On the assets side, loans and receivables with customers
amounted to €116.4 billion at the end of 2015, accounting for
60.1% of total assets. The increase of €2.6 billion or 2.3%
came mostly from Austrian customer business, where lending
volume rose by 5.1 %, while credit expansion in the CEE business
segment (in most country groups and in overall terms) remained
unusually low (+0.6 %; at constant exchange rates: +2.6%). In
Austria, lending volume picked up during the year, a development

seen in all segments. At +6.0%, growth was most pronounced
in the Retail subsegment, although this was largely due to a
statistical effect when the Swiss franc’s link to the euro was
discontinued in the middle of January 2015 and the currency
appreciated, leading to a higher valuation of loans. 2015 was
characterised by large volumes of repayments and new loans. In
the Corporates subsegment, credit growth was positive though
moderate (+2.9%), reflecting the restraint exercised by corpo-
rates and the ample liquidity of companies; growth was sup-
ported by a number of initiatives and by loans made available
through financial assistance schemes. Lending volume in the
Corporates & Investment Banking business segment expanded at
a disproportionately strong rate of 9.5%. Demand for structured
export finance and working capital solutions picked up, while
standard lending business grew much more slowly on account of
continued investment restraint by corporate customers and their
preference for liquidity. In CEE, loans expanded by a slow 0.6 %
during the year, although the growth pattern differed considerably
among the various regions. Loans and receivables with customers
grew by 6.3% and 6.7 % at our banking subsidiaries in the
Czech Republic/Slovakia and Hungary, respectively, reflecting
the good economic performance of these countries, and strong
growth was also seen in Bosnia and Herzegovina, and in Serbia;
lending volume contracted in Bulgaria and Croatia. Loans and

Major items in the statement of financial position (€ million)
31 DEC. 2015 31 DEC. 2014 CHANGE
+/- +-%

ASSETS

Financial market investments ") 25,383 22,830 +2,553 +11.2%
Financial assets held for trading and hedging derivatives 6,303 7,484 -1,182 -15.8%
Loans and receivables with banks 32,214 30,542 +1,672 +55%
Loans and receivables with customers 116,377 113,732 +2,645 +2.3%
Investments in associates and joint ventures 4,741 4,644 +97 +2.1%
Intangible assets 221 171 +49 +28.9%
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 2,467 3,600 -1,134 -31.5%
Other asset items 5,933 6,114 —181 -3.0%
Total assets 193,638 189,118 +4,520 +2.4%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Financial liabilities held for trading and hedging derivatives 5,424 6,755 -1,332 -19.7%
Deposits from banks 23,432 23,696 —-263 -1.1%
Deposits from customers 110,346 102,271 +8,075 +7.9%
Debt securities in issue 28,802 30,014 -1,212 -4.0%
... Direct funding (deposits from customers and debt securities in issue) 139,148 132,285 +6,864 +52%
Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale 1,977 1,845 +133 +7.2%
Provisions for risks and charges 4,830 6,076 —1,247 -20.5%
Equity 15,394 14,925 +469 +3.1%
Other liability items 3,433 3,536 -103 —2.9%
Total liabilities and equity 193,638 189,118 +4,520 +2.4%

*) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss + available-for-sale financial assets + held-to-maturity investments.
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receivables with customers in Russia are difficult to interpret on
account of exchange rate effects: the euro and the US dollar
appreciated against the Russian rouble by 11.5% and 24.4 %,
respectively, in 2015, resulting in a higher valuation of foreign
currency loans, which account for a substantial proportion of
total loans. Lending volume in local currency in Russia was up
by 5.2 %, while contracting by 5.7 % in euro terms. Without
Russia, lending volume in CEE had expanded by only 2.1% at
year-end 2015.

Loans and receivables with banks (€32.2 billion) were up by
5.5% at the end of 2015 compared with year-end 2014. The
increase was of a technical nature and related to deposits with
central banks (also reflecting compliance with minimum reserve
requirements). At the end of 2015, financial market invest-
ments (€25.4 billion) were €2.6 billion or 11.2% up on the
figure at year-end 2014. This mainly reflects larger holdings of
liquid funds in the form of sovereign debt securities (+€3.1 billion
or +16.4% to €22.7 billion). The holdings are widely diversi-
fied and are almost all included in the category “available-for-
sale financial assets”. The increase in 2015 resulted from
larger holdings of Hungarian (+€1.0 billion) and Spanish
(+€0.8 billion) bonds, as well as of supranational bonds (Lux-
embourg +€0.8 billion). The total amount of Russian govern-
ment bonds was €0.9 billion (4% of total volume) at the end of
2015, an increase of €0.4 billion. Holdings of Austrian govern-
ment bonds (€9.1 billion) declined (—€0.5 billion); at the end of
2015 they accounted for 40% of total holdings of sovereign
debt securities compared with 49% at the end of 2014.

@ On the liabilities side, deposits from customers totalled
€110.3 billion, increasing by €8.1 billion or 7.9% in 2015 and
thereby making the strongest contribution to growth. All of the
increase related to deposits repayable on demand, which
accounted for 59 % of total deposits. The yield curve (market
interest rates over the maturity range) is currently very low and
flat, providing no incentive to make deposits for longer periods.
Deposits in the Austrian customer business segments rose by
€2.3 hillion or 4.2% to €56.2 billion. The strongest increase
was recorded in the Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB) busi-
ness segment, where deposits grew by 23.3 %. Growth in sight
deposits in 2015 reflected excess liquidity in the corporate sector;
in the previous year, attractive terms and conditions had been
offered on deposits for terms exceeding 30 days (“Basel 3
products”), and therefore time deposits rose strongly. The other
Austrian segments recorded moderate deposit growth. The CEE
business segment experienced very strong growth of €6.2 billion
or 12.6% (adjusted for exchange rates, +14.7 %) in customer
deposits in 2015, which rose to a total of €55.8 hillion, almost
closing the gap compared with outstanding loans. In percentage
terms, all countries saw double-digit growth in deposits: Central
Europe +17.6%, Bulgaria +24.6 % (also because the country

is adjacent to Greece and the local banking subsidiary won new
deposits within Bulgaria after the end of the local banking crisis
in 2014), Romania +11.5% and the Western Balkan countries
+17.3%. (Russia was an exception, with growth of only 3.0%
in euro terms but 14.9% in rouble terms).

Debt securities in issue totalled €28.8 billion at the end of
2015, a decline of €1.2 billion or 4.0% on year-end 2014
resulting from redemptions in the Corporate Center (asset/ liability
management). In February and September 2015, UniCredit
Bank Austria AG issued benchmark covered bonds with a volume
of €500 million each at very low spreads (between 3 and 5 basis
points over mid-swap) with maturities of seven and ten years (in
2014, the bank had launched four new issues of €500 million
each). Three covered bond issues were also launched in the
Czech Republic, with a total volume of €616 million (the large-
volume issues in Turkey are not included in the calculation be-
cause the shareholding interest in the Turkish bank is accounted
for using the equity method).

Direct funding (deposits from customers and debt securities in
issue) totalled €139.1 billion (+€6.9 billion/+5.2% compared
with year-end 2014). This means that direct funding covers
lending volume to the extent of 120 %.

Provisions for risks and charges declined by €1.2 billion or
20.5% to €4.8 billion in 2015 as a result of a net release of
provisions. This movement in provisions for risks and charges is
explained by the reduction of €2.0 billion in provisions for post-
retirement benefit obligations (in addition to uses of €0.9 billion
for the forthcoming payments to the Austrian Pension Insurance
Institution and to employees, the settlement gain on the release
of provisions for pension entitlements which will be transferred
to the state scheme under the Austrian General Social Insurance
Act amounted to €1.2 billion) and by the increase of €0.7 billion
in other provisions resulting from additions of €0.8 billion to re-
structuring provisions.

IFRS equity increased by €0.5 billion or 3.1% to €15.4 billion
in 2015. Profit for the period (including non-controlling inter-
ests) amounted to €1,232 million. A number of items were to
be deducted: the release of pension provisions due to the trans-
fer of pension entitiements to the state scheme under the Aus-
trian General Social Insurance Act had a negative effect of
—€298 million on equity. Other items within other comprehen-
sive income had a combined impact of —€465 million. Among
these items, the negative foreign currency translation reserve
increased by —€626 million (after non-controlling interests) to a
total of —€4,917 million, with the increase mainly reflecting ex-
change rate movements in Russia, Turkey and Ukraine.

46 2015 Annual Report - Bank Austria



Capital resources and risk-weighted assets

Regulatory capital and capital requirements are calculated in
accordance with the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR) and
the Capital Requirements Directive (CRD V) to implement Basel 3
in the European Union. Under the Austrian CRR Supplementary
Regulation of 11 December 2013, these provisions are not yet
fully applicable but will be gradually introduced over several
years. For example, new deductions from Common Equity Tier 1
capital or capital components which are no longer eligible for
inclusion under Basel 3 are not yet allowed to be fully taken into
account pursuant to CRR/CRD 1V in the second year of the tran-
sition period but to the extent defined for 2015 in the Austrian
CRR Supplementary Regulation.

The Bank Austria Group calculates its consolidated regulatory
capital and consolidated regulatory capital requirements on an
IFRS basis.

@ Movements in capital resources: At year-end 2015, total regu-
latory capital was €19.1 billion, up by €1.5 billion on year-end
2014. Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) rose by €0.7 billion to
€14.2 billion.

The year-on-year increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital was
mainly due to the inclusion of eligible net profit for 2015 and to the
fact that unrealised gains on assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (e.g. available-for-sale reserves) were eligible for inclusion
for the first time under Section 2 of the Austrian CRR Supplementary
Regulation. Exchange rate movements partly offset the positive
effects. In addition, Tier 2 capital was strengthened through three
new issues totalling €0.9 billion.

@ The total risk exposure amount (RWAs) was €128.3 billion,
down by €2.1 billion or 1.6 % year-on-year. The decrease resulted
mainly from operational risk and also reflects lower market risk
and lower credit valuation adjustments (CVA) while credit risk
rose slightly.

P The risk exposure amount for credit risk increased by €0.2 bil-
lion (+0.1%) to €113.2 billion. The contribution from portfolios
under the standardised approach rose by €0.3 billion while that
from the internal ratings-based approach remained more or less
unchanged and the contribution to the default fund of a central
counterparty declined by €0.2 billion.

The largest changes in credit risk were recorded in the expo-
sure classes “Retail” (+€1.0 billion), “Claims on institutions and
corporates with a short-term credit assessment” (+€0.7 bil-
lion), “Institutions” (—€0.8 billion) and “Exposure in default”
(—€0.6 billion). In addition to the development of business, the
main factor accounting for an RWA increase was the fact that
the Swiss National Bank discontinued the Swiss franc’s link to
the euro in January 2015. Exchange rate movements in the
Turkish lira, the Russian rouble and the Ukrainian hryvnia had
an RWA-reducing effect compared with December 2014.

» Market risk and operational risk: The risk exposure
amount for market risk declined by €0.7 billion to €4.0 bil-
lion. The decrease was mainly due to the expiry, without
renewal, of FX hedging transactions relating to CEE operations
in the course of 2015.

The risk exposure amount for operational risk was €10.7 bil-
lion, down by €1.4 hillion on the previous year, a development
which reflects various factors: the advanced measurement
approach (AMA) model was adapted to meet requirements in
2015; losses from operational risk declined in the past two
years; the standardised approach (TSA) and the basic indicator
approach (BIA) were recalculated on an ongoing basis; and
considering the assets held for sale of the Ukrainian subsidiary
Public Joint Stock Company “Ukrsotshank”.

@ As the total risk exposure amount declined and Common Equity
Tier 1 capital increased, the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio rose to
11.0%.

The total capital ratio improved from 13.4% to 14.9%, reflect-

ing the increase in total capital and the lower total risk exposure
amount.

Capital ratios based on all risks

31DEC. 2015 31 DEC. 2014
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 11.0% 10.3%
Tier 1 capital ratio 11.0% 10.3%
Total capital ratio 14.9% 13.4%

@ As at 31 December 2015, the leverage ratio pursuant to the
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/62, based on the current status
of transitional arrangements, was 5.8 %.
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Financial and non-financial performance indicators

Volume, profitability and resources

The 2015 financial year saw moderately rising volume in Austrian
customer business and in the Central Eastern Europe (CEE) business
segment. Commercial banking business in Austria continued to be
characterised by customer restraint, excess liquidity in the business
sector and low demand. The banking subsidiaries in GEE, on the other
hand, achieved expansion, which was strong on the deposit side and
less significant on the lending side as exchange rate movements and
local developments in Russia dampened growth. Earnings in both
large sectors of Bank Austria’s business were weighed down by an
interest rate environment that was close to zero, and countries where
interest rates are higher are increasingly experiencing convergent
trends. The significant difference in the risk profile between Austria
and CEE is ultimately reflected in profitability ratios.

@ Average loans and receivables with customers rose moderately in
the reporting year, by 1.5% to €116.6 billion, after a slight decline in
2014. Average volume in the three Austrian customer business segments
increased by a combined 2.7 % on the previous year and by 1.9% in
CEE; adjusted for exchange rate movements, volume in CEE rose by
9.7%. In 2015, deposits increased much more strongly than loans.
Direct funding (the sum total of deposits from customers and debt secu-
rities in issue; the latter declined slightly) grew by 6.6 % in Austria and by
12.4% in CEE (adjusted for exchange rate movements: +21.0%).

Average risk-weighted assets (RWAs) in 2015 reached €133.2 bil-
lion, an expansion of 7.8 % over the previous year, with a slight
increase of 0.9% in Austrian customer business and strong growth in
CEE (+13.1%). The RWA increase in CEE was stronger than credit
expansion, a development which is explained by higher risk intensity
and by the fact that risk-weighted assets in Turkey and Ukraine are
included in RWAs but not in lending volume (because Turkey is
accounted for using the equity method and the operations in Ukraine
are held for sale). If these two items are excluded from the calculation,
RWAs in CEE rose by 6.8% (and in Bank Austria as a whole by 2.6 %).

The interest margin narrowed, reflecting the impact of monetary pol-
icy. This has adversely affected the earnings position over the past
years. Operating income less net write-downs of loans, expressed as
a percentage of average risk-weighted assets (RACE) in the bank as
a whole was 3.65% in 2015 after 4.21% in 2014. This key figure is
7.3% for Austrian customer business and 2.9% for CEE (or 3.1%
if adjusted for the special effect of mandatory conversion of foreign
currency loans in Croatia).

The structural differences between Austria and CEE with regard to
the cost/income ratio (Austrian customer business: 67.8 %, CEE:
42.5%) and risk/earnings ratio (0.1 % versus 19.4 %), both figures
without Turkey and without the FX effect/Croatia, are characteristic
features in a comparison of mature countries and growth markets,
and of the difference in capital absorption.

Marginal Economic Value Added (EVA), one of the long-term indi-
cators used by UniCredit Group for value creation, is linked to net
operating profit after tax (NOPAT). In this context positive and nega-
tive one-off effects are eliminated as these do not reflect sustaina-
ble profitability. In 2015 the CEE business segment generated an
EVA of €387 million and the combined EVA for the three Austrian
business segments was €117 million. Risk-adjusted return on risk-
adjusted capital (RARORAC) in CEE was 4.9 %, reflecting the rela-
tively large amount of equity (target Tier 1 capital ratio multiplied by
RWAs) absorbed by the segment and the high cost of capital (aver-
aging 12.2%) to be earned on it. RARORAC in Austrian customer
business was 4.6 %, based on an average cost of capital of 10.8 %.
(For Bank Austria as a whole, EVA is no longer shown until further
notice as this key figure is not meaningful at overall bank level in

Key financial indicators (2014 recast)

AUSTRIAN
BANK CUSTOMER
AUSTRIA BUSINESS " CEE

Relative size 2

Average loans to customers (€ billion) 116.6 58.1 57.9
Change over previous year +1.5% +27% +1.9%

Average risk-weighted assets

(RWASs, € billion) 133.2 29.0 96.8
Change over previous year +7.8% +09% +13.1%

Average risk-weighted assets without

Turkey/Ukraine 101.4 29.0 65.0
Change over previous year +2.6% +09% +6.8%

Average direct funding (€ billion) 137.1 62.4 56.0
Change over previous year +8.1% +6.6% +12.4%

Cost/income ratio and risk intensity 3

Cost/income ratio 55.7% 67.8% 42.5%

Risk/earnings ratio 13.2% 01% 19.4%

Cost of risk 0.69% 0.00% 1.40%

Results, profitability and value creation?

Operating income (€ million) 5,875 2,114 3,816
Change over previous year +2.5% -22% -02%
... less net write-downs of loans
in % of average RWAs 3.7% 7.3% 2.8%

Profit before tax (€ million) 1,621 528 1,094
Change over previous year -1.1% -102% -14.0%

ROE before tax4) 11.3% 17.9% 7.7%

EVA (€ million) .. 117 3876)

Cost of capital in % 11.9% 10.8% 12.2%

RARORAC .9 46%  4.9%°

1) Retail & Corporates, Private Banking and Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB)
Divisions; the difference to the total amount is allocated to the Corporate Center — see
“Description of segment reporting” on pages 216 and 217 of this report. / 2) Turkey

is included on a proportionate basis in RWAs and with its at-equity contribution in the
income statement. / 3) Without the at-equity contribution from Turkey and without the
effect from mandatory FX conversion/Croatia. / 4) ROE = profit before tax divided by
average allocated capital of the business segments. / 5) Not meaningful at overall bank
level in light of the current situation in capital markets, see text. / 6) Without cross-
regional units (Profit Center Vienna and CEE Corporate Center), adjusted for Ukraine and
the FX Croatia effect.
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view of the high risk premiums and structurally weak profitability in
the banking sector, and also because of the higher capital require-
ments imposed on banks.)

@ The most recent numbers of branches and employees reflect
the effects of modernisation in branch-based sales activities and of
the Bank Austria 2020 initiative in Austria, selective streamlining of
the branch network in CEE and reductions in Ukraine.

BANK 3 AUSTRIAN CORPORATE
AUSTRIA SEGMENTS"  CEE? UKRAINE®  CENTER4
Branches
Year-end 2015 1,510 205 1,065 240
Year-end 2014 1,664 243 1,130 291
Employees (FTESs)
Year-end 2015 35,534 4,887 24,143 4,343 2,161
Year-end 2014
(recast) 36,192 5,056 24,124 4,830 2,172

1) Retail & Corporates, Private Banking and Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB)
Divisions. / 2) CEE without Turkey and Ukraine. / 3) Ukraine classified as held for sale /
4) Corporate Center = Global Banking Services plus Competence Lines, also includes
Immobilien GmbH (held for sale) with 276 FTEs.

At the end of 2015, Bank Austria had 1,510 branches. The number
of branches in Austria was 205 after 243 in the previous year. The
significant decline is due to the fact that 43 branches serving retail
customers were integrated in other branches, reducing the total num-
ber of locations to 174. (The number of customer service units is sig-
nificantly larger than the number of branches because units serving
corporate customers or Private Banking customers are accessible to
customers via branches in many locations, and self-service units are
not included in the calculation.) In CEE (without Ukraine), the number
of branches declined by 65 to a total of 1,065 as a result of selective
streamlining of networks in almost all countries. The strongest reduc-
tions were made in Hungary (—29) and Bulgaria (—18). The number of
branches in Ukraine was down by 51.

In 2015, staff numbers declined by 658 full-time equivalents
(FTEs) or 1.8% to 35,534 FTEs, following a significant reduction
of 1,614 FTEs or 4.3% in the previous year. The largest reduc-
tion (—487 FTEs) took place at Ukrsotsbank, the Ukrainian bank-
ing subsidiary, which is classified as held for sale. The total
number of employees in the other CEE units remained more or
less constant at 24,143 FTEs (+19 FTEs or +0.1%). The only
CEE countries where staff numbers declined were Croatia (—97 FTEs),
Hungary (—86 FTEs) and Romania (-7 FTEs). Employment in
Austrian customer business continued to decline by 178 FTEs or
3.5% (after a reduction of 365 FTEs or 7.0% in the previous
year). The number of employees in the Corporate Center was
down by 11 FTEs. Staff reductions mainly reflect the Bank Austria
2020 initiative, under which all employees were offered innovative
part-time working arrangements in 2014 and until the middle

of 2015.

Employees — Austria and CEE1)
Year-end 2015 in full-time equivalents (FTEs)
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Austria: 7,048 FTEs CEE"): 24,143 FTEs

1) CEE without Turkey (18,976) and without Ukraine (held for sale, 4,343)
2) Without Immobilien Holding GmbH (held for sale)
3) Other = Profit Center Vienna, Leasing, Baltics, UCTAM

Lending volume — Austria and CEE?)
Customer loans at year-end 2015 in € billion
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Austria: € 59.3 billion CEE"): €57.1 billion

1) CEE without Turkey (€20.9 billion at 40.9%) and without Ukraine (€1.3 billion)
2) Other = Profit Center Vienna, Leasing, Baltics, UCTAM
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Strategic evolution

@ Bank Austria sees itself as a universal bank which holds
leading positions in the countries where it operates. In its long
history the bank has always had an international outlook; today it
is @ member of UniCredit, which has a network spanning 17
countries and has been classified as a global systemically impor-
tant bank. Bank Austria’s most important economic objective is
to create value in a sustainable manner, i.e. to achieve a level of
profitability exceeding the cost of capital. In this way Bank Austria
aims to secure its existence and market position in the long term
while meeting the expectations of shareholders and, last but not
least, putting in place the equity capital base required for further
growth. Optimum capital allocation, a transparent use of resources
in the various business segments — without cross-subsidies — and
professional risk management are the main factors required for
the bank to make full use of its growth potential.

Customer business has top priority in the business model for
implementing these objectives. This involves limiting proprietary
business to the tasks relating to overall bank management.

Bank Austria’s lending business is mainly funded by resources
entrusted to the bank by customers. Customer centricity is key

to sustainable success in several respects: we aim to be very close
to customers by using the channels preferred by them — be they
classic or digital channels — in a timely manner and speaking
customers’ language. With regard to product design and services,
our top priority is to keep them simple and transparent and to meet
customers’ specific needs. Identifying long-term trends in customer
behaviour and responding to them through innovation and adjust-
ments also requires close contact with customers. Permanent feed-
back from customers is essential to operational excellence and ser-
vice efficiency; ways to provide feedback have become increasingly
institutionalised and digitalised. Moreover, the Bank of the Future
needs a simpler structure and more efficient back-office processes.
We have launched a streamlining initiative to screen all areas of
the bank and make our internal procedures leaner, eliminate ineffi-
ciency and improve the cost/income ratio.

We use various HR measures to train our employees with a view
to enhancing professionalism, establishing a distinct service cul-
ture and introducing an entrepreneurial mindset. Permanent
adjustment to the rapid changes in banking requires flexibility and
mobility, which we support with new forms of working arrange-
ments and measures focusing on staff development and mobility.
We are strengthening the work-life balance of our employees to
enable them to develop their performance capabilities in a sus-
tainable manner. Openness, diversity and the values defined in
our Integrity Charter guide our activities. Bank Austria is the only
large Austrian bank that coped with the financial market crisis
without using state aid. One of the lessons learnt from those diffi-

cult years is that the trust of customers and other stakeholders
as well as the bank’s reputation are of vital importance. We see
our social responsibility as an integral component of our finan-
cial success and we want to support the development of commu-
nities in which we operate as an active corporate citizen.

@ The corporate objectives, principles and values apply to the Aus-
trian business segments in the same way as to our banks in CEE
countries and their business segments. However, the potential of a
mature, overbanked market differs from that of the banking sectors
in CEE, which continue to expand strongly. And this calls for different
measures to be taken in each case for the further development of
the business model.

The profitability of traditional banking business in Western Europe
has come under sustained pressure through the combined impact
of several trends: interest rates have been low over the past few
years (and will remain so in the foreseeable future); this has led to
an erosion of margins on traditional banking products. Weak growth
has translated into stagnant credit demand, and this is proving to
be a structural phenomenon rather than reflecting the business
cycle. The resulting loss of income makes it difficult, in view of
tighter capital requirements, to earn the cost of capital and other
compliance costs. Moreover, structural changes in customer prefer-
ences and demand for end-to-end and easy-to-use products,
driven by the advance of digitalisation, are challenging traditional
sales methods. And disintermediation tendencies are again making
themselves felt as new competitors (fintechs, crowdfunding and IT
companies) expand their activities.

The unfavourable overall environment in Europe is further aggra-
vated in Austria, where the bank levy is the highest in Europe and
based on assets. More detailed regulatory requirements are making
business more expensive and strongly restricting it in some areas.
Price regulation based on far-reaching consumer protection rules
limits the leeway for pricing and impacts banks’ earning power in
retail banking, which is also affected by terms and conditions which
are unfavourable for banks by international comparison, due to irra-
tional competition.

As a result, profitability in the Austrian business segments includ-
ing the Corporate Center, which reflects expenses relating to overall
bank management, has fallen; the retail banking subsegment in
particular is making a loss, despite the intensive countermeasures
that have been taken.

=> As part of the implementation of UniCredit’s multi-year plan
(MYP 2.0), the Management Board adopted a package of measures
in November 2015 to restructure retail banking operations, i.e.
business with private customers and small businesses, and to
improve the cost/income ratio on a sustainable basis. This under-
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lines Bank Austria’s commitment to a universal banking business
model as sound retail banking operations are necessary for suc-
cessfully conducting business with corporate customers and high
net worth individuals as well as Corporate & Investment Banking
activities in the long term; in this context retail banking is an
important source of direct funding, ensures a broad customer base
and acts as a key driver of the brand presence in the market.

=> When UniCredit presented its multi-year plan in November 2015, it
announced its intention to transfer direct shareholding control of CEE
business to UniCredit S.p. A. The transfer of equity interests in CEE com-
panies from Bank Austria to the Group holding company, subject to reso-
lutions adopted by the corporate bodies, is to take place by the end of
2016. This move is intended to streamline the organisation of UniCredit
Group. It will also enhance UniCredit's ability to manage liquidity and cap-
ital for the Group, and also for CEE business, in the current regulatory
environment (global SIFI, banking union etc.). This change in governance
will not in any way affect the close links between Austrian corporate
banking business and the CEE network.

Restructuring Austrian customer business

@ Bank Austria aims to further expand its leading market positions in
Austria in the following three areas: business with corporate customers,
Corporate & Investment Banking and Private Banking. Almost one in
two small and medium-sized companies is a customer of Bank Aus-
tria’s Corporates subsegment, and 7 out of 10 companies use the
services available in Corporate & Investment Banking. Bank Austria
is the clear market leader in corporate bonds and loans against bor-
rowers’ notes, in export finance and in documentary credit business.
Bank Austria acted as lead manager for 6 out of 10 corporate bond
issues in Austria in 2014, and for 5 out of 6 corporate bond issues in
2015. The Private Banking Division is number one in the Austrian
market, with €22.8 billion in assets managed on behalf of customers
and a market share of 19%. These three profitable business segments
currently account for three-quarters of the bank’s total assets in Aus-
tria. Based on the combination of customer satisfaction, a good earn-
ings position and cost efficiency, these business segments may be
expected to achieve further growth of business volume and profits.

@ In its retail banking operations Bank Austria has pursued the digital
modernisation of its sales network which was initiated two years ago. The
SmartBanking projects implemented in this context aimed at giving
branches and the digital marketplace (with the Online-Shop and the
online branch) equal weight as channels for product sales and advisory
services in the medium term. Among Bank Austria customers who main-
tain accounts at the bank, about three-quarters currently use Online-
Banking, and over one-third of them use MobileBanking via a smart-
phone, with a significantly rising trend. Digitalisation has gone hand in
hand with an upgrading of branch-based sales and a reduction of the
number of locations: following the integration of 18 branches serving pri-

vate customers in 2013, 36 branches were integrated in 2014 and 43 in
2015, thereby reducing the total number to 174 by the end of 2015.
One-fifth of our branches currently displays the new design and has
been equipped with the latest technology. We also operate a number of
state-of-the-art advisory service centres where we serve more than one
customer segment. At the end of 2015 the Management Board launched
the Bank Austria Reloaded project, which will be implemented over the
years to 2018 with a view to achieving the income/cost targets defined
in the multi-year plan. In addition to offering longer opening hours, we
will complete the process of modemising all branches and enhancing
their efficiency. While the number of branches serving private customers
will decline to about 120 by the end of 2018, a number of these
branches will be significantly larger and offer a wider range of advisory
services. Starting in 2016 we will transfer small business customers
(with an annual turnover of up to €3 million) and independent profession-
als from the Corporates to the Retail sub-segment (project name:
CREDQ), moving them closer to local decentralised sales units. Services
for small businesses will be significantly expanded, including the possibil-
ity to draw on the expertise of specialists via video calls, and offered in
55 locations in the future, up from the 29 units where services have so
far been available to this customer group.

We will strongly expand our digital offering. This will involve fur-
ther standardising the range of products and expanding the digi-
tal marketplace with personal advisory services in the online
branch and with the Online-Shop, where all key banking products
are available. We aim to offer all products and services to meet
daily needs 7 days a week and 24 hours a day, in the branches
and in the digital marketplace via the online branch and the
Online-Shop. Some 255 employees currently work in the online
branch. Advisory services focus on high-grade and more complex
banking products, for example, with the use of video-based advi-
sory services provided by specialists both online and at branches,
drawing on the expertise of highly qualified real-estate and
investment specialists.

@ The transformation of the retail banking business model will be
accompanied by a cost reduction programme aimed at cutting
payroll costs and other administrative expenses by 18 % or
€300 million by 2018, through the following measures:

P Reducing IT and processing costs through a higher degree of
standardisation and streamlining of the product offering.

P Downsizing the branch network while expanding the digital
marketplace.

P Significant capacity adjustments in the Corporate Center, compris-
ing all of the bank’s back-office and support functions.

P The number of related job reductions will depend on progress
made in expanding the digital offering, streamlining the product
range and adjusting processes, and on the models agreed with the
Employees’ Council. The job reductions will be made in a socially
acceptable manner on the basis of mutual agreement.
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P The restructuring of Austrian business will also involve
removing a structural cost burden of the past: under a spe-
cial legal arrangement and an internal service regulation going
back many years, Bank Austria has assumed the obligations of
the mandatory social and pension insurance scheme pursuant
to the Austrian General Social Insurance Act (ASVG) for about
3,300 employees. This “BA-ASVG” arrangement is intended to
be transferred to the general Austrian state pension system
within the legal framework and with the contributions required
to be paid by law. An internal service regulation to this effect
has been signed with the Employees’ Council and communi-
cated internally. In this context there will be fair compensation
for the employees concerned, in respect of both pension and
health insurance. (Bank Austria will continue to act as pension
insurance institution only for the current Bank Austria pension-
ers.) The complete changeover from a provision-based pension
system to a defined-contribution pension scheme for all active
employees will lead to further significant cost savings.

=> We will increase the return on allocated capital (ROAC) in
Austria (including the Corporate Center) to about 13% by 2018
while improving our cost/income ratio to 60 %. With total assets
of about €100 billion and 1.6 million customers, Bank Austria
will remain the largest individual bank active in Austrian cus-
tomer business.

Initiatives in Central and Eastern Europe

As part of the implementation of the multi-year plan, the
shareholding interests in UniCredit banks in Central and
Eastern Europe (CEE) are intended to be transferred, subject to
resolutions adopted by the corporate bodies, from UniCredit
Bank Austria AG, which acts as sub-holding company, directly
to UniCredit S.p.A., the Group holding company. This transac-
tion is to be completed by the end of 2016. The related simpli-
fication of governance will eliminate duplication and facilitate
capital management and liquidity management of the CEE
Division. The transfer of CEE business with the related man-
agement activities will also enhance transparency between the
high-growth and capital-intensive CEE Division and the
remaining Austrian business.

Regardless of where the equity interests in the CEE banking
subsidiaries are held in the future, it is important to state that
local service continuity and the banks’ full expertise and cus-
tomary high service quality are preserved for the Group’s inter-
nationally active corporate customers. The CEE Division will
continue to work with the successful team. This move will not
affect the strategic importance of the CEE Division: being
the undisputed number one in the CEE market, with positions
among the five largest local banks in ten countries, the CEE

Division is UniCredit’s key growth driver. The wide regional
diversification of the CEE presence has proved to be an advan-
tage over the past years. Following the withdrawal from
Kazakhstan (2013) and Ukraine (where the local bank has been
held for sale since 2014), the regional presence rests on
three main pillars: the innovative banks in Central Europe (CE)
and South-East Europe (SEE), together referred to as CESEE,
which are either highly integrated in the EU or have large mar-
ket shares; the banking subsidiary in Russia, which has coped
well even in difficult years thanks to its concentration on inter-
national corporate customers and high net worth individuals;
and the highly profitable joint venture in Turkey, operating in the
banking sector which is currently achieving the strongest
expansion. The outlook remains promising: based on economic
growth of +2.5% expected for CESEE in 2016, and +1 % if
Russia and Turkey are included in the calculation, the banking
sector will continue to expand strongly in terms of lending vol-
ume, by 8.3% in CESEE and by 3.2% in CEE as a whole. We
expect profitability (profit before tax/average total assets) in the
period from 2015 to 2018 to average 1.0% for CESEE and
1.2% for the CEE Division — double the figure for the three
West European countries (A, G, I). This growth outlook is cou-
pled with a high capital requirement and will be supported by
UniCredit with an appropriate capital allocation.

In 2015 we continued to successfully develop commercial
banking business in CEE with a special programme (CEE 2020)
taking advantage of best practice transfer in particular. In com-
bination with the twelve initiatives which are still underway and
five other initiatives, the project is being continued under the
name of CEE 2020 Plus. The various approaches to customer
acquisition will be deployed in the participating CEE countries
with due regard to specific local circumstances. Special atten-
tion will be given to providing companies which are active in
several countries with homogeneous services offered by Cor-
porate & Investment Banking on a cross-border basis, regard-
less of the location of the corporate headquarters. Digitalisa-
tion plays an important role in this context: in CEE this does
not support a restructuring programme but has been imple-
mented from the very start in the course of the growth pro-
cess, now reaching an advanced stage in an international peer
comparison. Retail banking operations are gradually becoming
a digital bank, with a unified multi-channel front end being
on the agenda. Here, as in CIB, we expect to benefit strongly
from big-data analyses to get closer to customers and their
needs and win new customers, especially in Group Transaction
Banking (payments, cash management). In addition to methods
used for taking full advantage of customer potential, campaign
management and other activities, the programme is comple-
mented by training initiatives (including the Talent Pool) and
projects to enhance process efficiency.
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=> Supported by systemic growth and our investment in CEE
2020+, the multi-year plan envisages annual growth of 5.7 % in
operating profit (at constant exchange rates) in the years to 2018.

Customer centricity and change

“Digitalisation — 24 hours/7 days — mobile — social networking —
personalised & configurable”: these are some of the key

words signalling the dramatic changes in society and in our
business model and service approach. These changes also influ-
ence our measures to support customer centricity, which has
top priority in Bank Austria’s business model. The customer
experience is taking centre stage. Our ambition is clearly
reflected in our promise to customers — “Wir mochten die
Besten flir Sie sein!” (We want to be the best for you) — and in
the slogan “Life is full of ups and downs — we’re there for both”.
This is guiding the further development of our multi-channel
bank. Receiving the Top Service Osterreich 2015 award and
the Service Champion 2015 in der Bankenbranche award, we
were again among the winners in Austria in 2015, underlining
that our new business models are an appropriate response to
changes in customer behaviour.

Bank Austria customers’ satisfaction with services, reliability and
quality of advice is measured with the TRI*M index. This is an
important factor which we have used in scorecards at all levels of
hierarchy, from top management to branches, over many years. In
the first nine months of 2015, Bank Austria’s aggregated TRI"M
improved by 1 point, reaching an overall level of 72 and an all-time
high in specific customer groups, including a TRI*M of 83 in Private
Banking. In the fourth quarter of 2015, rumours circulated in daily
newspapers that the Austrian retail banking operations would be
sold pushed this key indicator down to a level just below that of the
previous year. In 2015 we continued to use telephone interviews
(about 25,000 calls per year) and online questionnaires (about
10,000 responses per year) to measure customer satisfaction while
also conducting mystery shopping at branches. Moreover, our cus-
tomers made intensive use of the possibility to provide feedback on
their satisfaction via digital and mobile channels. Tools such as
myFeedback, which can be used to give feedback quickly and
easily via a smartphone, or Feedback Kundenerlebnis (automated
@mail feedback upon completion of banking transactions) are being
further developed and offered at various points of contact in our
multi-channel bank.

A high level of external service quality requires excellent internal
cooperation. Since 2009, internal service quality provided by
our head office units has been evaluated by their colleagues,
using the results to sharpen the focus on internal customer
needs in their processes and services. In 2015, the aggregated
internal TRI*M of all 39 units and service providers increased

by 4 points to a level of 66. Around the turn of the year
2014/2015, we again conducted the Group-wide People Sur-
vey, giving our employees an opportunity to let us know what
they think about such topics as commitment to the company,
leadership, clarity of strategy and objectives, customer orientation
and contributions to the community. The participation rate of

64 % and an increase of 1 point to 72 in the engagement index
showed good developments at a stable level, with a significant
improvement of 7 points in a multi-year comparison.

CoCreation in the digital and real worlds. With our Bank Austria
Mitarbeiterforum and Kundenforum (www. kundenforum. at)
developed in 2013, we are using an open social media platform for
surveys, forum discussions, quick polls and votings to involve our
customers in corporate processes. In 2015, about 20,000
responses via questionnaires and over 700 forum contributions on
over 50 topics (including “The Branch of the Future”, mobile bank-
ing apps, Cashback Online and cashless payments) from about
3,000 customers and employees were processed, evaluated and
discussed in the digital sphere. In the real world we have standard-
ised customer integration in product and process development
(using CoCreation workshops, in-depth interviews, customer dia-
logue ...) and established it as a mandatory process.

The BeschwerdeExzellenz project launched in 2013 enables us
to improve all internal and external complaint management pro-
cesses on an ongoing basis with a view to optimising the han-
dling of complaints for our customers at all points of contact
(branch, @mail, CallCenter etc.). We aim to offer top standards
with regard to response time (within 48 hours) and solution com-
petence. Moreover, we have bundled specific competencies in the
ombudsperson’s office for persons experiencing social hard-
ship, where customers in financial difficulty receive assistance in
reducing their debt, or are granted additional time for payment,
etc. In 2015 we again maintained close contact with consumer
protection organisations, the Chamber of Labour, debtor associa-
tions and special interest groups in order to deal with specific
issues such as complaints concerning foreign currency loans and
to find solutions together with our customers.

Human Resources (HR)

Human Resources Management supports the ongoing change pro-
cesses in the company and acts as strategic partner and change
agent for all business units. These activities also make a signifi-
cant contribution to creating the best possible environment for all
employees on our way to the “Bank of the Future”. Creating optimal
conditions to identify and use potential, investing in training and sup-
porting employees in all areas with a view to establishing a work-life
balance are key requirements met by HR Management in living up to
its claim to be a leading player in the banking sector.
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Human Resources Austria

@ The business model reorientation continued in 2015,
accompanied by measures to reduce payroll costs and other
administrative expenses. Strategic projects launched in 2013 —
primarily SmartBanking and the Bank Austria 2020 initiative —
enabled us to respond effectively to rapid changes in customer
behaviour and technology as well as to demographic changes
and the new communication media, in the banking business
and in the working environment quite generally. The implemen-
tation of these projects relied on our employees’ qualifications
and flexibility, backed by intensive HR support.

The declared target was to reduce payroll costs by €70 million
in the period to the middle of 2015; this target was achieved and
even exceeded. The reductions were made, as planned, by offer-
ing employees attractive HR instruments, without operational lay-
offs. The focus was on innovative part-time working arrange-
ments under the Bank Austria 2020 initiative, from which
employees could choose, enabling them to benefit from newly
won leisure time according to their own preferences. 1,451
employees selected one of the models offered. Of the total num-
ber, 48 % are women and 52 % men, 46 % are below the age of
50 and 54 % are more than 50 years old. This means that there
is a well-balanced gender and age distribution. The participation
ratio among managers reached 12 %, four times the figure
recorded in the previous year.

This measure helped us achieve essential objectives: making
the organisation leaner by the defined target factor, raising the
company’s flexibility and enhancing the work-life balance of
our employees. As a result, the proportion of part-time employ-
ees in the bank as a whole reached 41 % by the end of 2015.
The initiative led to a reduction of 685 full-time equivalents in
the period starting in 2014, of which 20% resulted from natu-
ral staff turnover and retirement. Special attention is being
given to making processes leaner and streamlining internal
administrative activities so that service quality for our custom-
ers can be further enhanced with reduced staff numbers.

@ Internal recruiting: The Move On initiative (previously
referred to as “Movement Management”) is an integral part of
HR strategy. Against the background of the new HR instru-
ments (part-time working arrangements, new working world
etc.) and the related impact on the internal job market, we
have adjusted and expanded this initiative. All vacant positions
in the bank are now offered internally via the new “Move On”
job platform, an innovative approach. The objective of this
cloud-based recruiting solution is to make employees aware of
new oppportunities through the automated analysis of their
personality and subsequent job matching. Finding the right job

no longer depends on employees’ curriculum vitae and training
alone but also on their personality. Several hundred employees
make daily use of Move On and appreciate the opportunities
which the platform offers, including direct availability of a per-
sonal assessment report. Move On brings the internal job mar-
ket to life, with employees being able to view new job opportu-
nities with ease. These activities are aimed at supporting a
more effective use of employee potential and raising employee
satisfaction.

® Assessment of staff performance: UniCredit Performance
Management is a modern, fair and transparent performance
evaluation and development system for all employees of Bank Austria.
All employees can easily view their evaluation and the feedback
documentation in their personal electronic archives. Performance
Management thus makes an essential contribution to a feedback
culture. The goals of each employee are discussed between the
employee and the manager and then captured in the Perfor-
mance Management tool. The employee’s performance is evalu-
ated after a maximum period of 12 months and feedback on
development is provided. The information obtained from feed-
back and evaluation serves as a basis for personal development
measures and further steps in Bank Austria.

@ Staff development: The pleasure of learning — UniCredit
Academy Austria. Sharing knowledge and experience — in an
entertaining, informal and timely manner — is an essential feature
of the “Bank of the Future”. Against this background we created
the UniCredit Academy Austria in autumn 2013, which bundles all
Learning & Development activities of UniCredit in Austria. The
UniCredit Academy Austria offers our employees a wide range of
programmes to acquire and develop know-how required for an
employee’s sphere of activities by using the appropriate learning
method. Seminars, simulations, eLearning, game-based learning,
podcasts (audio files), coaching, mentoring, shadowing and intern-
ships are among the methods used for promoting and supporting
a person’s individual learning style. This gives the learner a more
active role in his/her learning process.

The UniCredit Academy Austria supports the transformation into
the “Bank of the Future”. Advancing digitalisation opens up
new channels for our customers to do banking business with
us; it also offers our employees new ways of cooperating and
learning. In 2015 the UniCredit Academy Austria therefore
started to expand digital self-study media and methods by
introducing a comprehensive portfolio of learning media, put-
ting emphasis on needs-oriented real-time learning. We also
encourage learning from and with one another, and learning on
the job. The UniCredit Academy Austria is thereby following the
70/20/10 principle of what is called “new learning” (70 per
cent learning on the job, 20 per cent learning by sharing, and
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10 per cent formal learning). Employees can learn on a self-
determined basis and are not tied to specific time schedules,
thereby enhancing the return on learning for everyone — in line
with the motto: higher earnings through effective learning.
www. unicreditacademy. at

@ Succession planning: Our Executive Development Plan
(EDP) and Talent Management programme support our man-
agers in developing the relevant qualities and skills for the
“Bank of the Future”. We focus on the development of man-
agement potential from within the bank, in line with the motto
“Investing in People”, while giving special attention to raising
the percentage of female managers on a sustainable basis. We
thereby ensure forward-looking and effective personnel plan-
ning for managers and talents who can get along well in a
changing digitalised society and who can make sustainable
contributions to shaping the “Bank of the Future”. Uniform
Group-wide quality criteria are applied in the evaluation pro-
cess, with a focus on feedback exchange. Moreover, as part of
UniCredit, Bank Austria offers the opportunity to gain and use
international experience in a Group-wide process of filling
vacancies.

® Compensation & Benefits: Our human resources activities,
especially those in the area of Compensation & Benefits, are
based on and guided by the Global Job Model, the Group-
wide job evaluation system used for describing and categoris-
ing all roles and activities within UniCredit, and the UniCredit
Competency Model, which defines essential skills and
employee conduct in our company.

The proper mix: our Total Compensation system. Our Group-
wide remuneration system provides for a balanced mix of fixed
and variable monetary and non-monetary components. Regular
communication to our employees and information available on
“myHR”, the HR Intranet site, provide an overview of all compo-
nents of compensation while linking this to the related com-
pensation processes including the merit review and the bonus.
Remuneration of top management is determined within UniCredit
by way of a Group Compensation System, which has been in
place for several years and has also been implemented at
Bank Austria. Parts of the variable components of compensa-
tion are withheld in line with regulatory requirements, and
deferred payments are made subject to sustainability. This may
also be in the form of UniCredit shares. The bonus pool method
introduced across the Group in 2014 ensures that variable
components of remuneration are subject to the achievement of
sustainable, long-term financial and non-financial performance
criteria. The introduction of this method further strengthens the
link between variable remuneration and risk-weighted results of
Bank Austria.

@ Diversity & equal opportunity: Bank Austria employs persons
who differ from one another in their background, culture, language,
religion, training, state of health and sexual orientation. With our
diversity management activities we want to use opportunities in
this context and unlock underlying potential for the bank. The cor-
porate culture of Bank Austria therefore encompasses mutual
respect, openness, recognition and appreciation. This enables us to
benefit greatly from the manifold qualities, talents and personality
facets of our employees in all their diversity. Implementing these
objectives is facilitated by an innovative design of the work environ-
ment. With the “Job and Family” audit we use assessments by
external auditors to make further improvements. Bank Austria is the
only Austrian company to which the European Commission made
specific reference as a best-practice model in its publication on
diversity management of 19 November 2015.

Structural data

AUSTRIAY CEE?
Employees by gender
(headcount) 10,545 26,632
female 54.11% 71.63%
male 45.89% 28.37%
Employees by tier and gender female male  female male
top management and executive  0.25% 1.22% 0.09% 0.53%
middle management 7.45% 21.64% 3.42% 9.57%
staff 9231% 7714% 96.49% 89.90%
total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Employees by age
up to 30 years 9.46% 21.71%
31-40 years 18.22% 42.39%
41-50 years 40.10% 22.89%
51 years and more 32.22% 13.01%
Turnover
external hirings 2.43% 12.18%
external leaves 5.53% 12.09%

1) Including local subsidiaries and UBIS. / 2) Bank Austria perimeter (Bosnia and
Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Czech Republic, Hungary, Latvia, Romania, Russia,
Serbia, Slovakia, Slovenia).

Gender balance: In 2012, UniCredit launched the Group-wide
Gender Balance Programme with a view to creating fair work-
places, based on equal rights, for women and men and ensuring
that these values are firmly anchored in the corporate culture. The
degree to which this objective is reached, especially at managerial
levels, is measured by means of a dashboard on a half-yearly
basis. The programme has proved effective: the proportion of
women at senior management level in Bank Austria has increased
by 3% since 2012. Female members of the Supervisory Board cur-
rently account for 24 % of the total number, a strong improvement
compared with 5% in 2013.
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This progress reflects the strong commitment of the Gender Bal-
ance Programme members. A total of 24 diversity managers are
currently active, supported by their ambassadors, within the
framework of five global workstreams. Bank Austria has developed
a divisional ambassador concept. To support career planning by
women, advertisements of vacant managerial positions are pre-
sented to female candidates in particular. Specific communication
activities focus on women who have already been promoted to
managerial positions and act as models for other talents. Coopera-
tion across countries and divisions is being intensified through reg-
ular meetings and the involvement of subsidiaries in the Gender
Balance Programme. “Diversity Manager Couples” are formed for
the purpose of regularly sharing experience with UniCredit Bank
(HVB) in Germany in order to learn from one another. Targeted
training programmes underline the importance of equal opportuni-
ties. The Inclusion@work Workshop focuses on various aspects
including the combination of individual and organisational dimen-
sions, the influence of stereotypes on corporate performance, the
encouragement of self-assurance, an understanding of a person’s
own strengths and attitudes, and the relevance of networks and
self-marketing; the objective is to use this information as input in
each process. The purpose of the Gender Salon is to enhance
awareness of stereotypes, the self-assessment of men and women,
and gender-specific language.

@ Cross-regional IT platform for efficient human resources
management and lean HR processes: Over the past three years
we have simplified HR processes in our new working environment in
cooperation with HP and SAP. Our HR services are settled at hp’s
international Employee Shared Service Center (ESSSC) in Poland.
Following the transfer of performance management processes, we
migrated our HR tools for travel management and time management
to a state-of-the-art IT systems landscape at the turn of the year
2014/15. In 2015 we further deepened our strategic partnership
with hp by analysing and refining processes. The Employee Self-
Service function available on HR Gate covers travel management
and time management (holidays, presence entries), performance
management (arranging review meetings with employees, perfor-
mance evaluation) and further career, development and job tools. At
the turn of the year 2015/16 we migrated the payroll to our new HR
T platform. Our employees now have access to their electronic pay-
slips and can change personal data, specify transfers within the com-
pany and make other entries. We are thereby also making available
to our managers a new advanced HR information and reporting tool.
These milestones are two very important steps towards simplifying
our HR services and making them more transparent.

@ Awards: Our human resources activities received several awards
in the year under review. The Reverse Mentoring initiative, launched
in May 2015, aims at transforming internal digitalisation expertise.
Reverse mentoring is an exciting new approach: young talents and

digital natives are training senior managers. This programme attracts
strong interest, not only within the bank. In November 2015 the initia-
tive won the gold European Change Communication Award.

In 2015, Bank Austria received the Top Employer Award (Austria
& Europe) and the silver Best Recruiter Award for its numerous
recruiting activities.

HR Central and Eastern Europe

@ The CEE Human Resources team in Vienna plays an important
role for human resources management with regard to the CEE
Division and UniCredit banks in Central and Eastern Europe (CEE).
In both the CEE HR team in Vienna and the HR department of CEE
banks, the skills and organisational structure in place ensure effec-
tive professional coverage of the main HR topics and processes
with a focus on HR Business Partner activities — to provide the
operating units with the support required to achieve their objectives
— and expertise centres such as Learning & Development, Com-
pensation and HR Planning. The CEE HR team in Vienna also plays
a key role in steering the main processes across the region and
ensuring the exchange of best practice among the various coun-
tries. Since 2014, the CEE HR team has been engaged in the CEE
2020 and CEE 2020 PLUS programme — the CEE Division’s strate-
gic programme for sustainable growth of our business, aimed at
accelerating the development of the best people through different
initiatives like Functional Academies, Development Centres and
innovative learning tools. All the initiatives focus on creating the
next leader generation for CEE banks based on an international
background, rounded banking knowledge, risk awareness and agil-
ity to perform in different geographies.

@ CEE 2020 & CEE 2020 Plus. The year 2015 saw the suc-
cessful implementation of HR measures under the CEE 2020
project aimed at accelerating executive development and
strengthening the succession pipeline. Based on this success,
attention is now being given to CEE 2020 Plus, which encom-
passes three major initiatives to enhance commercial performance
capability and human capital:

» Dynamic and flexible recruiting to use the skills of employees in
an efficient manner.

» Accelerating the development of competencies required to use
new technologies and working methods.

» Strengthening employee engagement with regard to recognition,
growth opportunities, innovation and virtual cooperation. In this
context HR provides innovative solutions with a sharp focus on best
practice and taking external trends into account.

@ CEE Learning & Development: The development potential of
our CEE talents and successors for managerial positions in Cor-
porate & Investment Banking, Global Transaction Banking, Retail
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Banking, Global Business Solutions and in the Internal Audit com-

petence line was analysed at newly designed Development Cent-
ers, and professional support was given for the implementation of
their individual development plans. In 2015, 185 employees from

all CEE countries took part in these development programmes.

November 2015 saw the first CEE Conference for Modelling, an
innovative conference organised and serviced by the Croatian col-
leagues in Zagreb in cooperation with CEE HR L&D. This three-day
event provided an opportunity for experts from the entire UniCredit
Group to share experience, participate in training, and design future
business models and solutions to meet customer needs. 130
employees from different divisions of UniCredit Group — mainly from
CEE countries — attended the conference and the presentations
made by external and internal experts. The programme was rounded
off with panel discussions and mini workshops.

The CEE Private Banking Functional Academy was successfully
rolled out to all CEE markets and further optimised. In 2015, this
effective concept was also implemented in the form of a Global
Transaction Academy for over 500 employees in specialist areas
(including cash management, trade finance and processing) in 12
CEE countries. Recognised experts from Austria and CEE coun-
tries are also available as an internal specialist trainer com-
munity. Some 500 employees from CEE were trained within the
framework of 40 internal seminars; this approach helped to
achieve a significant reduction of costs associated with external
consultants. Following the widely recognised 70:20:10 concept
(learning on the job accounts for 70% of total training, other
learning methods — e.g. mentoring, coaching — represent 20 %,
and formal learning settings, e.g. classroom training, account for
10 %), functional academy training and seminars are an integral
part of on-the-job training and the day-to-day application of what
has been learned.

New working world at the Austria Campus

Building new headquarters. Construction work on the Austria
Campus started in January 2015. This means that our project involving
the construction of new headquarters is now being implemented.
Historic representational buildings are no longer suitable for banks,
such buildings lack flexibility and are associated with high costs.
Moreover, our head office units are accommodated in several loca-
tions throughout Vienna. We are therefore investing in new headquar-
ters for Bank Austria and about 20 other UniCredit Group companies
in Austria. For this purpose we have developed the Austria Campus
at Vienna’s former Northern Railway Station, one of the city’s key
development areas. In addition to office space covering a gross area
of about 200,000 square metres, the buildings which are under
construction there will also accommodate infrastructure facilities and
shops. SIGNA, an Austrian company specialising in real estate, acts

as developer in respect of the relevant construction work, which is
scheduled for completion in 2019. Two of the new buildings (con-
struction sites 5 and 8) will be used by Bank Austria under a long-
term rent agreement. Construction of the basement storeys of this
office landscape for some 6,000 employees started at the end of
2015; the offices account for about 45 per cent of the Austria Campus
and are due for completion in 2018. Bank Austria itself will be
responsible for the interior of the buildings so that it can design the
headquarters in line with its own plans.

More than a construction project: The new headquarters are
intended to unlock synergies totalling an annual €25 million from
2020, through time savings and shorter distances, more efficient use
of space and lower operating and maintenance costs. Besides
strengthening the team spirit among employees, the new design of
our headquarters will result in efficient and attractive working meth-
ods for head office banking functions. This modernisation project is
being implemented hand in hand with the reorganisation of our
branch network, which started in 2013.

=> The new working world will be realised through office archi-
tecture which can be used on an individual basis, state-of-the-art
technology and processes with low paper consumption. A test office
opened in autumn 2015 — called “Campino” and set up in one of the
bank’s office buildings, with equipment reflecting the latest planning
stage of the Austria Campus — provides all employees with an insight
into the new working methods. More than 120 employees use about
1,250 square metres of office space and test the new workplace
concept, including desk sharing and the clean desk principle. Users
of Campino are also offered greater work flexibility in terms of time
and location. There are plans to offer these flexible arrangements,
which are referred to as “Remote Work”, to all head office units and
their employees after the test period.

Communication via digital channels

Digital change is permeating corporate communications, with inten-
sive use being made of the new channels in combination with links
to classic communication instruments, and with content management
also reflecting this profound change. Digital channels are advancing
at all levels of the company and in communication with all external
and internal stakeholders, accelerating the pace of communication
and enhancing transparency. Banking business itself is also undergo-
ing a digital transformation, especially at Bank Austria with its Smart-
Banking service approach.

P Bank Austria maintains a broadly-based social media pres-
ence enabling the bank to reach many groups of people with dif-
ferent interests and to provide them with targeted information
and support. Facebook and Google+ focus on services and info-
tainment while Twitter offers information covering press releases,
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economic affairs and banking. Our YouTube channel presents
Bank Austria via videos and images. We maintain company pro-
files on the Xing, LinkedIn, Watchado and Kununu platforms,
where we concentrate on training and jobs. The BusinessForum
on XING is a platform offered by Bank Austria for dialogue
between its customers and employees. Our eBooks are available
for download free of charge.

P Bank Austria’s Wirtschaft Online portal, introduced in Janu-
ary 2014, was extended in 2015 to include the new Bank exklusiv
Online magazine. “Bank exklusiv”, Bank Austria’s customer
magazine, was redesigned in autumn 2015: the print edition was
reduced and now includes links to contributions on Wirtschaft
Online. Readers can access our Wirtschaft Online portal for infor-
mation, detailed analyses and in-depth reports which complement
and expand on articles in the print edition of “Bank exklusiv”. In
2015 we recorded strong interest in Bank Austria’s “Sicherheit
Online” security portal. Given the large number of cases of
attempted fraud, especially in online banking, the security portal
provides notices warning against phishing attacks, viruses etc.
Also included is information on tricks used by internet fraudsters
and guidance on how users can protect themselves against fraud.
Both “Sicherheit Online” and “Wirtschaft Online” are available in
versions optimised for all mobile devices.

Sustainability management

Sustainability, social responsibility and sparing use of natural
resources guide our day-to-day activities. The balance between eco-
nomic, ecological and social objectives has been a highly significant
factor at Bank Austria for many years. Bank Austria’s stakeholder
management activities play a crucial role in our pursuit of sustaina-
bility. It is a question of identifying, within and outside the bank, the
needs of important stakeholders and including them in the measures
to improve corporate sustainability. This also requires open and
transparent communication: Bank Austria’s sustainability report, enti-
tled “Unser Engagement” (“Our Commitment”), can be viewed in the
“Sustainability” section at www. bankaustria. at; it provides an over-
view of our commitment to society and the environment.

Social commitment is an essential component of our sustainability
strategy. “Acting together for a respectful society” (www. gemeinsam-
miteinander. bankaustria. at) is an initiative which we have launched
to make a broader public familiar with our social commitment and
stimulate discussion on such important topics as tolerance, respect
and social interaction.

@ In our social sponsoring activities we pursue a clear strategy by
primarily supporting initiatives which help children and young people
in need, and which also focus on integration/migration. Every year,
we present the Bank Austria Social Prize, with prize money of

€10,000, in each of Austria’s federal provinces to award outstanding
initiatives in the social sphere. The €30,000 Bank Austria Social
Innovation Award was presented for the first time in 2013. It focuses
on innovations in the social sector, with a different target region
selected every year. The region chosen in 2015 was Upper Austria,
with plans and ideas for the successful integration of refugees;
attention in the two preceding years had focused on the Tyrol and on
Lower Austria. The two prizes were made possible by support pro-
vided by UniCredit Foundation.

Long-term partnerships which we have developed over many years
with well-known social care organisations are a particularly impor-
tant aspect of our activities in the social sector. Focusing on continu-
ity, this strategy has been pursued in our cooperation with SOS Chil-
dren’s Villages, where we act as house sponsor in Children’s Villages
throughout Austria. Caritas is another partner with which we have
maintained close cooperation in Vienna and throughout Austria for
many years. This covers proven projects such as young Caritas Kéfig
League, the Bank Austria Volunteers Day and cooperation in disaster
relief activities; in 2015, our long-standing cooperation with Caritas
also concentrated on refugee aid. In view of current developments
we saw the importance of providing quick help, without excessive
bureaucracy, to those who arrived. A number of refugee aid activities
were launched in cooperation with Caritas, the initial reception centre
in eastern Austria, the Red Cross and many other institutions, with
the involvement of active helpers.

Bank Austria’s “Gift Matching Programme” is an annual initiative
which promotes the social commitment of the bank’s employees.
Private donations made by employees are increased by funds held
by UniCredit Foundation if the initiating employees succeed in
inspiring at least 10 colleagues to donate to the same charity and
exceed a threshold. The donor groups formed among employees
ensure stimulating internal communication on social issues. The
Gift Matching Programme 2015 raised over €300,000 for more
than 70 projects, an amount which will now be significantly
increased by the Foundation.

@ Financial education is another important initiative, targeted
mainly at young people. Our website www. finanz-bildung. at has
been created to provide young people, students and teachers with
information on various aspects of money. With a renowned partner,
the Austrian Museum for Social and Economic Affairs, we offer free
workshops to interested schools throughout Austria. The topics dis-
cussed range from the functions of money and banks to banking
products and distributive justice. The objective is to give young peo-
ple an overview of the various types of financial transactions, to draw
their attention to opportunities and risks, and to inform them of their
rights and duties as consumers of financial products. In addition to
passing on knowledge, the workshops are aimed at encouraging
young people to critically examine how they themselves handle
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money and the significance of money in their social environment.
Some 10,000 schoolchildren attend the workshops every year.

@ For an international and diverse company like Bank Austria,
diversity management is an integral component of its corporate
culture while also promoting productivity, creativity and innova-
tion. Our employees differ from one another in their gender, the
colour of their skin, in their language, ethnic, cultural and reli-
gious values, marital status, age, disabilities, social status and
sexual orientation. We see the diversity of our employees as a
major asset for the company. Numerous initiatives are being
implemented to promote a work-life balance and equal opportuni-
ties for men and women. Looking at all levels of management is
key to the success of these efforts. Qualitative objectives and
quantitative targets in respect of gender are defined and meas-
ured with regard to (almost) any activity.

Bank Austria’s disability management activities are seen as a
model across borders. Two disability managers are responsible
for planning and implementing numerous disability-related meas-
ures. They are supported by a network of about 60 disability
employees, and awareness of this issue is raised by employee
training programmes. In pilot projects we are testing various pos-
sibilities for helping disabled persons to settle their banking business.
Measures that have already been implemented include a special
bank card for visually impaired persons, sections of Bank Austria’s
website which enable customers to listen to spoken information
and watch videos in sign language or read texts in simple lan-
guage, and a shuttle service introduced in 2010 for customers
with limited mobility, which is steadily being expanded to cover
the whole of Austria. Most of our bank’s buildings and branches
already offer barrier-free access, and we plan to make all of them
barrier-free by the end of 2016 as branches are redesigned.
Since autumn 2015 our SmartBanking services have been available
in sign language to deaf people. They can now use Bank Austria’s
advisory services via video calls, benefiting from simultaneous
translation into sign language by interpreters employed by Ser-
viceCenter OGS. barrierefrei.

Environmental management

@ An environmental management system (EMS) has been in
place at Bank Austria since 2009. In May 2011, Bank Austria’s EMS
was certified in accordance with ISO 14001, a standard that is
widely recognised internationally. The EMS covers the head office
buildings and all branches. By complying with this important stand-
ard, a company can prove that it operates in harmony with the envi-
ronment. Environmental management benefits the community while
also involving advantages for the company in the form of cost sav-
ings resulting from more efficient use of resources. The company
thus makes an important contribution to reducing CO2.

Over the past two years, “focus groups” composed of members of spe-
cialised units have been very successful in four strategic areas of envi-
ronmental issues. They have drawn up concrete measures to reduce
direct environmental impacts (consumption of natural resources, gen-
eration of waste) and indirect impacts (caused by the behaviour of third
parties). The great importance given to ecological sustainability and a
sparing use of resources is reflected in the organisational set-up of the
EMS: the steering committee is headed by the Chief Executive Officer
of UniCredit Bank Austria AG.

In CEE we enhance environmental awareness through the cross-

regional UniCredit sustainability network of central and local contacts.
Specific CEE initiatives are described in the UniCredit Sustainability
Report, which corresponds to the highest Global Reporting Initia-

tive (GRI) standard.

@ In regard to operational climate protection considerations,
Bank Austria, as one of the six founding members, has since November
2011 been a partner of klima:aktiv pakt2020, which was created by the
Austrian Ministry of Life. The participating companies undertake, through
a voluntary agreement on objectives, to meet the Austrian climate-related
targets for 2020. Bank Austria has additionally committed itself to reduc-
ing CO2 emissions by 45% and achieving a 51 % share of renewable
energies. Bank Austria further reduced business travel through the use
of video conferencing facilities and the trend towards digitalisation in
the working world. A positive secondary effect of the gradual expansion
of “remote work” is that it reduces environmental pollution, especially
the pollution caused by commuters who use cars. Last but not least,
Bank Austria is taking measures to enhance awareness among its
employees: the most recent example is a training instrument for all
employees in the form of an interactive film on energy efficiency.

Key environmental indicators1)

2015 2014 2013

€02 emissions in t2) 19,876 20,204 21,896
Electricity consumption in MWh 65,750 68,243 68,9009
Heating in MWh 44,500 43,954 52,0009

Business travel in thsd km 14,233 14,059 12,935

of which: air travel 8,506 8,461 8,334

by car 4,001 3,918 2,702

by train 1,725 1,680 1,899

Water consumption in m3 246,8109 217,429 215,358

Waste in kg 2,514,0749 2,418,726 2,508,311

Paper consumption in kg 424,566 517,682 591,958

of which copying paper 278,179 317,225 390,343

1) All branches, head office buildings and subsidiaries located therein. / 2) Since 2010,
all electricity supplied to Bank Austria has come from renewable sources of energy. /
3) Projection. / 4) UniCredit Bank Austria AG only. / 5) Increased consumption due to
repair and renewal of water pipes. / 6) Increase caused by waste disposal initiative.

In the past few years, our measures to improve energy effi-
ciency focused on reducing consumption of electricity (which
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accounts for about 60 % of overall energy consumption); these
include the areas of refrigeration and IT. All electricity supplied to
Bank Austria comes from renewable sources of energy, which is
guaranteed by a certificate issued by the bank’s energy supplier
confirming that 100 % of the electricity supplied is hydroelectric
power. As a contribution to increasing the proportion of renewable
energy, the bank has installed photovoltaic systems at branches
in Innsbruck and Hirschstetten/Vienna and a solar power installa-
tion in Vienna’s second district, on the roof of the Lassallestrasse
5 office building, which enables Bank Austria to save a CO2
equivalent of about 35 tonnes annually. The Austria Campus,
where the new office building for our headquarters is under con-
struction, is expected to result in a significant improvement in
energy efficiency from 2019.

Report on research and development

Bank Austria’s business purpose is to provide banking services.
The production process of a bank does not involve research and
development in an industrial sense. But day-to-day business opera-
tions continuously benefit from development activities. Generally,
Bank Austria aims to meet the needs of different customer groups
with simple products. In addition, there is an ongoing need for new
developments and adjustments to meet regulatory requirements.
Current expenses include those on product development, methodo-
logical progress in the areas of risk management and finance, and
on support for compliance-related activities.

In the area of information and communication technology
(ICT), investment planning takes place at UniCredit level. It is
based on local requests and considers synergies which may be
unlocked by the cross-regional approach. Expenditure on infor-
mation and communication technology (investment budgets)
which can be capitalised represents cash outflows at UBIS. This
is different to the current expenses which are charged to the
bank and the individual business segments (via Global Banking
Services, which is part of the Corporate Center).

In 2015 we invested about €70 million in various strategic pro-
jects (including Bank Austria’s share of UniCredit projects man-
aged on a cross-regional basis). These projects focus on several
Core areas:

» As in 2014, a number of retail banking initiatives and, to a
lesser extent, preparations for the Campus accounted for a large
proportion (about one-quarter) of total investments. Focal areas
were the development of digital channels such as SmartBanking
and the upgrading of OnlineBanking services. Moreover, signifi-
cant investments were made in the expansion of self-service
facilities (equipment in self-service zones, cash recyclers ...).

P Development costs associated with regulatory requirements
have increased strongly over the years. Such costs, including
investments to enhance risk instruments, remained at a high
level of about 20% in 2015. Significant costs were associated
with implementing regulatory requirements in the area of finan-
cial reporting and with providing IT support for Compliance (Anti
Money Laundering & Fraud Detection). Including adjustments to
the SEPA environment, investments to meet regulatory require-
ments accounted for about 45% of the total amount.

P Software updates, process optimisation and various devel-
opment activities, including innovative solutions for advisory
services and settlement in business with large customers and
capital market activities of the CIB Division, accounted for
about 30%. Long-term strategic projects include initial Big
Data initiatives.

Operations, ICT, Infrastructure

A cross-regional infrastructure for settlement, IT and internal
services is a key component of UniCredit’s operating model. The
objective is to provide optimum support to the bank’s customer
service units with a view to creating value, bundling technical
expertise, strengthening the bank’s innovative power and improv-
ing cost efficiency. The need for such measures is underlined by
the growing relevance of IT and back-office activities (taxation of
securities, reporting requirements, regulatory requirements etc.).
Moreover, the operating model is a major factor helping to
achieve strategic objectives, including the reorientation of retail
banking operations. A general cross-regional service model is
consistent with the logic of an international banking group. This
function is performed by UniCredit Business Integrated Solutions
S.C.p.A. (UBIS S.C.p.A.), a wholly-owned company of UniCredit.

UBIS and UBIS Austria

@ UniCredit Business Integrated Solutions S.C.p.A. (UBIS)
offers the customer service units flexible and integrated banking
services with an end-to-end logic. The company thus provides a
timely response to changes in customer needs while assuring
innovation, transparency, flexibility and time-to-market. With this
unique service model UBIS is positioning itself among the most
important service providers for the banking sector in Europe.

In Austria, UBIS is represented through its wholly-owned subsidiary
UniCredit Business Integrated Solutions Austria GmbH (UBIS
Austria). The company’s main customer is UniCredit Bank Austria AG
(Bank Austria), which uses services in the areas of Information and
Communication Technology (ICT), Back Office, Operations, Real
Estate, Security and Procurement.
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At the end of 2015, UniCredit Business Integrated Solutions Austria
GmbH had about 2,000 employees, including branches in Poland
and Romania. Overall, UniCredit Business Integrated Solutions has
around 10,000 employees, who work in two legal entities and several
branches in nine European countries and in New York and Singapore.

® In 2015 UBIS continued its activities, started in 2014, to stabi-
lise internet banking; the company also further developed and
expanded direct banking functions. UBIS was closely involved in
modernising Bank Austria’s sales network in line with the multi-
channel strategy (SmartBanking initiative, new design of branches
to support product sales and advisory services via video calls, digi-
tal marketplace, OnlineShop and online branch). The system cur-
rently used for payment settlement is fragmented and outdated;
there are plans to replace it with a modern market solution featur-
ing a high degree of automation and optimised processes. Among
the other projects, attention continued to focus on the Austria
Campus in 2015, specifically in connection with construction of the
new buildings and activities to prepare employees for changes in
working methods and processes (“New Work”). Moreover, in the
area of operations, UBIS started to build global competence cen-
tres in nearshore countries, which will help to further reduce settle-
ment costs relating to customer products.

Campino is a pilot project under which the Group’s SmartWork-
ing principles have been implemented in office space for about
120 employees located in Vienna’s Lassallestrasse. UBIS was
responsible for two key parts of the project: the Real Estate ser-
vice line carried out structural alterations of the office space des-
ignated for the Campino project and it also designed and imple-
mented the new office landscape (modules for office and commu-
nication zones) and the management concept. The ICT service
line of UBIS arranged for all Campino employees to be provided
with a notebook and a flexible new telephone solution to support
the required mobility. The various office modules were equipped
with advanced media technology. “Follow-me printing” was intro-
duced on a pilot basis enabling all employees to collect printouts
of their documents at any follow-me printer in a secure manner
by using their Bank Austria identity cards. This helped to reduce
the number of printers from previously 57 to 3 machines. Feed-
back from Campino employees provides valuable information to
be used as input for the workplace of the future.

dIPS - for a paperless office: Under the dIPS project, a strategy
was drawn up jointly with UniCredit Bank Austria to create a
paperless working environment for employees of Bank Austria
and UBIS Austria. The required technical components will be
selected, and the functional requirements will be defined, in
cooperation with UniCredit Group. Started in 2015, implementa-
tion of the project will continue in 2016 under the new project

name “SmartOffice”. Some of the technical implementation activi-
ties have been transferred to UniCredit’s Digital Agenda project to
unlock Group synergies.

EuroMIB, a global end-to-end trading platform set up by UBIS
S.C.p.A. in 2014 for Bank Austria and banks in CEE countries, was
completed in 2015 with the Global Murex Support model of the
Markets and F&A AT business line. Serving as first point of contact
for Bank Austria and the local banks in CEE countries (Bulgaria,
(Czech Republic, Hungary, Romania, Serbia, Slovakia, Slovenia, Bosnia
and Herzegovina) the main objective of the support team was to build
trust-based relationships with the local business units to provide
coordinated IT solutions for the global platform.

@ Outlook: UBIS is working intensively to further improve its ser-
vices, despite the need to reduce its own costs. These efforts rely
on the further development and stronger use of new technologies.
From a customer perspective, i.e. from Bank Austria’s point of
view, business has changed substantially — as a result of the
restrictive market environment (trends in interest rates and
demand) and of tighter regulatory requirements, and also on
account of new technologies (digitalisation, customer prefer-
ences). Bank Austria has decided to give its retail banking opera-
tions a completely new orientation and to streamline administra-
tive activities performed by head office units within the Corporate
Center. This means that UBIS, as a service provider maintaining
close business relations with Bank Austria, is presented with new
challenges and the need to provide new solutions. UBIS and UBIS
Austria, especially the Real Estate, IT and Operations business
lines, will strongly support Bank Austria in its restructuring pro-
jects by optimising settlement costs, especially through increased
nearshoring and digitalisation.

Further information

The following detailed information is included in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements:

P Events after the end of the reporting period are included in Section
F.15 within “F — Additional disclosures” of the notes to the consoli-
dated financial statements on page 294.

P The risk report is a separate chapter (“E — Risk report”) in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements (pages 225 to 277).
P The report on key features of the internal control and risk man-
agement systems in relation to the financial reporting process is
contained in section E.16 of the risk report (pages 276 and 277).
» Information on the use of financial instruments is included in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, parts B, C and E in
particular.
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Development of business segments

Retail & Corporates

Business segment as a whole (incl. Leasing and FactorBank) of which: Retail of which: Corporates

(€ million) 2015 20141 CHANGE 2015 20141 CHANGE 2015 20141 CHANGE

Operating income 1,486 1,548 -61 -3.9% 727 747 =20 -2.7% 700 735 -35 -48%
Operating costs -1,096 -1,108 +12 -11% —721 -720 -1 +01% -340 -352 +13 -3.6%
Operating profit 390 440 -49 -11.2% 6 27 =21 n.m. 360 383 -23 -6.0%
Net write-downs of loans —-28 -56 +29 -50.9% -19 24 43 n.m. 2 —-66 +68 n.m.
Net operating profit 363 383 -21 -54% -13 51 -64 n.m. 362 316 +45 +14.2%
Profit before tax 269 327 -58 -17.7% -50 34 -84 n.m. 304 277  +27 +97%
Loans to customers (avg.) 44,308 43,042 +1,265 +2.9% 14,529 | 13,741 +788 +57% 26,446 | 25955 +492 +19%
Direct funding (avg.) 43,188 41192 +1,996 +4.8% 21,762 | 21,460 +302 +1.4% 21,324 | 19,642 +1,681 +8.6%
Risk-weighted assets (avg.)2) 19,671 19,696 -25 -01% 8,026 7,772 +254 +3.3% 9,195 9,461 -266 -2.8%
Average equityd 1,966 2,060 -95 -46% 691 751 -60 -8.0% 899 919  -21 -23%

1) For segment reporting purposes, the comparative figures for 2014 were recast to reflect the structure and methodology of the 2015 reporting period (see the segment
reporting section in the notes to the consolidated financial statements on pages 216 and 217 of this report. / 2) Average risk-weighted assets (all risks) under Basel 3. /
3) Standardised capital; capital allocation to subsidiaries reflects actual IFRS capital. The difference compared with the consolidated IFRS equity of Bank Austria is included

in the Corporate Center./ This information applies to all business segment tables. / n.m. = not meaningful

The Retail & Corporates business segment covers two large sub-
divisions: Retail, which comprises customer segments ranging
from mass-market to affluent customers; and Corporates, the
subdivision serving the entire range of business customers, SMEs
and medium-sized and large companies which do not access cap-
ital markets (including Real Estate and Public Sector). The Division
also includes the specialised FactorBank AG and UniCredit Leas-
ing (Austria) GmbH, our Austrian leasing subsidiary. With 11 % of
all employees and an 14 % share of allocated capital, Retail &
Corporates generated 25 % of the bank’s total revenues (70 % of
total operating income from Austrian customer business). This
business segment also has to absorb substantial costs which are
in structural terms related to branch operations. Retail & Corpo-
rates contributed about 17 % to profit before tax generated by the
bank as a whole and accounted for 51 % of profit before tax from
Austrian customer business. Average direct funding of €43 billion
in Retail & Corporates makes the business segment an important
source of funding for the bank.

In 2015, the Retail & Corporates Division generated a profit
before tax of €269 million, a decrease of 17.7 % on the previ-
ous year. Operating income was down by €61 million (—3.9%)
although lending volume and direct funding increased. This
significant decline in operating income was not offset by cost
savings or by an improvement in net write-downs of loans and
provisions for guarantees and commitments. A strong increase
in systemic charges had an additional negative impact on
operating profit.

2015 was characterised by persistently low interest rates and, as
a consequence, a further decline in net interest. In the Retail
subdivision, construction and housing finance increased, a devel-

opment which also reflected appreciation of the Swiss franc.
Growth in direct funding (+4.8 %) came mainly from business
with corporate customers. The decline in customer interest rates
in lending business was significantly stronger than on the deposit
side. Overall, therefore, the interest margin continued to narrow.
Although the other components of operating income developed
favourably, especially net fees and commissions (+5.8 %), total
operating income was 3.9% lower than in the previous year.
Operating costs declined by 1.1%, reflecting lower payroll costs
and strict cost management. Net write-downs of loans and
provisions for guarantees and commitments in the Retail sub-
division increased in the first quarter of 2015 as the Swiss franc
appreciated; in the subsequent quarters the provisioning charge
remained low. The Corporates subdivision benefited from a net
release of provisions, which reflects the very good quality of its
loan portfolio. Overall, the provisioning charge in Retail & Corpo-
rates was down by €29 million on the previous year. Net operat-
ing profit declined by €21 million or 5.4 % to €363 million. How-
ever, the total charge for the bank levy and other systemic charges
was significantly higher (€70 million after €48 million in 2014),
contributing to the €58 million decline in profit before tax
(—=17.7 %) to €269 million.

@ Significant changes in customer behaviour present major
challenges to retail banking operations. Customers visit
branches less frequently and the number of customers who use
branches for their banking transactions is declining. Strong
growth is recorded in OnlineBanking and MobileBanking ser-
vices. Two in three customers who maintain accounts at the
bank use OnlineBanking, with one in two log-ins being made via
mobile devices. It is therefore essential to make available the
right mix of branches — which are larger, with a modern design
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and better equipment, though their number is lower — and a
future-oriented online offering. In 2015, the Retail subdivision
won 85,000 new customers.

Bank Austria pursued its transformation, initiated in 2014, into
a modern universal bank, in which branches and the digital
marketplace, comprising the Online-Shop and the online branch,
will have equal weight as channels for product sales and advisory
services in the medium term. In 2015, 43 smaller branches were
combined to form significantly larger branches with a wider offer-
ing of advisory services. More than 40 branches currently have
extended opening hours, with 30 branches in Vienna being avail-
able to customers from 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. and 10 branches in
other Austrian regions offering their services from 8.30 a.m. to
5.30 p.m. in most cases. Moreover, some 35 branches through-
out Austria were modernised according to the new branch
design. Bank Austria’s new branches offer a completely new
customer experience, with specialist teams for finance and
investments, cash manager machines, information tablets, digital
signage, reception managers welcoming customers and many
other features. Planning activities for the conversion of a large
number of other branches are underway. Bank Austria has
become the first bank in Austria to serve its customers with a
complete offering via various channels: from personal advisory
services at branches and advisory services via video calls as part
of the SmartBanking approach all the way to OnlineBanking,
MobileBanking and TelefonBanking.

The services offered by the SmartBanking Online Branch have
been expanded: personal advisory services via video calls are now
available until 8.00 p.m. and customers can use various Services
via telephone, SMS and e-mail. SmartBanking services are now
also available to deaf customers, who thereby benefit from added
value. The new version of the Bank Austria MobileBanking app
turns a smartphone into a personal financial centre. The app gives
access to information on key banking products, an overview of the
customer’s account balances, an overview of nearby cash dis-
pensers, management of bank cards and limits, up-to-date infor-
mation on securities holdings and the possibility to make transfers
via QR code. Customers who need additional advice can use the
app to arrange an appointment with their relationship managers.
Bank Austria is the first bank in Austria to provide users of its
MobileBanking app with a brief overview of recent transactions via
widgets without a need to log in: customers can see their account
balance and recent transactions at a glance.

Another first for a bank in Austria is BankGard Mobil, a virtual
bank card offered by Bank Austria for smartphones. Customers
can use their mobile phones to make contactless payments of up
to 25 euros at NFC payment terminals in shops around the world.

The new feature also enables customers to do their online shop-
ping and, in the future, to make contactless cash withdrawals at
cash dispensers.

Since autumn 2014, Bank Austria has been offering CashBack,
a highly attractive and unique customer loyalty programme, which
was extended in October 2015 to include CashBack Online. This
enables our customers to benefit from discounts on online pur-
chases at over 500 online shops of benefitWorld, our cooperation
partner, and at travel portals. CashBack has so far led to over one
million euros being credited to our customers’ accounts.

As part of its market initiative in 2015, Bank Austria decided to
apply variable interest rates on overdraft facilities, charging
EURIBOR plus 7 per cent p.a. The bank previously applied fixed
interest rates, a practice which was maintained over several
decades. This change ensures that interest rates on debit bal-
ances in customers’ accounts always reflect market conditions.
Customers who hold current accounts at Bank Austria can
switch to one of the new accounts easily and conveniently to
benefit from the new lower interest rate on overruns.

Customers using advisory services at a branch in connection
with construction or housing loans can additionally benefit from
the expertise of real estate specialists, who can take part in
the advisory talk via a video call. As a rule, lending decisions
can thus be made while the customer is talking with his or her
relationship manager, and residential property is accurately
appraised using a real estate valuation system developed
together with Vienna’s University of Technology (TU Wien). New
business increased by 64.1 % over the previous year.

Marketing and sales activities in the fourth quarter of 2015
focused on a “fitness check for optimised savings, invest-
ments and retirement planning”. To support customers in mak-
ing their financial plans, attention is given to a balanced interplay
of various options for savings, investments and retirement plan-
ning. Using various types of investment will enhance stability and
earnings potential. The fitness check builds on these elements to
cover all needs of private customers. Various online and offline
advertising channels were used to ensure a very wide reach. In
the area of investments, UniCredit Bank Austria AG works closely
with Pioneer Investments Austria GmbH. The Komfort Invest
family of funds of funds is the product focus in this context.
Komfort Invest funds enable customers to enter the large invest-
ment universe with a mix of various asset classes and markets in
the form of mutual funds. Five different versions offer the appro-
priate mix of return and risk. A customer’s objectives and risk
appetite are discussed during an advisory talk. This strategy
proved effective also in 2015. Pioneer Funds Austria — Protect
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Invest Europe is a new fund launched by Pioneer Investments
Austria GmbH which combines various security mechanisms. The
fund offers a variable 80 % peak-value guarantee by UniCredit
Bank Austria AG. Soon after its launch the new fund proved that
the built-in security mechanisms work. The fund coped well with
the phases of market turbulence in the second half of 2015 and
also performed very well compared with competing products.
The total volume of sales of mutual funds was up by 27.6 % on
the previous year.

Outlook: To implement the adopted restructuring measures on
the revenue and cost sides (see the “Strategic evolution” sec-
tion on page 50 of this report) we will take advantage of
advancing digitalisation in the coming years to serve customers
and streamline internal processes. Branches and the digital
marketplace, with the Online-Shop and the online branch, will be
given equal weight as channels for product sales and advisory
services. In the medium term, banking services and advisory
services will be available at branches and in the digital market-
place 24 hours a day and 7 days a week, at a significantly
higher level of cost efficiency than has been the case so far.
Branches will be fewer in number but considerably larger and
offer a significantly wider range of advisory services. Services
for small businesses and independent professionals will also be
expanded and offered in some 70 locations from 2016.

@ In the Corporates subdivision, 2015 marked the first year
in which major euro interest rate indicators moved into nega-
tive territory. From April onwards, for example, the 3-month
EURIBOR was negative, leading to historically low levels of
interest rates on loans and deposits.

Although financing terms were extremely favourable in 2015,
the year continued to see only moderate investment propensity
on the part of corporate customers and credit demand was low.
Total lending volume in business with Austrian companies
remained more or less constant. Bank Austria recorded slight
growth in loans to corporate customers, enabling the bank to
gain market share.

In this environment Bank Austria placed emphasis on one of the
main investment topics: with the energy efficiency package for
companies we support our corporate customers in developing
effective measures to save energy and help them identify suita-
ble financial assistance schemes while offering financing solu-
tions which take account of companies’ specific circumstances.

Another USP of Bank Austria in lending business is investment
finance for innovative Austrian companies using a Risk-Sharing
Instrument (RSI) guarantee. Bank Austria is currently the only

Austrian commercial bank to have concluded a framework agree-
ment with the European Investment Fund (EIF) and can thus grant
specific loans guaranteed by the EIF via the RSI. This enables
innovative companies to finance their investments at significantly
lower cost.

Unlike the trend in loans, the market for deposits from compa-
nies grew by about 5% in 2015. Bank Austria benefited from this
development and achieved gains in market share beyond average
market growth. Companies preferred sight deposits, which
recorded the strongest growth despite very low interest rates.

In 2015 we continued our initiative aimed at internationalisation,
a key driver of growth. We provided our corporate customers with
product-specific know-how and made our international network
available to them worldwide. Experts from UniCredit Group were
present at a number of events organised for customers and held
personal talks with customers on country-specific features and
business opportunities. In regional terms, the focus was on Cen-
tral and Eastern Europe and China. Conversely, we also provided
extensive assistance to companies from other countries in
expanding their business and setting up operations in Austria. Our
customers appreciated especially the services available within our

Austrian customer business:
components of commercial spread

Average volume Interest income/expense
in € billion in % of volume

70.0 Loans Deposits 2.50%
68.0 2259 (incl. debt securities in issue)

66.0
64.0 Customer interest

62.0 (income)
—-0.35pp
60.0

58.0 Volume
56.0 +6.9%

1.90% 2.00%

1.50%

Volume
54.0 +2.2%
52.0 1.00%

Customer
50.0 interest

48.0 (expense)
' -0.13pp

46.0 IN?% 0.50%

44.0
420

40.0 0.00%
2014 2015 2014 2015

Managerial data. / pp = percentage points
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international UniCredit network, the simplified account-opening
and lending processes across various countries, and our tailor-
made solutions. In 2016 we aim to further expand our position
as market leader in international business. The UniCredit Inter-
national Centers have been established as internationalisation
hubs: they help medium-sized companies which are active in
our core markets in Europe and also in Asia and America to
benefit from the advantages of a comprehensive cross-border
business relationship with UniCredit Group.

Bank Austria is aware of its social responsibility also in business
with corporate customers and institutions. With a specific offer-
ing for non-governmental organisations — the “NGO Bonus”
— the bank is underlining its commitment to sustainability.

BusinessCenter24 is a newly created unit which, in combina-
tion with improved SmartBanking Business services, makes
our range of services significantly more attractive to small busi-
nesses and companies. Many customers can now settle day-to-
day transactions easily and conveniently from their homes or
offices, from Monday to Friday, 8 a.m. to 6 p.m. Competent
relationship managers and assistants are available to customers
by telephone and by video call to help them with their daily
business needs.

Demand for real estate was again supported by extremely low
interest rates in 2015. Although returns generated by real estate
continued to decling, they remained highly attractive when com-
pared with alternative investments such as government bonds.
As a result, commercial real estate transactions reached a
record volume. In this dynamic environment, and in the face of
intense competition, the Real Estate department achieved a new
record level of €3.1 billion in investment and development
finance in Austria. Financing activities focused on commercial
real estate, with office space accounting for 36 % of total vol-
ume, followed by residential property with 28 %, retail shops
with about 25% and other/logistics with 11 %. Hedging trans-
actions were used for a large proportion of new business to
hedge against an increase in interest rates. A number of initia-
tives launched by Real Estate in the area of investments led to a
strong expansion of investment volume.

Public Sector had a very good year, with deposits exceeding
expectations (in terms of both volume and income contribution)
while developments in lending business more or less met expec-
tations. The ratio of public finance tenders awarded to Bank Austria
underlines the bank’s market leadership position in this segment.
While financing volume was in line with the moderate forecasts,
hopes were not fulfilled as public investors showed restraint on
account of the stability pact. We will probably see no easing of

the austerity policy for the time being, and therefore marketing
efforts are focusing on public private partnerships, which ease the
burden of public debt. Bank Austria commissioned a study on this
topic, which is available to the Austrian public sector for download
free of charge. Another free service for the public sector, presented
at the traditional forums organised by Bank Austria for municipal
authorities in autumn 2015, is a tool which will help Austrian
municipalities with the valuation of assets required for the first time
under new budgeting regulations.

UniCredit Leasing (Austria) GmbH covers all areas of the leas-
ing market. It is among Austria’s top 3 leasing companies, financ-
ing real estate, aviation, renewables and all types of machinery
and equipment. In addition the company offers motor vehicle
leasing and fleet management services. New business in the
entire Austrian leasing market is growing at a single-digit rate
(forecast: between 6% and 8%). This compares with a 15%
expansion of UniCredit Leasing’s new business in the 2015 finan-
cial year, double the rate of market growth.

FactorBank AG, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank Austria, offers
companies in the services, trading and manufacturing sectors with
an annual turnover of at least €5 million a modern instrument to
optimise their financing structure. Factoring can be used by almost
any company. Total factoring turnover in Austria rose by 11.3% to
€18.3 hillion in 2015. FactorBank AG maintained its position as
market leader in Austria, with a market share of over 43 %.
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Private Banking

(€ million) 2015 2014 CHANGE

Operating income 177 175 +2 +1.3%
Operating costs -121 -116 -5 +4.7%
Operating profit 56 59 -3 -52%
Net write-downs of loans 0 0 -0.2 n.m.
Net operating profit 56 59 -3 -55%
Profit before tax 51 53 -3 -49%
Total financial assets (avg.) 22,631 20,593  +2,039 +9.9%
Direct funding (avg.) 9,297 8,610 +688 +8.0%
Loans to customers (avg.) 609 622 -12 -2.0%
Risk-weighted assets (avg.) 524 600 -76 -12.7%
Average equity 200 170 +30 +17.4%

n.m. = not meaningful

The Private Banking segment, with the two well-known brands
Bank Austria Private Banking — the private banking arm of a major
bank — and Schoellerbank — a traditional private banking institution —
is the undisputed market leader in Austria’s private banking market.
At the end of 2015, total financial assets were €22.8 billion. Two-
thirds of the customers of Bank Austria Private Banking use the
bank’s extensive range of services, while Schoellerbank is perceived
primarily as an institution providing asset management and other
specialist services. With a presence in 24 locations throughout Aus-
tria, the Private Banking Division’s 542 employees (FTEs, year-end
2015) serve about 34,000 high net worth individuals with an invest-
ment potential of €500,000 or more and 1,172 foundations.

2015 was a very successful year for the Private Banking Division:
total financial assets grew by 6.7 % to €22.8 billion and operat-
ing income rose by 1.3% from €175 million to €177 million.
Profit before tax was €2.6 million below the level of the previous
year, declining from €53 million to €51 million. Higher systemic
charges (e.g. bank levy) accounted for more than one half of this
decline. The strategy of focusing on asset management, a value
creation-intensive service, and on a service approach which con-
centrates on providing holistic but flexible customer services and
a wide range of products which includes commercial banking
products, has been very successful — all the more so in an envi-
ronment of interest rates close to zero and investment conditions
which are perceived as being generally unfavourable.

@ In 2015, total financial assets (TFA) rose by 9.9% to an aver-
age €22.6 billion (see table); as of 31 December 2015 they came
to €22.8 billion, 6.7 % up on the previous year. The increase of
€1.4 billion was mainly driven by assets under management, while
assets under custody and direct deposits rose slightly.

The expansion of the leading market position in asset management,
the Private Banking Division’s core objective, is reflected in an

increase in the volume of assets under management over the past
years to a current share of over one-third (36 %) of TFA. One-third
of the 16.3% increase in assets under management to €8.3 billion
in 2015 is explained by good performance and two-thirds by ongo-
ing net inflows of funds, which were positive in every quarter of
the reporting period. At €6.2 billion, assets under custody (classic
safe-custody business) slightly exceeded the figure of the previous
year (+2.5%). Direct deposits, more volatile from quarter to quar-
ter, totalled €8.3 hillion at the end of 2015, 1.4% up on the previ-
ous year. Time deposits with long maturities and competitive terms
(Basel 3 products) met with a strong response from Private Banking
customers, partly at the expense of sight deposits. The attractive
interest rates offered by these time deposits were particularly pop-
ular with major customers with ample liquidity.

@ Operating income of the Private Banking business segment rose
by 1.3% to €177 million in 2015, in parallel with the expansion of
volume and turnover. Net interest declined by 8.0 % to €58 million,
reflecting the environment of low interest rates in the banking sector in
2015; strong deposit activity in the business segment was accompa-
nied by narrowing margins. Given the nature of private banking busi-
ness, net fees and commissions were again the largest income com-
ponent (64 %), contributing €114 million to operating income. This was
an increase of 4.6 % on the previous year. In line with the Division’s
business strategy, fee-based income from asset management, includ-
ing fund products, was up by 8.6 % and most recently accounted for
over three-quarters of net fees and commissions. This compared with a
year-on-year decline of 11.9% in income from custody services (safe-
custody charges, commission from trading activities etc.). Fee-based
income from other banking services rose by 8.4 %. Operating costs in
the reporting period rose by 4.7 % compared with the previous year,
with non-staff expenses (+6.8 %) accounting for two-thirds of the
increase and payroll costs (+3.5%) for the remaining one-third.

- After deduction of costs (and after the release of a small loan
loss provision) and inclusion of non-operating items (—€6 million,
with the bank levy accounting for €4 million of this amount),
profit before tax came to €51 million, a decline of 4.9% on
2014. Over one half of the decrease is due to systemic charges
(e.g. bank levy). As capital allocation to this service-intensive
business segment is low, and thanks to the high profitability and
competitiveness of Bank Austria’s Private Banking activities, ROE
before tax was disproportionately high at 25.4% (2014: 31.3%).

@ A long-term, sustainable business policy is of particular relevance
after a successful year such as 2015, in which our performance

more or less matched the good result of the previous year in the face
of a highly volatile market environment and economic uncertainty for
our customers and the bank. With the Bank Austria Private Banking
business model we embrace a holistic service philosophy geared to
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meeting clients’ specific needs. This is complemented by a broad
range of services which includes commercial banking products. This
approach proved to be very successful during the financial market
crisis. In a time which is characterised by historically low interest
rates and volatile markets for the foreseeable future, we give priority
to maintaining and optimising the value of our customers’ assets
over short-term performance targets and focus on managing risk
through wide diversification. Our holistic advisory approach includes
adjusting a customer’s portfolio to his or her personal needs. This is
achieved through liquidity planning, analyses of financial and portfolio
structures, customised plans for asset transfers and retirement plan-
ning. This approach reduces the Private Banking Division’s depend-
ence on current market developments.

These activities are based on a sound market view obtained
through comprehensive analyses by our experts in the Division.
We pass this information lead on to our clients each day by
means of an active information service provided in the form of
online newsletters and regular specialist publications. Investment
advisory and asset management services are also based on our
market view as a component of our advisory approach. Under our
Preferred Partners concept we cooperate closely with eleven of
the largest and most renowned fund partners, who were carefully
selected by us. On this basis we can offer our clients a selection
of mutual funds which meet their needs while reflecting our mar-
ket view and our quality criteria.

As in the previous years, the Preferred Partners concept has met with
a very favourable response from our customers. The Customer Advi-
sory Index (CAl), which is determined on the basis of a customer sat-
isfaction survey and is a key measure of the quality of advisory ser-

vices, rose by a further two points in 2015 to an excellent level of 86.

2015 saw the launching of the “UNIVERS” service model in
Bank Austria‘s Private Banking Division: based on a transparent one-
off fee, the customer can make investment decisions without consid-
ering the transaction costs. Customers with an overall investment
volume of over €600 million had opted for this model by the end of
2015. It is targeted at investors looking for professional advice and
execution, while preferring to take investment decisions themselves.

Bank Austria’s Private Banking Division serves 1,172 out of a
total of 3,257 private foundations and 460 foundations set up by
Austrian federal and provincial government agencies. On this
basis, Bank Austria is the market leader in services for founda-
tions, with a market share of 31 %. Under its special initiative
focusing on foundations, Bank Austria is committed to innovation
as a factor helping to maintain Austria’s attraction as a business
location: the bank collected ideas and demands for modernising
Austria’s legislation on foundations and for improving the overall

framework for private providers of risk capital. The ideas and
demands were then presented to the relevant decision-makers.
We will continue our efforts in this area in 2016, in cooperation
with the Austrian Association of Charitable Foundations.

Schoellerbank, founded in 1833, is one of Austria’s largest private
banking institutions and serves private individuals, corporate cus-
tomers and institutional investors. It specialises in meeting the
demands of exacting investors, focusing on its core competencies
of providing investment advisory services, asset management and
retirement planning. Its investment philosophy is based on the
motto: “It is better to invest than to speculate”. Schoellerbank is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of UniCredit Bank Austria AG and with its
offices it maintains a presence throughout Austria.

Classic asset management, set up in 1992, together with invest-
ment advisory services and retirement planning, belongs to the
core competencies of Schoellerbank and achieved very good
results, especially in the last few challenging years. As a growing
number of clients are entrusting Schoellerbank with the manage-
ment of their assets, managed products account for two-thirds of
total portfolio volume. This is in large part attributable to Schoeller-
bank’s own investment management company, whose investment
funds are regularly recognised for their good performance.

Schoellerbank’s customers also give the bank a high rating: in 2014
the “TRI*M-Index”, which is determined on the basis of customer
satisfaction surveys, for the first time moved into three-digit territory
with 104 points. This excellent result was repeated with the survey in
2015. And the Customer Advisory Index, a key measure of advisory
service quality, rose by two points to an excellent level of 90. This
represents a level of customer satisfaction which is well above that
found among comparable banks in the private banking sector.

In 2015, Schoellerbank’s overall client service approach gained rec-
ognition on both a national and international level. For the fourth con-
secutive year Schoellerbank reached first place in the asset manager
test of the German Elite Report. The “Fuchsbriefe”, independent
raters of asset management quality, again ranked Schoellerbank as
“recommended without reservation” in their most recent report. The
bank also received an award from the “WirtschaftsWoche” busi-
ness magazine and from the MMD analysis company as one of the
best asset managers in 2015. The British specialist magazine “The
Banker” and “PWM Professional Wealth Management”, pub-
lished by the Financial Times, named Schoellerbank “Best Private
Bank in Austria 2015”. The US magazine “Global Finance” also
awarded the bank the title “Best Private Bank 2015” in Austria. And
at the end of 2015 Schoellerbank won recognition from “DerBorsi-
aner”, an Austrian specialist magazine, as “Beste Privatbank in
Osterreich 2015” from among 51 banks.
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Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB)

(€ million) 2015 2014 CHANGE

Operating income 451 440 +11 +24%
Operating costs =215 -208 -8 +3.8%
Operating profit 235 232 +3 +1.2%
Net write-downs of loans 25 3 +21 n.m.
Net operating profit 260 236 +24 +10.2%
Profit before tax 208 208 +0 +0.2%
Loans to customers (avg.) 13,210 12,899 +311 +2.4%
Direct funding (avg.) 9,907 8,736 +1,171 +13.4%
Risk-weighted assets (avg.) 8,766 8,394 +372 +4.4%
Average equity 782 758 +23 +31%

Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB) focuses on Serving multinational
companies and major international customers, providing them with
capital market services and/or investment banking solutions tailored
to their specific neeas. CIB also serves banks, asset managers,
institutional customers, insurance companies and selected real estate
customers. Global Account Managers serve multinational customers
(MNC), Senior Bankers provide services to selected top customers with
a focus on investment banking. Integrated in the international network
of UniCredit’s CIB Division, CIB uses the financial market expertise of a
major international bank to perform important functions as a product
provider for other divisions. These products include structured finance,
export and trade finance; real estate finance; cash management solu-
tions; risk management to hedge currency risk, commodity risk and
interest rate risk; M&A advisory and the structuring and financing of
acquisitions; capital market and investment proaucts, and treasury
operations.

While the Austrian economy achieved GDP growth of 0.9% in 2015
and thereby grew stronger than in the previous year, it was lagging
behind the euro area for the second consecutive year. Curbed by pessi-
mistic consumer sentiment, private consumption made an only negligi-
ble contribution to economic growth. Investment activity remained weak,
strengthening slightly as the year progressed. The reluctance of compa-
nies to make investments hardly improved as the impetus from foreign
trade was too weak. The European Central Bank (ECB) responded to the
persistently low inflation outlook in an environment of continued weak
economic growth and low credit demand in the euro area by maintain-
ing key interest rates unchanged at a low level in 2015 while once
again lowering the negative interest rate on deposits towards the end of
the year. In Austria, interest rates payable on loans again declined
slightly. 2015 saw no change in lending volume, which had already
been stagnating in Austria for almost four years. There are signs of a
further revival of the Austrian economy in 2016, driven primarily by
domestic demand. Consumption will receive an impetus from the tax
reform. Supported by the ongoing recovery process in Europe, the pros-
pects for stronger investment activity, which should lead to a slight rise

in credit demand, are good. In view of discussions on a further easing of
monetary policy by the ECB, it is likely that the very low interest rates,
which represent a major challenge for banks, will not change.

@ The earnings position of the CIB business segment developed in a
positive manner in the past quarters. Operating income for the four
quarters of 2015 came to a combined €451 million, €11 million or
2.4% up on the figure for 2014. Among the income components, net
interest was held at more or less the level of the preceding quarters.
At €294 million it was nevertheless 2.8 % (—€8 million) below the level
of the previous year, impacted by the persistent low interest rate envi-
ronment. On the lending side, volume increased by 9.5% to €13.7 hil-
lion as at the end of 2015 (2014: €12.5 billion). Direct funding rose by
19.1% to €10.4 billion (2014: €8.8 billion). Net fees and commis-
sions rose by €20 million to €104 million (+23.8% year-on-year),
mainly reflecting a significant increase (+73.1% to €52.6 million) in
financing services, which account for 50.4 % of net fees and commis-
sions. The second quarter of 2015, in particular, saw higher one-off
income from the arrangement of major finance transactions. Net trad-
ing, hedging and fair value income was €48 million, only slightly
lower than in the previous year (€52 million) and without showing any
major fluctuations. The low underlying trading volume reflects the
reduction of proprietary trading activities in the past years.

Operating costs rose slightly, by 3.8 % to €215 million, compared
with the previous year. Within the total figure, payroll costs increased
at a moderate 2.5% to €74 million (2014: €72 million). Staff num-
bers (FTEs) at the end of December 2015 were 490 FTEs, virtually
unchanged over the previous year (495 FTEs). Other administrative
expenses increased by 4.0% to €142 million, reflecting IT develop-
ment costs. In 2015 there was a net release of loan loss provisions,
resulting in income of €25 million. The provisioning charge
remained low: the cost of risk was —19 basis points, reflecting the
high quality of the loan portfolio.

On this basis, net operating profit, i. . operating profit less net write-
downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments, rose
by 10.2% to €260 million in 2015, boosted by higher operating
income and the positive credit risk result. A positive contribution also
came from the low cost/income ratio (47.8%) in the CIB business
segment. Non-operating items to be deducted from the above amount
included the bank levy and the contribution to the Single Resolution
Fund, which amounted to a combined charge of €36 million, various
provisions of €8 million and €8 million in securities write-downs. The
resulting profit before tax of the CIB business segment was €208 mil-
lion, exactly matching the good result of the previous year (2014:
€208 million). This gives a return on equity (ROE before tax) of 26.6%
(2014: 27.4%). The CIB business segment accounted for 6.6 % of
risk-weighted assets and 7.0 % of operating costs, and contributed
12.8% to the profit before tax of the bank as a whole.
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@ In addition to its functions within the bank, CIB enables its
customers to benefit from its capital market expertise, its market
position based on the UniCredit Group network and a presence
in all major financial centres around the world as well as from
excellent access to our core regions in Western, Central and
Eastern Europe and 50 countries worldwide, giving Bank Austria
essential competitive advantages.

In 2015, the CIB business segment further expanded its leading
market position in the segment of multinational companies. Its
corporate finance business developed in a very positive man-
ner in the face of a challenging and highly competitive market
environment characterised by reluctance of customers to take
up loans, a squeeze on margins and continued loan-bond sub-
stitution. Structured business, in particular, involving acquisi-
tions, syndicated loans, capital market transactions, commodity
trade finance and structured trade and export finance grew at a
rate well above that of the previous year; in many cases the
growth rate was in the double-digit range. After a long pause,
lending volume is again showing an upward trend, supported by
a broad base. In 2015, the CIB Division operated in a generally
positive business environment that featured strong demand for
structured export finance and working capital solutions. The
market environment moreover showed growing signs of trade
finance activities in both Austria and overseas. Margins remain
tight in an environment of high liquidity and strong international
competition.

Standard lending business developed at a much slower pace.
Lending volume in the economy as a whole was weak or in some
cases declined slightly, depending on the business segment. This is
explained less by a limited willingness of banks to provide loans
than by continued credit restraint by corporate customers and their
preference for liquidity. While CIB was unable to entirely protect
itself from these general market developments it succeeded in
partly offsetting the shortfall through additional business with target
customers in the defined growth regions. The intensive cultivation of
the extended core markets of Spain, Portugal, South Africa and
Scandinavia — where Bank Austria is gaining a foothold as a leading
provider of finance solutions through the CIB business segment —
made a positive contribution to CIB’s performance.

The funding activities of companies in Austria and in a European
context were very modest in 2015. Most companies used the low
interest rates of previous years to secure attractive terms and con-
ditions in the longer term where this was possible. Annual loan
maturities were therefore disproportionately low in 2015. And in
many cases, further interest rate reductions during the year at the
long end of the maturity range did not offer sufficient incentive for
companies to opt for term-driven funding.

Over the years, funding via the capital market has become a signifi-
cant feature of business with corporate customers. Besides loan-
based financing, bonds and loans against borrowers’ notes have
developed into an important second pillar in this context. CIB has
benefited from this positive development, maintaining its position as
market leader in this segment over the past years and acting in a
leading capacity for attractive transactions.

In addition, 2015 saw an increase in the volume of deposits in the
CIB business segment, despite the difficult interest rate environment
and changes in the general framework conditions. As the low level of
interest rates is prompting decision-makers in companies to look for
attractive alternative investments, CIB took advantage of this situation
by offering customers its expertise and customised products. Many
companies also used the low interest rates to hedge their long-term
interest payments. The high volatility of interest rate and currency
markets led to stronger hedging activities with a view to stabilising
companies’ annual financial results. Treasury operations made a
structurally significant contribution to CIB’s performance in the face
of a challenging monetary environment characterised by negative
money market rates in euro and CHF, an unusually flat yield curve
and negative yields on government bonds. This was achieved by
making consistent use of market volatility and through optimised
management of the underlying equity capital resources.

In the area of cash management, customers of CIB benefited
from the launching of innovative products (electronic bank settle-
ment, Bankldent procedure). In 2015 Bank Austria again received
the Euromoney award “Best Cash Manager in Austria”.

Bank Austria’s expertise and contacts to export credit agencies
moreover opened up additional opportunities for corporate customers
in Austria and other countries wishing to export their products and
services — from working capital facilities with favourable interest
rates to highly complex buyer finance arrangements for plant manu-
facturers. 2015 saw a significant rise in new export finance busi-
ness compared with the previous year. Bank Austria’s trade finance
operations held up well in the reporting year despite a contracting
market, with the bank maintaining its position as the undisputed
market leader in this segment.
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Central Eastern Europe (CEE)

(€ million) 2015 2014 CHANGE CONST "
Operating income 3,816 3,824 -8 -02% +6.7%
Operating costs -1,475 | —-1,501 +26 -1.7% +32%
Operating profit 2,341 2,323 +18 +0.8% +89%
Net write-downs of loans -1,017 -675  —343 +50.8% +63.9%
Net operating profit 1,324 1648 -324 -19.7% -132%
Profit before tax 1,094 1,396 -302 -21.6% -14.0%
Loans to customers (avg.) 57,949 | 56,899 +1,050 +1.8% +9.7%
Direct funding (avg.) 55,979 | 49,796 +6,183 +12.4% +21.0%
Risk-weighted assets (avg.)? | 96,823 | 85,579 +11,243 +13.1% +0.7%
Average equity 14,255 | 13,980 +275 +2.0%

1) CONST = rates of change at constant exchange rates. / 2) Risk-weighted assets
include Turkey on the basis of proportionate consolidation.

The CEE business segment comprises Bank Austria’s banking sub-
sidiaries and other companies in 13 countries as well as the man-
agement functions at the Vienna-based CEE headquarters. As at the
end of 2015, the CEE business segment had 28,486 employees
(FTEs), who work in 1,305 branches of the consolidated banking
subsidiaries (including the bank in Ukraine, which is classified as held
for sale), forming the most extensive banking network in the CEE
region. Added to this are the 18,976 employees (FTEs at 100 %) and
1,043 branches of our Turkish joint venture. In accordance with IFRS
11, the investment in the Turkish joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method. In 2015, the CEE business segment generated a
profit before tax of €1,094 million, accounting for about 70 % of
Bank Austria’s profit before tax from customer business (Bank Austria
without the Corporate Center). Bank Austria’s equity interests in CEE
companies, and thus the bank’s CEE Division, will be transferred to
UniCredit SpA in the course of 2016.

Methodological changes: In this report, income and expenses arising
from CEE sub-holding company functions which are closely connected
with operating activities of the commercial banks in CEF are assigned
fo the CEE business segment in accordance with the principle of cau-
sation. (Comparative figures for the previous year have been recast,)
These items, which have so far been reflected in the Corporate Center
of Bank Austria as a whole, mainly include income and expenses aris-
ing from asset/liability management, various items and legacy burdens
relating to equity interest management (purchase price adjustments
and valuation adjustments) and results from the heaging of the annual
profits of individual CEE banking subsidiaries. This means that the
methodological changes primarily affect net interest, net fees and com-
missions, net trading income and also total profit or loss after tax from
discontinued operations (Ukraine) as well as non-controlling interests.
Income and expenses newly assigned to the CEE business segment
are combined with the results of the Profit Center Vienna (primarily
cross-regional loan portfolio), and with all other units which cannot be
allocated to the various countries, to form the item “CEF cross-
regional”. This change provides a clearer definition of the performance
of aperations in Austria and in Central and Eastern Europe.

@ Based on its broad diversification and focusing on regional initia-
tives in 2015, the CEE Division balanced out divergent economic trends
and varying business conditions in the large CEE region and again
achieved a good performance. Adjusted for a special factor (the one-
off charge resulting from the mandatory conversion of foreign currency
loans at historical exchange rates in Croatia — “FX Croatia”) the CEE
countries (i. e. the CEE Division without the cross-regional compo-
nents) generated a net profit of €1.3 billion, an increase of 7.0%
(adjusted for exchange rate effects: +13.4 %) over 2014. This reflects
an excellent performance from the Central European and South-East
European countries, together referred to as CESEE, with profit growth
(excluding the FX/Croatia effect) of 37.8 % to €763 million. Turkey’s
contribution to net profit also rose, by 2.4 % to €349 million (adjusted
for exchange rate movements: +6.3 %), although economic trends
were weak over much of the year. These increases balanced out the
shortfalls in Russia, which remained within limits in the difficult envi-
ronment, with a net profit of €224 million (adjusted for exchange rate
movements: —15.6 % compared with the previous year).

Profit contribution 1)

from the CEE business segment € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014 +/- +/-%  CONST
CEE countries (without
FX Croatia) 1,337 1,250 +87 +7.0% +134%
One-off effect FX Croatia? -143 —143
Cross-regional3 -590 —247  -343
CEE business segment 604 1,003 -399 -39.7% -39.4%

1) Net profit attributable to the owners of the parent company. / 2) Impact on the income
statement from the mandatory conversion of foreign currency loans in Croatia. / 3) Cross-
regional business (Profit Center Vienna, UCTAM restructuring unit etc.) and CEE Corporate
Center sub-holding company functions (capitalisation, liquidity management, equity
interest management).

Apart from the one-effect in Croatia, the CEE Division’s profits were
impacted by expenses recognised in the CEE Corporate Center (Vienna
Profit Center — VPC) for “cross-regional” items and one-off effects,
which totalled —€590 million and were double the figure for the previ-
ous year (see table above). This includes primarily the workout of expo-
sures at the bank in Ukraine, which is classified as held for sale: the
current loss, impairment charges, provisions and net write-downs of
loans in the cross-regional loan portfolio had a negative impact of
€367 million on the CEE Division’s net profit. Other current expenses
of the GEE Corporate Center include higher costs relating to liquidity
management and funding, but the total figure more or less matched
the previous year’s level. These charges, mostly non-operating items,
reduced the CEE Division’s profit by more than one-half to €604 mil-
lion (—=39.7 % compared with the previous year).

@ Business developments at the CEE banking subsidiaries in 2015
reflected the continued expansion of the market position: the number
of customers in retail banking operations rose by 7% to 15.0 million
and in the corporate banking segment by 3% to 105,000 customers.
Volume expansion also continued in 2015: average lending volume in
2015 was €57.9 hillion, up by 1.8 % (adjusted for exchange rate
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movements: +9.7 %) on 2014 although credit demand was lower than
in previous years. A strong increase of 12.9% to €52.9 billion was
seen in deposits from customers in average terms for the year
(adjusted for exchange rate movements: +20.9 %). This means that
the gap between deposits and loans has narrowed further.

Developments in 2015 show that higher growth in the real economy
and in the banking sectors in CEE no longer simply translates into reve-
nue growth, as it did in previous years. This applies to the Central Euro-
pean countries in particular. Nevertheless, operating income and profits
held up well in these countries, despite continued efforts of local com-
panies and private households to reduce their debt. In 2015 our banks
in South-East Europe continued to benefit from their function as interna-
tional banks and from their reputation and market shares of up to 20%
(Bulgaria) and 27 % (Croatia); their operating income and profits
increased significantly. However, commercial banking business in CEE
also reflects advanced convergence. The advanced CEE countries also
recorded a decline in customer interest rates and commercial spreads
in the low interest rate environment. While net interest was under pres-
sure — due to volume and margin trends —, net fees and commissions
rose significantly, with developments varying according to the countries’
economic profile; in commercial banking, growth was seen in guaran-
tees, loan commissions and transaction services, and/or on account of
the advance of digital services; in some countries the increase in net
fees and commissions was driven by accelerated growth of customers’
holdings of financial assets and rising demand for investments.

Operating performance in GEE € million (2014 recast)

Loan/deposit ratio in CEE

18 140%
122.7%
0,
16 ° ”4-.9 %l 120%
96.5% 96.0% 96.4% .
14 & o @ 88.1% @ 100%
931 0/0 7770/0 .

° 69.8% 80%

12 °
60%

10

[ Customer deposits | 499,
Customer loans

8 @ Loan/deposit ratio

20%
6

0%
4 ~20%
2 -40%

—-60%

CZ RUS CRO BG

ROM HUN BH SLO SRB

2015 2014 +/-  +/-%  CONST
... Average volume of
customer loans 57,949 | 56,899 +1,050 +1.8% +9.7%
... Average volume of
customer deposits 52,943 | 46,878 +6,065 +12.9% +20.9%
... Net interest 2,381 2,456 -75 -31% +53%
... Net fees and commissions 718 702 +16 +22% +4.5%
... Net trading, hedging and
fair value income 329 266 +63 +23.9% +36.8%
... at-equity contribution
from Turkey 349 341 +8 +24% +6.3%
Operating income 3,816 3,824 -8 -02% +6.7%
Operating costs —1,475 | —1,501 +26 -1.7% +32%
...Cost/income ratio 7) 425% | 43.1% -0.6 pp
Net write-downs of loans and
provisions for guarantees and
commitments —-1,017 —675 —-343 +50.8% +63.9%
... without FX Croatia 2 -812 -675 —138 +204% +34.1%
... Cost of risk 23 140bp | 119bp +22bp
Net operating profit 4 1,324 | 1,648 -324 -19.7% -13.2%
... without FX Croatia 2) 1,529 1,648 —-119 -7.2% -12%

1) Without Turkey, which would be included with its at-equity contribution in the denomi-
nator but not in the numerator of the cost/income ratio. / 2) Adjusted for the effect of the
mandatory conversion of foreign currency loans in Croatia. / 3) Net write-downs of loans
in basis points of average lending volume. / 4) Operating profit less net write-downs of
loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments. / CONST = adjusted for exchange
rate movements, i.e. converted at constant exchange rates.

@ Operating income in the CEE Division amounted to €3,816 million,
matching the high level of the previous year (—0.2 %, adjusted for
exchange rate movements: +6.7 %). An analysis of countries shows
that growth in operating income at our units in Central Europe and in
South-East Europe offset the decline in Russia, which was mainly the
result of exchange rate movements. In a breakdown of income compo-
nents, the decline in net interest was largely balanced by an improve-
ment of other income components (net fees and commissions and net
trading, hedging and fair value income) as well as by the contribution
from Turkey, accounted for using the equity method.

Net interest amounted to €2,381 million, slightly down on the figure
for 2014 (—€75 million/—3.1%). Without Russia, which is a special
case, net interest increased moderately, by €31 million or 1.8%, to
€1,791 million, although volume based on this definition was 4.4 %
higher than in the previous year. While interest margins narrowed
across all country groups, margins are still wide enough for net inter-
est to grow at a disproportionately strong rate the next time business
volume increases again. In euro terms, net interest generated in Rus-
sia (€590 million) fell by €106 million or 15.3% on the previous
year, with average lending down by 5.7 %. Adjusted for exchange
rate movements (translated at constant exchange rates prevailing at
the end of 2013), net interest in Russia rose by 13.2 %, with volume
growing by 27.0%. Both figures, especially volume, reflect the higher
valuation of foreign currency loans in rouble terms as a result of
exchange rate movements. In economic terms, the underlying devel-
opment is more likely to move in line with euro figures — about one-
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half of lending volume is denominated in US dollar, for which
exchange rate movements against the rouble were similar to those of
the euro. Net interest in Central Europe (CE: +0.3 %) was stable, due
to expansion in the Czech Republic and in Slovakia (+2.8 %) which
offset the decline in interest rates to very low levels by now. Special
mention should be made of the net interest performance of South-
East European countries (combined growth: +5.2 %), especially Bul-
garia but also the Western Balkan countries. In these countries, inter-
est rates are declining from a very high level (with inflation close to
zero and partly fixed exchange rates), enabling the local banks to
reduce interest rates on the deposit side. Bulgaria additionally bene-
fits from special effects (destination country adjacent to Greece, mar-
ket position after the end of the previous year’s local banking crisis).
Apart from developments in day-to-day commercial banking activi-
ties, net interest was lower in some countries because in 2014,
when interest rates started to decline significantly, the local banks
(mainly in Romania and Hungary) had realised gains on substantial
holdings of available-for-sale investments.

Net fees and commissions (€718 million) were slightly higher than
in the previous year (+2.2 %); without Russia, a special case, net
fees and commissions were up by €77 million or 13.4% on 2014.
Within CEE, trends vary from country to country on account of struc-
tural differences as the significance of sources of net fees and com-
missions differs. In the Central European countries, investment in
mutual funds — currently supported by rising disposable income — is
a growing business line; significant increases were achieved espe-
cially in the Czech Republic (+9.1%) and in Hungary (+5.8%). In
South-East Europe (+4.2 %), growth in net fees and commissions
was partly driven by loan/guarantee commissions and transaction
Services.

For the banking subsidiaries in CEE, net trading, hedging and fair
value income is a reliable source of income because of local interest-
rate and exchange-rate volatility, management of larger foreign cur-
rency volume and the related customer needs. In 2015, net trading
income amounted to €329 million, one-quarter up on the figure for the
previous year (+23.9%), although the sub-holding company functions
assigned to the CEE business segment had an adverse impact on net
trading performance. Trading in interest-rate/foreign-exchange deriva-
tives developed very favourably against the background of volatile mar-
ket conditions. Securities trading, on the other hand, was lagging
behind the trend seen in the previous year, when strong interest rate
reductions made it possible to realise gains in the trading book. In
regional terms, all country groups reported positive trading results:
Central Europe (CE) generated net trading income of €118 million, with
growth in the Czech Republic/Slovakia being offset by a decline in
Hungary (after large gains realised in 2014). Our banking subsidiaries
in South-East Europe (SEE) achieved strong increases in net trading
income (+7.7 % to €163 million); commercial foreign exchange trad-
ing made the largest contribution in this context. Our Russian bank
recovered from the setback in the turbulent fourth quarter of 2014

(—€51 million) and achieved a turnaround in 2015, with net trading
income of €62 million (after a net trading loss of €30 million in the
previous year) thanks to a good performance from derivatives and bond
trading, despite the adverse environment in foreign exchange trading
and rising negative valuation effects (CVA) in trading operations.

Dividend income and other income from equity investments
came to €364 million in 2015, up by €19 million or 5.5%. The pro-
rata profit contribution of €349 million from Yapi Kredi ve Bankasi, a
joint venture in Turkey with our partner Kog Group, is included in this
item in accordance with IFRS 11. The amount contributed by the
Turkish bank was again slightly above the level of the previous year
(+€8 million or +2.4%; adjusted for exchange rate movements:
+6.3%) despite unfavourable economic conditions in much of 2015
and depreciation of the local currency. This good performance
resulted from very strong volume expansion (loans: +29.6 %,
adjusted for exchange rate movements), with a favourable develop-
ment of net interest, and from continued growth of fee and commis-
sion income.

Net other expenses/income covers many minor items not included
in core banking business. This item showed net income of €24 mil-
lion in 2015, a decline of €31 million on the figure for the previous
year. The decrease reflects mainly the sale of Istraturist Umag d.d.,
a Croatian tourism company, in November 2014, so that income
from the 2015 season was no longer received.

@ In euro terms, operating costs in the CEE Division amounted to
€1,475 million. At this level they were 1.7 % lower compared with the
previous year and up by 3.2% at constant exchange rates, with both
effects being due to developments in Russia (down by 16.3% in euro
terms/up by 11.8% in rouble terms). Payroll costs in Russia rose as a
result of higher social charges, and other administrative expenses
increased in connection with [T projects; moreover, rent agreements
denominated in US dollars had an impact on account of exchange rate
movements. Without Russia, operating costs rose by only 1.3%
(adjusted for exchange rate movements: +1.2%). In average terms for
2015, staff numbers in the CEE Division (without Turkey and Ukraine)
were 24,088 FTEs, more or less unchanged. The decline of 289 FTEs
was accounted for by Croatia (—303 FTEs) following the deconsolida-
tion of Istraturist Umag d. d. The cost/income ratio in CEE — without
Turkey, whose contribution is accounted for using the equity method
and is therefore included in operating income but not in operating
costs — declined by 0.6 percentage points to 42.5%.

=> The CEE Division’s operating profit was €2,341 million, slightly
higher than the figure for 2014 (+ 0.8 %; adjusted for exchange rate
movements: +8.9%).

@ Net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments in the CEE Division in 2015 were €1,017 million, sig-
nificantly higher than the previous year’s figure (+€343 million or
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+50.8 %; adjusted for exchange rate movements: +63.9%). Besides
the one-off effect in Croatia (+€205 million), the increase was due
to developments in Russia (+€129 million) and in the cross-regional
portfolio (+€ 124 million), which was impacted by the Russia/Ukraine
conflict. In the other countries the provisioning charge declined by a
combined €115 million or 20.3%. Contributions to the decline came
from the Central European countries — reflecting their good economic
performance —, led by our banking subsidiary in the Czech Republic/
Slovakia with a reduction of one-third (—32.4 %) and by Slovenia and
Hungary, following the reduction of foreign currency exposure in
these countries. In South-East Europe (SEE) the combined charge for
loan loss provisions (without the special effect in Croatia) declined by
18.2%; the decrease was strongest in Bulgaria and Romania, but
also in Serbia. The improvement in the cost of risk was most pro-
nounced in the latter two countries, although it was still one of the
highest at 225bp (Romania) and 182bp (Serbia). In Russia, the pro-
visioning charge came to €214 million, two and a half times the
2014 figure (€85 million). The increase reflects the commercial
impact of the depreciation of the rouble, the recession and the sanc-
tions on the balance sheets of corporate customers. Until the crisis
started, Russia was among the countries with the lowest cost-of-risk
levels and in 2014 the cost of risk was still as low as 66 bp of aver-
age lending volume; in the reporting year, however, the cost of risk
rose to 177 bp. On this basis it was already above the CEE average
(without FX/Croatia) of 140bp. Asset quality in the CEE Division
improved slightly despite a deterioration in Russia. In CEE the ratio of
non-performing exposures was 11.8% (in net terms, 5.9%) at the
end of 2015, down by 0.6 percentage points on year-end 2014. The
CEE business segment benefited from a significant reduction of non-
performing exposures (—3.7 %). As specific write-downs hardly
changed, the coverage ratio rose to 53.4 % after 51.2 %.

Net operating profit!) in CEE € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014 +-  +/-%  CONST

CEE countries 1,549 1,737 -188 —-10.8% -4.9%
... without FX/Croatia 1,754 1,737  +16 +0.9% +6.5%

Central Europe (CE) 492 455  +38 +83% +7.8%
South-East Europe (SEE)

without FX/Croatia 626 488 +138 +28.3% +28.7%

FX/Croatia —-205 —-205

Turkey (at-equity

contribution) 349 341 +8 +24% +6.3%

Russia 285 453 -168 -37.0% —-15.8%
CEE cross-regional 2 —-225 -89 -136 >100%

Central Eastern Europe (CEE) [ 1,324 1,648 -324 -19.7% -132%

1) Operating profit less net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments. / 2) Cross-regional business (Profit Center Vienna, leasing companies,
UCTAM restructuring unit etc.) and CEE Corporate Center sub-holding company functions
(capitalisation, liquidity management, equity interest management). / CONST= converted
at constant exchange rates.

=> Net operating profit of the banking subsidiaries in CEE (without the
FX/Croatia effect) came close to the level of the previous year; adjusted
for exchange rate movements, it was significantly higher (+6.5%, see

the table above). Net operating profit achieved by the Central European
countries increased by a gratifying 8.3 %, with our banking subsidiary in
the Czech Republic/Slovakia generating a 15.5% increase in net operat-
ing profit. Slovenia also achieved a good performance after a weak 2014,
Strong growth of double-digit percentage rates was seen at all units in
South-East Europe (adjusted for the FX/Croatia effect: +28.3%). Operat-
ing profit accounted for close to one half of the increase in net operating
profit achieved by this group of countries (adjusted: + €140 million) and
the decline in net write-downs of loans for the remaining amount. The
improved performance in CESEE offset the shortfall in Russia (—€168
million or —37.0%; adjusted for exchange rate movements: —15.8 %).
Cross-regional items had a stronger adverse impact: besides higher
liquidity and funding costs, and FX hedging costs, these items also
reflected the provisioning charge for the loan portfolio booked at the
Profit Center Vienna.

@ To arrive at the CEE Division’s net profit for 2015, the balance of
non-operating expenses of €720 million (2014: €645 million) was
to be deducted from net operating profit.

Profit performance?) in GEE € million (2014 recast)

2015 2014 +/- +- % CONST
Net operating profit 2) 1,324 | 1,648 -324 —-19.7% -132%
Provisions for risks and
charges -68 | —137 +69 -504% -51.2%
Systemic charges 3) -155 | =120 -35 +289% +31.1%
Integration/restructuring
costs 4 -8 -7 -1 +113% +9.6%
Net income from investments 2 13 -11 -873% -831%
Profit before tax 1,094 | 1,396 -302 -21.6% -714.0%
Income tax -169 | -212 +43 -204% -124%
Discontinued operations 9 -423 | =206 -217 >100% +96.8%
Non-controlling interests ©) 102 25 477 >100% >100%
Net profit 1) 604 | 1,003 -399 -39.7% -39.4%

1) Net profit attributable to the owners of the parent company. / 2) Operating profit less
net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments. / 3) Bank
levies and other systemic charges. / 4) Integration/restructuring costs. / 5) Total profit or
loss after tax from discontinued operations. / 6) Minority interests.

Provisions for risks and charges were lower than in the previous year
(see table). Bank levies and other systemic charges burdened
performance in CEE (after allocation) with €155 million. Of the total
amount, bank levies — in Hungary and Slovakia and in the Profit
Center Vienna (PCV) — accounted for €41 million and other systemic
charges totalled €114 million, of which €86 million contributed to
the deposit guarantee schemes and €28 million contributed to the
bank resolution funds in Hungary, Croatia, Slovenia, Bulgaria, Roma-
nia and the PCV. Integration/restructuring costs and net income from
investments hardly changed and remained at low levels.

=> Profit before tax of the CEE Division exceeded 1 billion euros
(€1,094 million after €1,396 million) despite a number of special
impacts in 2015.
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@ The items between profit before tax and net profit are mainly
determined by the item “Total profit or loss after tax from dis-
continued operations”; it reflects the income statement items
applicable to Ukrsotsbank, which is classified as held for sale,
together with write-downs and additional expenses. The bank’s
loss of €127 million (including consolidation effects) for 2015
and the impairment charges recognised in respect of Ukrsotsbank
in June and December 2015 in accordance with IFRS 5 (a total
amount of —€298 million) had a negative impact of —€425 mil-
lion (2014: —€180 million) on total profit or loss after tax from
discontinued operations in the CEE business segment; the item
therefore shows a loss of €423 million for 2015 after a loss of
€206 million for 2014. Of the total loss arising from Ukrsotsbank,
€111 million — including a share of the impairment charges —
was attributable to UniCredit SpA, which is a minority shareholder
in Ukrsotshank. Therefore the item non-controlling interests in
the income statement of the CEE business segment for 2015
shows income of €102 million (+€25 million).

=> The Central Eastern Europe (CEE) business segment achieved
a net profit of €604 million in 2015 (2014: €1,003 million). Net
profit generated by the banks in CEE amounted to €1,194 million
(without Ukraine), down by only 4.4% on the previous year and
significantly higher, by 7.0 %, if the FX Croatia effect is excluded.
This is a good performance in view of the mixed environment. All
banking subsidiaries operated profitably in 2015 (Croatia adjusted

for the effect of the mandatory conversion of foreign currency
loans), and all of them, with the exception of Russia, even
recorded profit growth (see chart).

The results of the cross-regional units in CEE (@ combined —€590 mil-
lion after —€247 million) reflect the impacts from divisional steering
functions, the management of the cross-regional loan portfolio and of
international guarantees, but first and foremost the charge related to
the workout of exposures in Ukraine. In line with Group strategy, which
focuses on growth — and the required allocation of capital — in CEE
countries with higher sustainable growth and earnings potential, and
on further reducing risk, UniCredit Bank Austria AG and UniCredit SpA
have signed a binding agreement for the transfer of Ukrsotsbank to
the Alfa Group. Ukrsotshank, the banking subsidiary in Ukraine, will
continue to be classified in the statement of financial position as

a disposal group held for sale until the transaction is completed; the
closing of the sale is expected for 2016.

When UniCredit presented its multi-year plan in November 2015,

it announced its intention to transfer direct shareholding control of
CEE business to UniCredit SpA. The transfer of equity interests in
CEE companies from Bank Austria to the Group holding company,
subject to resolutions adopted by the corporate bodies, is to take
place by the end of 2016. This move is intended to streamline the
organisation of UniCredit Group. It will also enhance UniCredit’s abil-
ity to manage liquidity and capital for the Group, and also for CEE

Net profit!) of CEE banks (€ miliion)

Turkey

Russia

Czech Republic
Bulgaria
Hungary

-31

Croatia

Serbia

49
Bosnia and Herzegovina 45
Romania 43
Slovenia

-590

125

[ 2014

B 2015
1) Net profit attributable to the owners of the parent company.
2) Without mandatory conversion of foreign currency loans.
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business, in the current regulatory environment (global SIFI, bank-
ing union etc.). This change in governance will not in any way
affect the close links between Austrian corporate banking business
and the CEE network.

UniCredit sees itself as a long-term, strategic investor in Central
and Eastern Europe which aims to develop its business with both
corporate and private customers in the region. The banking group
intends to expand its customer base by another 1 million custom-
ers each year until 2018. According to its strategic plan UniCredit
is going to invest €1.2 billion in digitalisation to match new trends
in customer behaviour, also through the use of Big Data, while re-
ducing costs. The number of Internet banking users is projected
to increase from currently 5 million to 10 million and the number
of mobile banking users from currently 1 million to 7 million over
the next three years. CEE lending volume is expected to grow by
€20 billion to €106 billion in 2018.

UniCredit is the number one banking group in Central and Eastern
Europe — in terms of network, total assets and geographic diver-
sification. The banking group operates an extensive network of
almost 3,100 branches in 13 countries. Two out of three interna-
tional corporate customers from Germany, Italy and Austria oper-
ating in CEE are UniCredit customers. The banking group has
long-established expertise in handling state and EU-supported in-
vestment programmes in the CEE region resulting in more than
€2 billion facilities dedicated to EU Funds projects and another
over €1.3 billion in financing agreements. UniCredit banks are
among the top banks in their respective home country. Broad di-
versification in terms of customers, products and markets has
made the CEE region a reliable strong pillar of the UniCredit
banking group. The intended transfer of shareholdings in CEE
banks directly to UniCredit is another step towards making the
corporate structure leaner and enhancing efficiency in capital and
liquidity management.

Euromoney-Award for Excellence

Best Bank in CEE, Bosnia, Bulgaria, Hungary,
Russia and Slovenia

Best Debt House in CEE
Best Transaction Service House in CEE

Euromoney-Trade Finance Survey

# 1 Trade Finance Provider in CEE

# 1 Trade Finance Provider in Bosnia&Herzegovina,
Bulgaria, Croatia, Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland,
Romania, Russia, Serbia, Slovakia and Turkey

# 1 position in Guarantees and Open Account Payments

The Banker

Most Innovative Investment Bank in CEE
Highly commended Bank in CEE
Best Private Bank in Croatia

Global Finance

Best Bank for Cash Management in CEE
Best Trade Finance Bank CEE

Best Supply Chain Finance Provider in CEE
Best Bank for Liquidity Management in CEE
Best Sub-Custodian Bank in CEE

Best Private Bank in CEE and Hungary
Emerging Markets Bank in Bulgaria

Best Trade Finance Bank in Bulgaria, Czech Republic,
Poland and Croatia

Best Sub-Custodian Bank in Bulgaria, Czech Republic,
Hungary, Poland, Serbia and Slovenia

Trade & Forfaiting Review

# 2 Trade Bank in CEE

Mergermarket M&A Awards

Financial Adviser of the Year in CEE
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Reports on CEE banking subsidiaries

» Turkey: 2015 was another volatile year in terms of economic,
political and geopolitical developments which resulted in Turkey
experiencing currency depreciation and an increase in interest
rates. On the domestic front, Turkey held general elections in
June and snap elections in November due to an unsuccessful
attempt to form a government after the June elections. Uncer-
tainty in the operating environment decreased and the currency
stabilised to some extent as the elections resulted in a single
party government. On the global front, the timing and magnitude
of the Fed rate increase, European Central Bank policy, slowdown
in China’s economic growth and geopolitical risks were the other
factors which put pressure on the operating environment.
Towards the end of the year, especially after the widely expected
rate hike by the Fed, markets showed a normalisation in funda-
mentals. In this environment, Turkey’s banking sector achieved
more than 20% y/y growth in both loans and deposits.

In 2015, Kog Financial Services (KFS), the financial holding com-
pany controlling 81.8 % of Yapi Kredi, achieved a resilient com-
mercial performance by successfully moving towards its targets in
the context of its growth-oriented investment strategy that started
in 2014. In line with its growth strategy, Yapi Kredi’s investments
continued primarily in employees, ATMs and the branch network.
Accordingly, in the last 2 years, sales operations were further
strengthened with the total number of employees increasing by
about 2,500 to almost 19,000 (on the basis of full-time equiva-
lents). During this period, with the opening of close to 80 new
branches, the total number of branches exceeded 1,000. Addition-
ally, 1,299 new ATMs were deployed, thereby further strengthening
the ATM network to over 4,332. As a result, Yapi Kredi acquired
almost 1.2 million new customers in the past 2 years and reached
a total of 11.1 million customers. Moreover, Yap! Kredi was able to
substantially widen its Internet and mobile banking active customer
base and achieved 80 % growth in the total number of active Inter-
net banking customers and growth of more than 300 % in mobile
banking customers. Yapi Kredi handles 85% of total banking trans-
actions through its alternative delivery channels. Yapi Kredi’s local
capital adequacy ratio was 13.8 % as of the end of 2015.

In the last 2 years, Yapi Kredi continued to achieve market share
gains in key value generating areas. In total loans, Yapi Kredi grew by
21% in 2015 while market share among private banks has
increased by 170 basis points over the last 2 years. At the same

time, total deposits grew by 19% in 2015 and the cumulative 2 year
market share gain was 150 basis points. Yapi Kredi also continued its
focus on diversifying its funding sources through syndications, secu-
ritisations, bond issues and other financial instruments, and its bor-
rowings to total liabilities remained stable at 21 %.

Operating income increased to 9 billion Turkish lira, driven by a
strong contribution from core revenue. Net interest income grew by
almost 20% and fees by 15% y/y, mainly driven by value generating
lending growth and customer acquisition efforts. Costs were up by
9% y/y, reflecting the investments made for growth. In 2015, Yapi
Kredi recorded a net profit of 2.1 billion Turkish lira.

P Russia: Despite the persistent adverse conditions of the Russian
market, UniCredit Bank Russia in 2015 delivered tangible results
with excellent liquidity and a comfortable capital base. With total
assets amounting to 1,410 billion Russian roubles (+3% y/y) the
bank confirmed its position as the leading international bank in
Russia. The bank also maintained profitability despite unfavourable
capital market volatility and pursued a prudent and conservative loan
loss provisioning policy.

The macro scenario turmoil, with strong devaluation and volatility of
the Russian rouble and reference interest rates, influenced the bank
in different ways. As a large share of its loan and deposit business is
denominated in US dollars, reported volumes were significantly
inflated by such strong devaluation. Inflated foreign currency volumes
were also driving higher capital absorption but despite this strong
pressure the bank achieved a solid capital adequacy ratio of 12.9%
in accordance with local accounting standards, well above capital
requirements. UniCredit Bank Russia maintained a strong liquidity
position with a loan/deposit ratio of 90 % at year-end 2015.

The bank achieved a net profit of about 15 billion Russian roubles
with a strong return on equity of about 10%. The bank’s operat-
ing income reached a total 48.6 billion Russian roubles, a 20 %
increase y/y which underlines the sustainability of the bank’s
income position. Net interest income at 40.2 billion Russian rou-
bles represented a 13% increase and was driven by solid growth
(including the above-mentioned FX effect) in business volume:
about 5% y/y growth in net loans and a 15% y/y increase in
deposits. Operating costs remained under control and amounted
to 14.7 billion Russian roubles with a very efficient cost/income
ratio of 30%. Asset quality with impaired loans accounting for
3.7 % of the overall portfolio remained sound.
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The Corporate and Investment Banking (CIB) segment maintained
its position as the main contributor to the bank’s profit before tax,
with operating income amounting to 31 billion Russian roubles.
CIB continued to serve the bulk of the largest corporate clients

in Russia, actively supporting cross-border cooperation while
dynamically developing and expanding relationships with interna-
tional companies and regional corporates.

Thanks to an excellent combination of applied segment models,
timely solutions with value propositions launched in conditions of
market turbulence, the Retail Division managed to keep its reve-
nues, which amounted to 13.8 billion Russian roubles, at the
level of 2014.

UniCredit Bank Russia serves almost 1,700,000 individual clients
as well as over 28,000 small, medium and large enterprises
through its network of 103 outlets (including the Representative
Office in Minsk).

» Croatia: The Zagrebacka banka (ZABA) Group reported a
net loss after minority interests of 234 million Croatian kuna as a
result of 1,560 million Croatian kuna of extraordinary provisions
for Swiss franc loans conversions following amendments to the
Consumer Credit Act and Credit Institutions Act enforced as of

30 September 2015. Excluding this one-off conversion impact
ZABA Group would have achieved a remarkable result compared
to year-end 2014 of around 1 billion Croatian kuna (+24 % y/y).
Ordinary provisioning charges amounted to 1,030 million Croatian
kuna (—2.6% y/y) with the cost of risk at about 140 basis points
(similar to previous year’s level). The impaired loans ratio stood at
17.7% at year-end 2015 (—44 basis points y/y.) Non-performing
loans decreased by 514 million Croatian kuna, totalling 14,530 mil-
lion Croatian kuna at year-end 2015. The impaired loans coverage
ratio increased to 52 % from 43 % at year-end 2014.

Net loans to customers stood at 72,963 million Croatian kuna at
year-end 2015, decreasing by y/y 2% due to Swiss franc con-
version and continued deleveraging in all segments except the
public sector and SMEs. Customer deposits reached 76,037 mil-
lion Croatian kuna, growing by 11.6 billion Croatian kuna (+18%
y/y), reducing the net loan/deposit ratio to 96 % from 115.7 % at
year-end 2014.

ZABA Group maintains a strong balance sheet with significant
liquidity buffers and a capital adequacy ratio of over 20 %.

The newly appointed Management Board assumed office as of

6 February 2015. Amidst an increasingly complex business environ-
ment (Swiss franc exchange rate hike, mandatory conversion of
Swiss franc loans and tighter regulatory requirements within the Sin-
gle Supervisory Mechanism Framework), ZABA Group showed the
following achievements in 2015: high value creation with Economic
Value Added almost 3 times higher y/y (excluding the impact of
Swiss franc conversion) driven by revenue increases and flat risk
weighted assets; profitability increased, driven by cross-selling and
re-pricing; impaired loans reduced with risk indicators and coverage
significantly improved; liquidity profile strengthened; the creation of
solutions for high-risk customers and real-estate origination resulted
in a 490 million Croatian kuna reduction of exposure; improved mar-
ket shares in high-margin products (consumer loans); Medium Cor-
porate and SME service model re-designed.

In 2015 Zagrebacka banka received a number of awards such as:
Euromoney “Best Trade Finance Bank” and “Best Private Banking in
Croatia”; EMEA Finance “Best Bank in Croatia”; Global Finance “Best
Trade Finance Group in CEE”; Global Banking & Finance Review
“Best Investment Bank in Croatia”; Croatian Association for Public
Relations Image Campaign “The First 100 Years”.

Total commercial spread
(customer rate loans less customer rate deposits, 4th quarter of 2015)
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» UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia operates in
both countries following the cross-border merger in 2013. The
Czech and Slovakian banking group includes leasing compa-
nies in both markets as well as a factoring company which was
acquired in January 2015. By total assets the bank ranks 4th
in the Czech and 5th in the Slovak banking market. UniCredit
Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia posted outstanding business
results in 2015 and recorded a consolidated net profit of 5.7 bil-
lion Czech crowns which is a y/y increase of 15%.

The excellent result is driven by the growth of operating
income (+5% y/y) and an excellent risk situation (—33% y/y),
while operating expenses are kept under control. The growth of
the customer base, driven by the successful acquisition of new
clients in all segments, paved the way for current and future
revenue growth. The Czech and Slovak banking group is lever-
aging strongly on the continuously improving cooperation
between the bank and its factoring and leasing subsidiaries
which allows it to exploit the full business potential with our
corporate customers. Simplification of the product offering and
innovation is a key driver for the success in retail business. In
terms of lending, the portfolio increased by 3.7 % y/y, mostly
in the Retail, SME and Leasing segments. Deposit volumes,
especially in local currency, grew strongly (+11% y/y), under-
lining the excellent liquidity situation which provides sufficient
scope for further lending growth. The improved economic situ-
ation in both countries, which belong to the fastest growing
economies in the region, together with well-established risk
management policies contributed to the substantial reduction
of risk costs, despite growing lending volumes and a coverage
ratio of non-performing loans that was maintained at above
50%. The bank’s capital adequacy ratio is over 14.5%, fully
covering its capital needs stemming from strong lending
growth by profit retention.

The results show that the bank’s strategy based on the growth of
its client base, innovations in product offerings and excellence in
corporate banking is the right direction for sustainable profitability.
The strategy is being enhanced by several infrastructure projects
aimed at leveraging further on the mergers of past years and
unlocking further cost and revenue synergies.

The bank received a wide range of awards such as Europe Banking
Awards by EMEA Finance and became the Best Investment Bank. Its
top expertise in real estate financing was confirmed by Euromoney.
Global Finance magazine also named UniCredit Bank as the Best
Sub-Custodian Bank.

» In 2015 the Bulgarian economy showed signs of gradual recov-
ery despite the challenging global environment. GDP growth nearly
doubled to 3.1% in the fourth quarter of 2015, supported by exports,
increased EU-funds absorption and domestic demand. The improving
sentiment was however not able to spur credit demand, while depos-
its continued to grow strongly despite the decline in interest rates.

2015 was another year of strong expansion of UniCredit Bul-
bank’s market presence, with the bank maintaining its position as
market leader. Growing for the second consecutive year by 18%
y/y, total assets reached 18.9 billion Bulgarian leva, representing a
20% market share. After the 2014 crisis in some local banks, the
Greek turbulence in 2015 triggered another wave of reallocation of
customer deposits. Thanks to its excellent reputation, UniCredit
Bulbank benefited and recorded another 25% y/y increase in cus-
tomer deposits to 13.3 billion Bulgarian leva, with similar growth
rates in the corporates and retail segments. The bank maintained
its leading position in net customer loans, reaching 10.3 billion
Bulgarian leva. Without the short-term bridge-to-bond loan extended
to the Bulgarian government in December 2014, the loan portfolio
grew by 2.1% y/y. The net loan/deposit ratio fell by 27 percentage
points y/y to a historically low 78 %.

The strong market position contributed to improved generation of
revenue. UniCredit Bulbank recorded 8.2% y/y growth in operating
income to 851 million Bulgarian leva, supported by an optimisation of
deposit costs and growth in the trading result and in transactional
services. Operating costs reached 259 million Bulgarian leva, increas-
ing by 3.6% y/y mainly in payroll costs and costs for strategic
projects. The cost/income ratio went down to 30% (—1.4 percentage
points y/y), surpassing the industry’s level and underlining the
bank’s outstanding operating efficiency. Thanks to an improvement
in asset quality, loan loss provisions decreased significantly by
32% y/y to 124 million Bulgarian leva. Net profit therefore reached
339 million Bulgarian leva, increasing by 20% y/y.
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The outstanding financial performance was supported by a variety
of commercial initiatives. In Corporate and Investment Banking,
the International Center established itself as a unique business
matching hub, attracting new foreign investors. Within the new EU
funding programmes, UniCredit Bulbank was positioned as the ref-
erence bank for agriculture. In financial markets, the bank acted
as joint book runner of a triple-tranche Eurobond issue under the
government’s MTN programme. The leasing subsidiary launched
the sale of insurance policies for loan collaterals while Factoring
introduced the market’s first web-based platform “eFactoring.bg”.
The Retail Division focused on the implementation of the new ser-
vice model, aimed at helping branch employees to focus on sales
while relocating operating activities to alternative channels. Along
with the projects geared to simplifying processes, the bank imple-
mented measures for handling the growth in customers and trans-
actions while generating strong commercial activity in strategic
areas: consumer financing, small businesses and alternative
investments. New functions of the alternative channels were
implemented — utility payments, card management, insurance,
post-selling support processes, etc.

P In the year of its 25th anniversary UniCredit Bank Hungary
posted its best results ever and underlined its position among top
performers. Both the net result and total assets reached historically
high levels of almost 39 billion Hungarian forint and 2,703 billion
Hungarian forint, respectively. The fact that profit more than doubled
and that total assets increased by 21% y/y is even more remark-
able when taking into account the very heterogeneous and still
deleveraging performance of the sector in the face of a difficult
macroeconomic and regulatory environment.

The balance sheet underwent significant changes both in size and
structure. After the settlement and conversion of FX retail loans,
which negatively impacted volumes, net customer loans in the end
grew by nearly 7% y/y, driven by the top performance of the bank’s
corporate business, resulting in record level market shares. Clearly
outperforming the other market participants, UniCredit Bank Hungary
gained 1.2 percentage points market share in total customer loans
and closed 2015 at 8.5%, with a 12.3% market share in corporate
loans. Deposits increased by almost 25% y/y thanks to large caps
and successful retail campaigning, which is also reflected in market

share growth of 1 percentage point to 8.5% in total. The net loan/

deposit ratio therefore fell to a record low of 70%. By successfully

managing the shift in clients’ investment preferences, total financial
assets (TFA) increased.

Revenue generation remained sound, setting UniCredit Bank Hungary
apart from its competitors. Despite historically low interest rates
and retail margins limited by law, net interest income came close
to the level of the previous year. The 6% y/y growth in net fees
and commissions supported operating income, which was only 3%
lower y/y. Cost efficiency remained a touchstone also in view of
almost 0.9 billion Hungarian forint integration costs for network
optimisation and higher contributions to deposit and investment
guarantee schemes. With a steady improvement in portfolio qual-
ity, loan loss provisions declined by almost 10% y/y. Reshaping
and enhancing its service model, the bank in 2015 merged 29
branches and continued to invest in digitalisation.

» Romania maintained one of the strongest growth rates in the
region, driven mainly by ample private consumption. Private con-
sumption was boosted by high nominal wage growth, negative
inflation following the VAT cut for food products from 24 % to 9%
and a revival of consumer confidence. Additional strong support
came from new Romanian leu-denominated lending, which was
70% higher than in 2014. For 2015, the overall GDP growth rate is
expected at 3.7 % y/y. After the balance sheet clean-up performed
by banks, the profitability of the banking sector recovered in 2015
after 5 years of losses.

UniCredit Bank (UCB) continued to be an active financier of the
Romanian economy, consolidating its strong position in the segment
of SMEs and mid-size corporates and at the same time accelerating
activity in the retail segment. Through its Corporate and Investment
Banking Division, UCB was present with important mandates both in
the area of mergers and acquisitions and issuance of eurobonds. In
the retail segment, UCB launched new products and made significant
investments in developing alternative channels such as online and
mobile banking environments.

UCB reported operating income of 1.53 billion Romanian leu,
while operating costs were 695 million Romanian leu, leading to
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a gross operating profit of 837 million Romanian leu. Loan loss
provisions decreased significantly compared to last year, by
almost 20 %, reaching 475 million Romanian leu, resulting in a
net profit before minorities of 261 million Romanian leu. The con-
solidated balance sheet reached 35 billion Romanian leu at the
end of December 2015, up by 7% y/y. Net loans increased by
6% to 22 billion Romanian leu. Deposits also delivered a positive
performance, increasing by more than 12% to 18 billion Roma-
nian leu. At year-end 2015 the bank had a network of 183
branches and 3,362 employees.

» UniCredit Group in Bosnia and Herzegovina (BiH) in 2015
increased its consolidated profit after tax by 32% y/y, to 88 million
Convertible marks, mainly driven by stronger revenue and a lower
provisioning charge. UniCredit Group in BiH operates through two
banks (UniCredit Bank d.d. Mostar and UniCredit Bank AD Banja
Luka) and UniCredit Leasing Group.

Effectively implementing key group and local projects and focusing
on its core business, the performance of UniCredit Group in BiH
resulted in overall better results y/y — operating income increased
by 6%, the cost/income ratio improved by around 2 percentage
points, and both net loans to customers and deposits from custom-
ers increased by 12%.

UniCredit Group in BiH increased its competitive edge by responding
to customers’ needs and constantly improving service quality
(Branch-of-the-Future model rolled out in 2015), strengthening rela-
tionships with existing clients, streamlining major processes and
focusing on product simplification.

Despite global and domestic challenges, UniCredit Group in BiH
underlined and further strengthened its leading market position in all
strategic areas and emerged as the most trusted bank: the strongest
deposit base (November market share 24 %, +1 percentage point
compared with 2014), the highest lending volume (market share

22 %, +1 percentage point compared with 2014), high cost effi-
ciency and good asset quality.

The achievements and efforts of UniCredit Group in BiH are reflected
in international awards as “Best Bank” from EMEA Finance, “Best
Bank” and “Best Trade Finance Provider” from Euromoney. In addi-
tion, the bank received numerous awards from local institutions for
“Best Bank”, “Best Employer” as well as for its financial performance
(capital, assets, ROE and ROA).

P In Q2 2015, after five consecutive quarters of negative eco-
nomic growth, Serbia achieved a turnaround thanks to an increase
in net exports, industrial production and investment, improved
external demand and stronger confidence on the country’s outlook.
The internal and external balance improved significantly in 2015,
resulting in a reduction of the country risk premium and an
improved outlook by Fitch and S&P. The momentum needs to be
maintained in order to stabilise public debt and attract foreign
investment. The IMF adjusted the annual GDP forecast upward to
0.8% from the previous 0.5% following a positive third review
under the €1.2 billion SBA. The budget deficit should reach an
estimated 4.1 %, down from 6.7 % in 2014 as a result of fiscal
consolidation measures and better-than-expected revenues. The
current account deficit was also reduced in 2015, by 21% to an
estimated 4.7 %, mainly due to a reduction of the foreign trade
deficit and growth in remittances. Inflation amounted to 1.5% in
December 2015, remaining under the NBS target tolerance band
(4.0% +/—1.5%). Regarding the banking sector, although the high
level of non-performing loans remains a major challenge, a special
study by the central bank in cooperation with the IMF showed that
the levels of capital and liquidity were adequate.

UniCredit in Serbia operates through UniCredit Bank Serbia, UCTAM
d.o.0., and UniCredit Leasing. In 2015 the bank further strengthened
its position by being the market leader in terms of profitability, effi-
ciency and productivity. The bank managed to establish itself in the
Serbian banking sector as the number one in terms of profit, second in
terms of the commercial loan portfolio and third in terms of total assets
(Q3 data), improving the market share in all relevant areas. Operating
income rose by 16 % y/y, mainly driven by 9% growth in loans and
17 % growth in deposits, further improving the stable funding and low-
ering the loan/deposit ratio by 9 percentage points y/y. UniCredit Bank
Serbia is the exclusive bank for the management of student loans and
scholarships in Serbia and conducted a very successful dinar cash loan
campaign in Q4 2015 which resulted in new loans of 3 billion Serbian
dinars and 4,300 new clients. The bank also played a key role in the
largest LBO in CEE in 2015 (€375 million financing for DFG enabling
the acquisition by MEP). The bank introduced a new service model in
the whole network of 71 branches and the client base was further
enlarged to more than 280,000 clients.

In 2015, UniCredit Bank Serbia received several acknowledgements
for its business excellence: “Best Foreign Bank” by EMEA Finance,
“Best Trade Finance Provider” and “Best Cash Manager” by
Euromoney and “Best Sub-Custodian Bank” by Global Finance.
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p> Slovenia’s economy has recovered at a sound pace since its
banking crisis in 2013, and reached GDP growth of 3% y/y. The
deleveraging of the non-financial sector continued in 2015 which
resulted in a further decline of loans.

In Slovenia, UniCredit operates through UniCredit Banka Slovenija
d.d, UniCredit Leasing d.0.0. and UCTAM d.o.0. In a still challenging
business environment UniCredit in Slovenia managed to further
increase its profitability in 2015 and reached a profit before tax of
more than €10 million. The latter is a result of a strong focus on the
optimisation of interest expense, further fee growth, trading opera-
tions and strict cost management.

Average net loans to customers decreased by about 5% y/y and
amounted to €1.8 billion as per year-end. A positive trend in cus-
tomer deposits was also evident in 2015 as the growth of 33% y/y
further underlined the trust of Slovenian customers in the bank.
UniCredit in Slovenia improved the loan/deposit ratio to 96 % com-
pared to 127 % in 2014. The growth of customer deposits made it
possible to reduce deposits from banks significantly.

The consolidated capital adequacy ratio was at over 21 % at year-
end 2015 and thus clearly above the regulatory requirement of 8 %.
In 2015 the bank was part of the ECB Comprehensive Assessment
performed under the Single Supervisory Mechanism and the results
confirmed the bank’s capital strength in Slovenia.

In 2015 UniCredit Bank Slovenia received the Euromoney Award of
Excellence for “Best Bank in Slovenia” as well as the Euromoney
Award for “Best Cash Manager in Slovenia”.

P In 2015 Ukraine’s economy recorded a significant deterioration
due to the escalating geopolitical tensions which led to a stagnating
conflict in the eastern regions of the country. During the year the
Ukrainian hryvnia depreciated by 27 % against the euro and by 34%
against the US dollar, substantially increasing the instability in the
already turbulent financial sector. In this framework the National Bank
of Ukraine undertook a stress test for the banking sector and it is
focusing on recapitalisation plans.

The strategy for 2015 of UniCredit Bank Ukraine focused on miti-
gating the materialised and potential risks. The bank terminated its
operations in the conflict zone. In order to reduce the pressure from
the depreciation of the national currency, special restructuring and
conversion programmes for exposures of FX customers have been

implemented. In the course of the year the bank was recapitalised to
the extent of US$500 million.

UniCredit Bank Ukraine is one of the largest systemic banks in
the country, which is why its financial performance was signifi-
cantly affected by local economic shocks. As of 31 December
2015, the bank’s total assets amounted to 53.1 billion Ukrainian
hryvnias, up by 13% y/y. Net loans to customers increased by
10% y/y to 35.8 billion Ukrainian hryvnias. On the liabilities side,
UniCredit Bank’s customer deposits grew by 14% y/y to 26.5 bil-
lion Ukrainian hryvnias. Growth mainly took place on the back of
depreciation of the local currency as about 70 % of the bank’s
gross loan portfolio and about 45 % of customer deposits are
denominated in foreign currency. As a result of the y/y develop-
ment in volume, the net loan to deposit ratio of the bank totalled
135%, decreasing from 141% in 2014.

For 2015 UniCredit Bank posted a local net loss of 3.1 billion
Ukrainian hryvnias. The loss was mainly generated by loan
loss provisions of about 2.2 billion Ukrainian hryvnias. In 2015
UniCredit Bank continued optimising the branch network and
reducing costs.

The business strategy of the bank has focused on improving
operational efficiency while maintaining the quality of customer
services. The Retail Division’s major targets were the promotion
of new card products and development of sales through alterna-
tive sales channels. In the corporate segment UniCredit Bank
focused on multinational corporations operating in Ukraine and
local exporting companies.
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Income statement of the banks in CEE1)

(€ million)
CEE CZECH REPUBLIC, HUNGARY
DIVISION SLOVAKIA

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Net interest 2,381 2,456 375 365 205 212
Dividends and income from equity investments 364 345 2 2 1 0
Net fee and commission income 718 702 141 129 127 120
Net trading income 329 266 70 58 40 65
Net other operating income/expenses 24 55 9 12 13 3
Operating income 3,816 3,824 597 566 386 401
Operating costs -1,475 -1,501 -258 -239 -163 -163
Operating profit 2,341 2,323 339 326 223 238
Net write-downs of loans -1,017 —-675 -53 —-78 -31 -35
Net operating profit 1,324 1,648 287 248 191 203
Provisions for risks and charges -223 —258 -22 -24 -37 -140
Integration/restructuring costs -8 -7 -5 -1 -3 -5
Net income from investments 2 13 1 -3 9 6
Profit before tax 1,094 1,396 260 220 161 64
Net profit or loss 2 604 1,003 207 179 125 53
Customer loans (end of period) 57,102 56,786 13,004 12,231 3,323 3,115
Customer deposits and debt securities in issue (eop) 58,709 52,243 15,842 13,552 4774 3,838
Exchange rate (period average) 27.279  27.536 309.996 308.706

Appreciation/depreciation against the euro -6.5%3 +0.9% -0.4%

(€ million)
SLOVENIA BULGARIA ROMANIA

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Net interest 47 49 296 271 201 209
Dividends and income from equity investments 0 0 1 1 2 0
Net fee and commission income 28 27 102 99 70 69
Net trading income 8 5 40 31 76 79
Net other operating income/expenses 1 0 -3 1 -4 -3
Operating income 83 80 435 402 344 354
Operating costs —-43 -4 -132 -128 -156 -163
Operating profit 40 40 303 274 188 191
Net write-downs of loans -25 -36 —-64 -93 -107 -133
Net operating profit 14 4 239 181 81 58
Provisions for risks and charges -4 -3 -39 -19 -10 -1
Integration/restructuring costs 0 0 0 0 0 0
Net income from investments 0 -1 -7 -1 -1 5
Profit before tax 10 0 193 162 70 52
Net profit or loss 9 0 172 144 43 24
Customer loans (end of period) 1,764 1,749 5,278 5,683 4,826 4,591
Customer deposits and debt securities in issue (eop) 1,829 1,378 6,793 5,450 4,051 3,645
Exchange rate (period average) 1.0000 1.0000 1.9558  1.9558 44454 44437

Appreciation/depreciation against the euro Euro 0.0% -0.0%

1) The CEE business segment for segment reporting purposes comprises the total figures for the CEE banks shown in this table and the Vienna-based CEE headquarters./
2) Attributable to the owners of the parent company./3) Depreciation against the euro, at the level of operating income.
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(€ million)

RUSSIA BALTICS TURKEY AT EQUITY4 FOR INFORMATION:
(LEASING) TURKEY PRO QUOTA4
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Net interest 590 697 15 14 830 725
Dividends and income from equity investments 0 0 0 0 349 341 8 6
Net fee and commission income 64 126 1 1 326 296
Net trading income 62 -30 0 0 44 74
Net other operating income/expenses -2 4 0 0 6 5
Operating income 715 796 15 15 349 341 1,212 1,105
Operating costs -216 —-258 -6 -6 -541 -516
Operating profit 499 538 10 9 349 341 672 589
Net write-downs of loans -214 -85 -2 -4 -214 —-154
Net operating profit 285 453 7 5 349 341 458 435
Provisions for risks and charges -9 -6 0 0 =27 -14
Integration/restructuring costs 0 0 0 -1 0 0
Net income from investments 0 1 0 0 5 5
Profit before tax 276 448 7 349 341 436 426
Net profit or loss 224 354 6 9 349 341 349 341
Customer loans (end of period) 10,740 11,384 368 378 20,931 19,337
Customer deposits and debt securities in issue (eop) 11,950 12,058 0 0 18,329 17,563
Exchange rate (period average) 68.0720 50.9518 1.0000  1.0000 3.0255  2.9065 3.0255  2.9065
Appreciation/depreciation against the euro -252% Euro -3.9% -3.9%
(€ million)
CROATIA BOSNIA SERBIA
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Net interest 357 340 100 93 99 89
Dividends and income from equity investments 7 6 0 0 0 0
Net fee and commission income 130 124 36 36 22 19
Net trading income 29 27 6 5 13 9
Net other operating income/expenses 22 38 0 0 -3 0
Operating income 545 536 142 135 132 117
Operating costs —-226 —236 -7 -69 -46 —42
Operating profit 320 300 4l 65 86 74
Net write-downs of loans —-340 —-138 -9 -15 —-26 -37
Net operating profit -20 162 63 50 59 37
Provisions for risks and charges -28 -16 -5 -4 -8 -12
Integration/restructuring costs 0 0 0 0 0 0
Net income from investments 0 8 0 0 0 0
Profit before tax -49 153 58 46 51 25
Net profit or loss =31 94 45 34 49 26
Customer loans (end of period) 9,553 9,723 1,829 1,628 1,497 1,378
Customer deposits and debt securities in issue (eop) 9,955 8,406 2,075 1,851 1,303 1,112
Exchange rate (period average) 7.6137  7.6344 1.9558  1.9558 120.687 117.231
Appreciation/depreciation against the euro +0.3% 0.0% -2.9%

4) Turkey presented at equity in accordance with IFRS 10/IFRS 11; additionally, pro-quota data for information purposes.
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Outlook

Economic scenario

Concerns over economic developments in the emerging econo-
mies, which had adversely impacted the global economy in the
second half of 2015, were more accentuated at the beginning of
the current year. The growth prospects for China, in particular, and
the renewed sharp fall in crude oil prices have created further
uncertainty among investors, resulting in turmoil on financial mar-
kets. This was mainly reflected in stock market prices. In the first
few weeks of the year until 11 February 2016 the world share
index fell by 12 %; within this figure the EuroStoxx Index declined
by 17 %. This development primarily affected European banks:
their share prices fell substantially, by 30%, and credit spreads
and interest rate spreads for these banks rose sharply.

However, the real economic performance of industrial countries
has hardly deteriorated and the volatile market developments do
not reflect the fundamentals. But there is a growing risk that the
turmoil, if it persists, may permanently harm economic sentiment
in terms of business and consumer confidence and trigger a self-
fulfilling downward spiral.

=> We are confident that the trend towards recovery in 2015 will
return in 2016 and our economic forecast for 2016/17 is slightly
more favourable compared with the previous year.

® In 2016/17, the global economy will grow by about 3%2%
p.a., slightly faster than in the previous year. However, the outlook
has clouded over in the past few months on account of growing
risks. The main risk is a massive slowdown in economic growth in
the emerging economies on account of external factors known as
three Cs: China, commodities and capital.

P China, the engine of growth, especially for the emerging
economies in Asia, is losing momentum on account of struc-
tural challenges and existing imbalances. Although a hard land-
ing of the Chinese economy is unlikely, the current phase of
the country’s restructuring process will probably result in per-
manently lower growth rates and therefore in less support for
the global economy.

» In addition, the sharp fall in prices for many commodities,
industrial metals and especially oil, has revealed structural prob-
lems in many emerging economies which export raw materials.
The current oil glut will only start to slowly ease in the second half
of 2016, when growth in demand increases as economic activity
picks up and, on the supply side, as production by market suppli-
ers with higher production costs declines. Our forecast assumes
that the oil price will remain at an average 37 US dollars per bar-
rel in 2016 even if it rises again as the year progresses.

» In 2015, uncertainty over a turnaround in interest rates in the
US significantly influenced investors’ risk appetite and occasion-
ally contributed to a massive withdrawal of capital from highly
exposed emerging economies. The interest rate turnaround
finally came at the end of 2015. The US is expected to further
tighten monetary policy in 2016, especially as the US economy
will in the current year continue to pursue a sound growth path
of about 2%, driven by domestic demand. It is not yet clear
whether the tightening of monetary policy will be a steady, con-
tinuous process or a process characterised by speculative fluc-
tuations. Renewed risk aversion with consequent capital out-
flows would in particular affect emerging economies with high
external financing requirements (current account deficits), mak-
ing it difficult for these countries to finance further growth.

A further adverse factor are the divergent monetary policies of
industrial countries, which create uncertainty among financial
markets. General preference for a tighter monetary policy, advo-
cated by the US, compares with a further easing of monetary
policy in Europe (and Japan).

@ There are no signs that the economic slowdown in the emerging
economies has affected the euro area, and we expect moderate
recovery in the euro area to continue. Following the slow growth in
the final quarter of 2015 we have lowered our GDP forecast for
2016 from +1.9% to +1.7 % in response to the statistical over-
hang. In view of the significantly lower inflationary outlook (medium-
term inflation expectations have fallen to a new low of less than
1.5% for the 5yr/5yr forward swap rate) the ECB could further
lower the negative interest rate for deposits in spring and extend
the current bond purchase programme.

= It is questionable whether another reduction that will push
interest rates further into negative territory would actually help to
stimulate economic growth; the costs and uncertainty created by
negative interest rates may offset the positive effects.

@ In the Austrian economy the moderate improvement in business
sentiment continued into 2016. In January 2016, the Bank Austria
Business Indicator rose slightly to 0.1 points, returning to positive
territory for the first time since September 2015. Austria’s
industrial sector also seems to have got off to a good start in
the current year. The Bank Austria Purchasing Managers' Index
advanced to 51.2 points in January 2016. While the recent
turmoil in financial markets and the concerns over the global
economy did not impact the Austrian economy, economic growth
in Austria is still stagnating. The weak growth in the second half
of 2015 is now followed by signs of more buoyant economic
activity in Austria.
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=> Austria’s stronger economic growth in 2016 compared with the pre-
vious year is driven by three factors: the (underestimated) tax reform
(firstly) and the persistently low oil prices (secondly) strengthen domestic
demand. The undervalued euro (thirdly) continues to support exports.

The impetus from these factors will probably feed through to the econ-
omy in the first half of 2016; the tailwind from external factors will
subside to the extent that the three factors translate into stronger eco-
nomic momentum. The improvement of the European economy will for
example result in a slight strengthening of the euro against the US dol-
lar, and the oil price is likely to rise in the second half of the year in
response to a new pattern in supply and demand. In 2016, the Aus-
trian economy will probably experience its most buoyant growth in the
first half of the year and growth will subsequently weaken over the turn
of 2016/17. Economic growth could amount to 1.5% in each of
these years and will therefore exceed that of 2015 (+0.9%). This
means that Austria will in 2016 and 2017 close the growth gap to the
euro area and Germany, supported by the tax reform, a special factor.

In the first half of 2016, inflation will still be dampened by the low oil
price before subsequently rising slightly, partly driven by the stronger
momentum of the domestic economy. Consumer prices will rise by an
average 1.4% in 2016, faster than in the previous year (2015: (+0.9%).
Austria’s labour market will remain tight despite more buoyant growth.
We expect unemployment to climb to 6% in 2016 due to the unabated
rise in the labour supply. Disposable nominal income will increase faster
than in the previous year as employment picks up, rising by just over
1%, and especially as a result of the easing of the income tax burden.

=> While this scenario indicates a slight recovery of volume trends
in the banking sector, it does not invalidate previous trends. At the
beginning of 2016, growth in housing finance was still the most
important component of credit expansion whereas corporate loans
were stagnant and loans to consumers and SMEs declined slightly.
After weak growth of lending volume in 2015 (adjusted for the effect
of appreciation of the Swiss franc: +2.1 %), a slightly accelerating
economic momentum, in combination with the low level of interest
rates, should lead to somewhat stronger credit demand in 2016. We
expect growth in 2016 to reach almost 2 %, supported by housing
finance and slightly stronger demand for corporate loans. Deposits
continued to increase at a rapid pace throughout 2015, growing by
4% overall, with deposits from private households up by 2.8%. In
view of low interest rates, however, deposit growth should weaken
somewhat as soon as private households start to invest more in
mutual funds; but this will depend on how financial markets develop.
Additions to financial assets held by private households in 2016
should more or less match the total amount of about €10 billion
seen in 2015. This means that monetary wealth formation in 2016,

too, will be lagging behind the strong increases experienced before
the financial crisis. The reasons are a weaker income trend, the cur-
rently still lower savings ratio and the fact that investment income,
which is traditionally reinvested, is also lower. The reduction of for-
eign currency loans with a bullet maturity is an additional factor to be
taken into account: repayment vehicles are terminated upon loan
repayment, and this leads to a reduction of both debt and financial
assets. Continued strong interest in tangible assets, primarily real
estate, also affects monetary wealth formation and this trend will
continue in 2016. Fixed-rate investments, including traditional bank
bonds, will be further reduced.

@ For Central and Eastern Europe (CEE) our economists expect sig-
nificant growth to continue, with strong domestic economic activity
supported by a favourable external environment, i. €. by stronger
growth in the euro area, the expected expansion of the ECB’s purchase
programme, and consequently further convergence to ultra-low interest
rates, and monetary expansion accompanied by continued low inflation
and ample liquidity. All these factors will probably offset the burdens
originating from the interest rate turnaround in the US and the eco-
nomic slowdown in emerging markets, primarily China.

Expansion in the EU member states in the CEE region (without
Croatia) will continue, with trends hardly varying from country to
country. Bulgaria, Romania and Poland are expected to achieve further
strong growth while economic performance in the Czech Republic,

Economic growth (real GDP, % over previous year)

2013 2014 2015e 2016p 2017p
World (IWF, PPP) +34 +34 +31 +34 +36
China +7.7 +73 +69 +65 +6.2
USA +22 424 +24 +22 +24
Euro area -04 +09 +15 +17 +16
... Austria +03 +04 +09 +15 +15
Czech Republic -07 +20 +43 +23 +30
Slovakia +14 +25 +34 +30 +3.0
Hungary +19 +37 +29 +28 +28
Slovenia -11 +30 +26 +19 +25
Poland +12 +35 +36 +37 +338
Bulgaria +13 +15 +28 +30 +29
Romania +34 +28 +37 439 +35
Croatia -11 -04 +13 +11 +15
Bosnia and Herzegovina +24 +11 +20 +30 +34
Serbia +26 -18 +06 +1.7 +1.2
Russia +13 +06 -37 -30 +1.2
Turkey +40 +29 +34 +30 +33
Ukraine +00 -65 -103 +20 +25

Source: UniCredit Research (world: IMF/WEQ at PPP).
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Slovakia, Hungary and Slovenia will be somewhat weaker (see table).
These trends are to be seen mainly in the context of declining EU
transfer payments during the transition from the programme which
has expired to the new programme, and of the lower growth contri-
bution from net exports. Imports will probably rise more strongly than
exports as domestic demand has accelerated and will remain the
principal growth driver. Unlike public investment, private consumption
(supported by the labour market, stronger wage growth and a
renewed increase in consumer loans) and corporate investment
should pick up. Stronger consumer confidence and companies’
higher profitability as well as a higher level of new lending by banks
will support private investment. Stronger lending activity by banks
would mean that debt reduction in CEE countries within the EU,
which has been going on for years, will be coming to an end.

Croatia and Serbia will probably follow a similar growth path,
though at a significantly slower pace of about +1.5%. Both
countries are facing major challenges: the unfavourable invest-
ment climate hampers FDI flows and thus export potential, while
the precarious budget situation and high levels of public debt are
calling for cuts. There is limited scope for independent monetary
policy decisions in view of the (de facto) currency boards. Serbia
enjoys a somewhat better outlook as the IMF standby arrange-
ment has a stabilising effect. On the other hand, Serbia has a
large current account deficit, weakening its external position.
Croatia has achieved a current account surplus, but the country
recorded a significantly larger budget deficit and higher public
debt with a rising interest burden.

As far as Turkey is concerned, the economic outlook for 2016
has brightened while geopolitical risks have increased signifi-
cantly. We expect economic growth to rise gradually to an annual
rate of 4% to 4.5% in the second half of 2016, supported by
stronger confidence, a renewed inflow of capital and moderate
tax reductions of 1% of GDP. Sanctions imposed by Russia will
probably increase the current account deficit in 2016 by 0.6 % of
GDP and reduce growth by 0.3 %. But this gap will more or less
be closed with the €3 billion in financial assistance promised by
the EU to support the country in dealing with the refugee crisis.
For 2016 we therefore continue to expect strong average growth
of 3.4 %, with inflation slowly declining to 6% in 2016. A current
account deficit of 6% makes Turkey vulnerable to a sudden turn
in capital market sentiment. In our base scenario we nevertheless
assume that funds from abroad will be sufficient to prevent pres-
sure on finance.

Qil price movements seen in the year to date and expected for the
rest of 2016 will translate into a GDP decline in Russia compared

with 2015 (-=3.0% after —3.7 %). Domestic demand is being
adjusted through fiscal measures (despite a larger deficit) totalling
between 2% and 2%% of GDP, including further cuts in wages and
social transfers. In combination with higher inflation of 10 %, which
reflects currency depreciation, these developments mean significant
real income losses for the population, leading to a further decline in
consumption of 7% in real terms (previous year: —9%). A gradual
increase in oil prices in the latter part of the year could help to stabi-
lise the situation. But the supply side cannot support a sustained
turnaround.

Economic performance in Ukraine has stabilised thanks to the
mining industry in the Donbass regions which are not occupied,
and also supported by the agricultural sector, hyperinflation has
eased somewhat and a slow recovery is underway, with growth of
2%. However, the political situation is unstable in view of a gov-
ernment crisis and because reforms are faltering. There is also a
delay in cooperation with the IMF. This is partly reflected in cur-
rency depreciation after the turn of the year (—10% by the middle
of February 2016). Political infighting between powerful economic
interests has led to a further deterioration in the overall frame-
work for foreign investment.

@ A further escalation of geopolitical conflicts, primarily through
involvement in the armed conflicts in the Middle East, is the most
significant risk, which is very difficult to assess or quantify.
Domestic political uncertainty (e.g. in Croatia after the ambigu-
ous outcome of the election) and recourse to populist measures
ahead of elections (e.g. in Romania in 2016) could cause uncer-
tainty or the abandonment of budget discipline, especially after the
success of stabilisation efforts in the past years. A concrete risk
is “Brexit”, a potential negative outcome of the referendum on
23 June 2016 on Britain’s membership of the European Union. The
refugee crisis could strengthen national policies of isolation, under-
mining the single European market and the EU project as a
whole. In view of Greece’s geographical location, difficulties in that
country in combination with the latent debt crisis could have a
renewed negative impact.

From a macroeconomic perspective there is a risk that the eco-
nomic slowdown in China could spread to neighbouring emerging
economies, with a multiplier effect impacting the global economy.
Given the geographical focus of CEE countries’ foreign trade, this is
less of a problem for CEE than for core Europe and the US. The
interest rate turnaround initiated by the Fed has not had any
major effects as yet. But a renewed flight of portfolio capital to safe
havens could temporarily put a strain on external financing for
Croatia, Serbia and Turkey.
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Outlook for Bank Austria’s performance

@ The general environment for Bank Austria’s commercial
banking activities in Austria and in Central and Eastern Europe
in 2016 will resemble the conditions which prevailed in 2015: we
expect interest margins in Austrian customer business to remain
under pressure and we will respond to this pressure by aiming for
slightly stronger credit expansion; growth on the deposit side will
slow down after the substantial accrual of funds seen in the past
year. Our objective is to carry over to 2016 the strong momentum
of fee-based business in commercial services and in asset man-
agement. The restructuring measures already reflected in the
2015 financial statements will have a positive effect on cost
trends. We expect net write-downs of loans to return to normal; it
will hardly be possible to benefit from a net release of loan loss
provisions as in the previous years. But we expect that the provi-
sioning charge in Austria will remain at a low level. Business in
Central and Eastern Europe (CEE) will continue to reflect mixed
regional developments in 2016, which we aim to balance out with
our broadly-based presence to maintain the high level of operat-
ing income. Our banking subsidiary in Russia showed a strong
performance in the past two years, and 2016 could become the
first year in which the strain on the operating environment eases.
In CESEE, lending volume should expand more rapidly in 2016
after the strong deposit growth in the previous year. All these fac-
tors suggest that under the base scenario, net operating profit
will rise and — after the withdrawal from Ukraine — Bank Austria
will also achieve a sound net profit.

@ Major structural changes will make 2016 a key year in
Bank Austria’s long history.

»> With the intended transfer of the banking network in Central
and Eastern Europe to the parent company UniCredit SpA,
Bank Austria — based on its position as one of Austria’s leading
banks — will become a local bank within UniCredit Group’s cross-
regional network, like the banks in all other countries, including ltaly,
Poland, Hungary, Croatia or Germany. The shareholding interests in
CEE companies are to be transferred to the Group’s Milan-based
holding company by the end of 2016. With Bank Austria no longer
performing sub-holding company functions, the cross-regional organ-
isation can be made leaner, eliminating duplication. In the current
regulatory environment, this move will enhance UniCredit’s ability to
manage liquidity and capital. Regardless of where the equity invest-
ments in the CEE banking subsidiaries are held, our internationally
active corporate customers will benefit from service continuity.
The full expertise and customary high advisory service quality will
continue to be available to them.

After the transfer of CEE business, Bank Austria would have total
assets of about €100 billion and 1.6 million customers, thus remain-
ing the largest individual institution in the Austrian banking market,
with all the advantages offered to customers by an international,
global systemically important banking group. The concentration on
the home market, where business volume is comparable to that in
CEE, would significantly improve Bank Austria’s risk profile: risk
intensity, capital absorption, the cost of capital, liquidity and funding
costs will then be those of a mature universal bank operating in core
Europe.

P Under the current multi-year plan, return on allocated capital in
Austria is to be increased to about 13% by 2018, and the cost/
income ratio is to be improved to 60 %. With the Bank Austria
Reloaded project we are accelerating the transformation, launched
two years ago, into a modern universal bank taking advantage of
digitalisation in banking business. In densely populated areas, this
will involve a further adjustment of the branch network serving retail
customers, offering fewer but larger branches while extending their
opening hours. The service offering for small businesses will be sig-
nificantly expanded; in the future it will be available in 55 locations
(currently 29 units). In addition to initiatives on the income side,
annual payroll costs and other administrative expenses will be
reduced by a total of about €300 million by 2018 (-18% compared
with 2014). Cost savings will be achieved through a reduction of IT
and settlement costs, a higher degree of standardisation, and
streamlining of the product range. A further cost reduction will result
from the full switch from a defined-benefit provision-based pension
scheme to a defined-contribution pension scheme.

In the first few months of 2016 we set about the restructuring pro-
gramme, for which provisions were made in the 2015 financial state-
ments. A project structure has been set up to calibrate and imple-
ment the restructuring process. The process of operationalising the
objectives and detailed planning for all areas will be completed by
the middle of 2016 and followed by the implementation phase.

We aim to firmly establish Bank Austria as a universal bank with
sustainable profitability in the Austrian market, with lean sales oper-
ations geared to the needs of our private customers, a well-balanced
mix of online and offline services and fast transaction settlement, fur-
ther expansion of our successful Private Banking activities, and with an
initiative for internationalisation and growth aimed at the companies
and large customers we serve within the UniCredit network.
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Stefan runs his family’s company ﬁucharest. He has designed

and built kitchens since he'Was a boy, and still loves it. But since

he also loves to cook, he'thinks it.\évould be perfect to combine

his passions by opening a special show room that hosts cooking
- -

classes and workshops with famous chefs.

A place like that would have some cultural value and give his
whole neighborhood a boost, so he thinks he could apply to
receive public funds. But he doesn’t know where to start.
He needs a partner, someone who helps prove the feasibility
of the project to the government.

4 *‘»4

Hey Stefan, why not ask us? We bftéin give advice to customers
who want to det grants and otherfunding. In Romania, for
instance, we provide 360° suppart, from the stage when a client
gets an investment idea, to when the client secures funding, until
even after that, while the client’s use of funding is monitored.

Thanks to our preliminary advice, including gtidance on where
torapply.for funds, and'our full rarl}ge of banking pro@ycts and
entive monitoring service, Stefan can make his ide ‘i reality.

0 knows, maybe it will also help him beco Ne world’s
next great artisan-eeok.
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Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with IFRSs

Consolidated Income Statement

of the Bank Austria Group for the year ended 31 December 2015

Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2015 (€ million)

Notes 2015 2014
Interest income and similar revenues B.1 6,269 6,365
Interest expense and similar charges B.1 -2,883 -2,932
Net interest margin 3,386 3,433
Fee and commission income B.2 1,873 1,795
Fee and commission expense B.2 -434 —-428
Net fees and commissions 1,439 1,367
Dividend income and similar revenue B.3 9 7
Gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading B.4 392 332
Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting B.5 -19 17
Gains and losses on disposal of: B.6 42 133
a) loans 5 4
b) available-for-sale financial assets 59 129
¢) held-to-maturity investments - -
d) financial liabilities -22 1
Gains and losses on financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss B.7 10 8
OPERATING INCOME 5,259 5,298
Impairment losses on: B.8 —-1,035 —-705
a) loans -1,020 —-675
b) available-for-sale financial assets -17 -8
¢) held-to-maturity investments -6 -
d) other financial assets 8 -22
Net income from financial activities 4,224 4,593
Administrative costs: —-2,849 -3,173
a) staff expense B.9 -1,164 —-1,620
b) other administrative expense B.10 —-1,685 —1,553
Net provisions for risks and charges B.11 -197 -132
Impairment/write-backs on property, plant and equipment B.12 -197 —154
Impairment/write-backs on intangible assets B.13 -52 -48
Other net operating income B.14 152 122
OPERATING COSTS -3,144 -3,386
Profit (loss) on equity investments B.15 519 454
Gains and losses on tangible and intangible assets measured at fair value -2 3
Gains and losses on disposal of investments B.16 24 113
TOTAL PROFIT OR LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 1,621 1,778
Tax expense (income) related to profit or loss from continuing operations B17 —-86 —287
Total profit or loss after tax from continuing operations 1,535 1,492
Total profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations B.18 -303 -132
NET PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1,232 1,360

Attributable to:

Non-controlling interests from continuing operations 18 31
from discontinued operations -111 -54
Non-controlling interests -93 -23
Owners of the parent company from continuing operations 1,517 1,461
from discontinued operations -192 —-78
Owners of the parent company 1,325 1,383
Earnings per share (in €, basic and diluted) from continuing operations B.19 6.56 6.32
from discontinued operations -0.83 -0.34
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

of the Bank Austria Group for the year ended 31 December 2015

Statement of comprehensive income (€ million)
1 JAN. - 1 JAN. -
31 DEC. 2015 31 DEC. 2014
Total profit or loss after tax from continuing operations 1,535 1,492
Total profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations -303 -132
PROFIT OR (-) LOSS FOR THE PERIOD 1,232 1,360
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 134 -1,737
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 757 —-768
Actuarial gains or (-) losses on defined benefit pension plans 1,009 -1,020
Share of other recognised income and expense of entities accounted for using the equity method 2 -3
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified —254 255
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -623 -968
Foreign currency translation —626 —-1,494
Cash flow hedges [effective portion] -58 200
Valuation gains or () losses taken to equity -59 189
Transferred to profit or loss 1 11
Available-for-sale financial assets 87 434
Valuation gains or () losses taken to equity 99 513
Transferred to profit or loss -12 -79
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale 3 3
Valuation gains or (-) losses taken to equity - 30
Transferred to profit or loss 3 =27
Share of other recognised income and expense of entities accounted for using the equity method —-68 71
Cash flow hedges [effective portion] 93 -31
Available-for-sale financial assets -161 102
Other recognised income and expenses - -
Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or () loss 39 -182
Gains/losses on assets available for sale (available-for-sale reserve) 5 —114
Gains/losses on assets available for sale (available-for-sale reserve) of investments measured at equity 16 —46
Gains/losses on cash flow hedges (cash flow hedge reserve) 36 -28
Gains/losses on cash flow hedges (cash flow hedge reserve) of investments measured at equity -18 6
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 1,365 -377
Comprehensive income after tax from continuing operations 1,765 32
Comprehensive income after tax from discontinued operations =400 -408
Thereof attributable to
Non-controlling interests from continuing operations 25 29
from discontinued operations -122 —141
Non-controlling interests -97 -112
Owners of the parent from continuing operations 1,740 3
from discontinued operations -278 —268
Attributable to owners of the parent 1,462 -265
Earnings per share (in €, basic and diluted) G)
1 JAN. - 1 JAN. -
31 DEC. 2015 31 DEC. 2014
Earnings per share from comprehensive income after tax from continuing operations 7.53 0.01
Earnings per share from comprehensive income after tax from discontinued operations -1.20 -1.16
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Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with IFRSs

Statement of Financial Position

of the Bank Austria Group at 31 December 2015

Assets (€ million)
Notes 31 DEC. 2015 31 DEC. 2014
Cash and cash balances CA 2,146 1,942
Financial assets held for trading C.2 3,013 3,533
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss c.3 89 110
Available-for-sale financial assets C4 24,810 22,148
Held-to-maturity investments C5 484 572
Loans and receivables with banks C.6 32,214 30,542
Loans and receivables with customers C7 116,377 113,732
Hedging derivatives C.8 3,290 3,952
Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items (+/-) C9 41 -99
Investments in associates and joint ventures C.10 4,741 4,644
Property, plant and equipment C.11 2,132 2,147
of which held for investment 827 896
Intangible assets C.12 221 171
Tax assets 448 570
a) current tax assets 94 72
b) deferred tax assets €13 353 499
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale C14 2,467 3,600
Other assets €15 1,167 1,554
TOTAL ASSETS 193,638 189,118
Liabilities and equity (€ million)
31 DEC. 2015 31 DEC. 2014
Deposits from banks C.16 23,432 23,696
Deposits from customers C17 110,346 102,271
Debt securities in issue C.18 28,802 30,014
Financial liabilities held for trading €19 2,642 3,454
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss €.20 547 670
Hedging derivatives .21 2,782 3,302
Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged items (+/-) €22 -101 84
Tax liabilities 214 165
a) current tax liabilities 46 58
b) deferred tax liabilities C.23 169 107
Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale C.24 1,977 1,845
Other liabilities €25 2,773 2,617
Provisions for risks and charges C.26 4,830 6,076
a) post-retirement benefit obligations 3,697 5,665
b) other provisions 1,133 411
Equity C.27 15,394 14,925
of which non-controlling interests (+/-) 238 193
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 193,638 189,118
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Statement of Changes in Equity

of the Bank Austria Group for the year ended 31 December 2015

(€ million)
CHANGES DURING THE PERIOD
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY TRANSACTIONS
BALANCE ALLOCATION CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’
AS AT OF PROFIT FROM CHANGES SCOPE OF COMPREHENSIVE EQUITY GROUP
1 JAN. 20141)2)  PREVIOUS YEAR IN RESERVES CONSOLIDATION OTHER  TOTAL INCOME AS AT 31 DEC. 2014
Issued capital:
a) ordinary shares 1,681 - 1,681
b) other shares - -
Share premium 6,052 6 6 6,058
Reserves:
a) other reserve 11,890 -1,604 280 280 10,566
b) foreign currency reserve -2,577 - —-1,403 -3,980
Cash flow hedge reserve 194 - 153 347
Available-for-sale reserve 400 - 321 721
Cash flow hedge and AFS reserve
associates and joint ventures 25 - 46 4l
Pension and similar liabilities IAS 19 -1,351 - —765 -2,116
Net profit or loss for the period —-1,604 1,604 1,383 - 1,383
Shareholders’ Equity Group 14,710 0 1,383 280 6 286 -1,648 14,732
Shareholders’ Equity minorities 340 -20 -23 -15 -15 -89 193
Total Shareholders’ Equity 15,050 -20 1,360 280 -9 271 -1,737 14,925
CHANGES DURING THE PERIOD
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY TRANSACTIONS
ALLOCATION CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’
BALANCE AS AT  OF PROFIT FROM CHANGES SCOPE OF COMPREHENSIVE EQUITY GROUP
1JAN. 2015 PREVIOUS YEAR IN RESERVES CONSOLIDATION OTHER  TOTAL INCOME AS AT 31 DEC. 2015
Issued capital:
a) ordinary shares 1,681 - 1,681
b) other shares - - -
Share premium 6,058 9 9 6,067
Reserves:
a) other reserve 10,566 1,383 111 =963 -852 11,098
b) foreign currency reserve -3,980 -197 -197 -620 -4,797
Cash flow hedge reserve 347 - —-42 305
Available-for-sale reserve 721 - 93 814
Cash flow hedge and AFS reserve
associates and joint ventures 71 - -50 21
Pension and similar liabilities IAS 19 -2,116 - 757 -1,359
Net profit or loss for the period 1,383 -1,383 1,325 - 1,325
Shareholders’ Equity Group 14,732 - 1,325 -86 -954 -1,040 138 15,155
Shareholders’ Equity minorities 193 -34 -93 176 - 176 -4 238
Total Shareholders’ Equity 14,925 -34 1,232 90 -954 864 134 15,394

1) Prior year figures were restated due to IFRS 10 and IFRS 11. This relates to the inclusion of the real estate fund “Real Invest Europe” in the scope of consolidation as well as the
presentation of the entities of the Yapi-Kredi Group using the equity method instead of proportionate consolidation. / 2) Due to the merger of both Ukrainian banks and the simultaneous
capital increase in December 2013, the non-controlling interest in Bank Austria Group as at 31 December 2013 was shown too high, by € 145 million, while the group’s own
retained earnings were shown too low by the same amount. The figures have been restated. There was no effect on total equity as at 31 December 2013.
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Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with IFRSs

Statement of Cash Flows

of the Bank Austria Group for the year ended 31 December 2015

(€ million)
2015 2014
NET PROFIT OR LOSS 1,232 1,360
Non-cash items included in net profit, and adjustments to reconcile net profit to cash flows from operating activities
Depreciation, amortisation, net write-downs of loans, and changes in fair values 1,318 953
Increase in staff-related provisions and other provisions —787 402
Increase/decrease in other non-cash items -417 —654
Interest income/interest expenses from investing activities 110 95
Gains/losses on disposal of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, and investments -59 —246
SUB-TOTAL 1,397 1,910
Increase/decrease in operating assets and liabilities after adjustment for non-cash components
Financial assets held for trading 108 -1,982
Loans and receivables with banks and customers —4,242 -2,718
Other asset items 1,443 882
Financial liabilities held for trading -903 2,383
Deposits from banks and customers 7,135 738
Debt securities in issue —-2,760 1,264
Other liabilities items -293 —-1,345
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,885 1,132
of which: cash flows from operating activities of discontinued operations =77 -112
Proceeds from disposal of
investments 9,516 13,613
property, plant and equipment 131 146
Payments for purchases of
investments —-11,905 —15,455
property, plant and equipment —-430 —396
Proceeds from sales (less cash disposed of) of subsidiaries 217 135
Payments for acquisition (less cash acquired) of subsidiaries -34 —452
Other changes - —692
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -2,505 -3,101
of which: cash flows from investing activities of discontinued operations 65 78
Proceeds from capital increase - -
Dividends paid - -
Subordinated liabilities and other financial activities (net) 801 1,526
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 801 1,526
of which: cash flows from financing activities of discontinued operations - -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PERIOD 1,942 2,375
Cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations at end of previous period 85 191
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PREVIOUS PERIOD 2,027 2,566
Cash flows from operating activities 1,885 1,132
Cash flows from investing activities —-2,505 -3,101
Cash flows from financing activities 801 1,526
Effects of exchange rate changes -1 -96
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 2,197 2,027
Cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations 51 85
Cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations 2,146 1,942
Payments for taxes, interest and dividends
Income taxes paid from operating activities -128 -178
Interest received  from operating activities 5,670 5,685
from investing activities 588 676
Interest paid from operating activities -2,319 -2,353
from investing activities —770 -779
Dividends received from investing activities 101 77
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Let’s talk about lending a hand to entrepreneurs.

Being an entrepreneur often means that the line between work
and private life is very thin. Sometimes it just does not exist, as is
the case with Matteo and Giacomao’s father: He wants to balance
everything by himself, but often he just can’t make that happen.

But help is closer than it looks. When you think about the ways
banks can support private businesses, you probably think about
financing, or special current accounts for small enterprises.

Our Italian colleagues were able to look beyond that when they
created My Business Manader. To help small entrepreneurs in

their everyday lives, My Business Manader is an online report
that enables them to continuously monitor and forecast flows,
transactions, payments, receipts, invoices and credit.

It's just like having a personal manader who handles the
administration while you take care of your business. Easy, isn’t it?

Thanks to this simple interface, entrepreneurs like Matteo and
Giacomo’s dad can check their business at a glance and be faster
in all of their transactions and, above all, spend more time with
their families.
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Note

In this report, “Bank Austria” and “the Bank Austria Group” refer to the Group. To the extent that information relates to the parent company’s separate financial statements,
“UniCredit Bank Austria AG” is used.

In adding up rounded figures and calculating the percentage rates of changes, slight differences may result compared with totals and rates arrived at by adding up component
figures which have not been rounded off.
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the stage?

Let’s talk about getting the goods on time.

Every summer, major music festivals are held in the countryside.

The line-ups are announced months in advance, and thousands
of people buy tickets to see their favorite bands live. But some-
times ... things can go wrong.

Tens of thousands of goods pass through the customs every day.

It’s so ordinary that you never even think about it. Until one day,
when doods vital to your business operation absolutely must
arrive in time.

From concert equipment to spare parts, it can take up to three
working days to get your customs payments processed. That

is why in Russia we introduced the PayHD card. It speeds up
import/export operations and helps our customers avoid bad
surprises. With PayHD, doods are always processed quickly, with
no extra paper work required.

Now entrepreneurs in Russia can concentrate on their own
business and stop worrying about import/export timings.
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Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with IFRSs

A — Accounting policies (conmuen)

A.1 — Information on the company

UniCredit Bank Austria AG, Schottengasse 6—8, A-1010 Vienna, Austria, (“Bank Austria” or “BA”) is a universal bank conducting banking business
within the meaning of Section 1 (1) of the Austrian Banking Act. It is registered under no. FN 150714p in the Austrian Register of Firms. The
Bank Austria Group as part of the UniCredit group offers a complete range of banking and other financial services, such as corporate finance, foreign
trade financing, project finance, capital markets and money market services, securities and foreign exchange trading, investment banking, consumer
credit and mortgage lending, savings accounts, asset management, leasing and factoring. The bank continues to operate in the market under the
“Bank Austria” brand name. The geographical focus of the Group’s operations is on Austria, Central and Eastern Europe (CEE), and Turkey and Russia.

A.2 — Basis for the preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of Bank Austria for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the comparative information have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), including the
interpretation documents issued by the SIC and IFRIC, and endorsed by the European Commission up to 31 December 2015, pursuant to EU
Regulation 1606/2002. The additional disclosure requirements according to Section 245a UGB (Austrian Business Code) and Section 59a of the
Austrian Banking Act as well as the disclosure requirements specified in the Accounting Manual of UniCredit S.p.A., the ultimate parent company,
required to be applied throughout the Group were taken into account in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

The following documents have been used to interpret and support the application of IFRS, even though they have not all been endorsed by the
European Commission:

e Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements issued by the IASB in 2010;

e |mplementation Guidance, Basis for Conclusions and any other documents prepared by the IASB or the IFRS Interpretations Committee
supplementing the IFRS;

ESMA (European Securities and Markets Authority) and Consob documents on the application of specific IFRS provisions;

e |nterpretative documents on the application of IFRS in Austria prepared by the Austrian Financial Reporting and Advisory Committee (AFRAC).

The consolidated financial statements comprise the statement of financial position, the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows (compiled using the indirect method) and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and are accompanied by the management report.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in euros, the presentation currency of the Group. Unless indicated otherwise, all figures are in
millions of euros (€).

These consolidated accounts have been prepared on the assumption that the business is a going concern in accordance with IAS 1, as there is no
uncertainty as to the company’s ability to continue its business operations.

The measurement criteria adopted are therefore consistent with this assumption and with the principles of accrual based accounting, the relevance
and materiality of accounting information, and the prevalence of economic substance over legal form. These criteria have not changed with respect to
the previous year.

Risk and uncertainty due to use of estimated figures

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting principles and the amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses reported in the consolidated financial statements, as well
as the disclosure concerning contingent assets and liabilities. Estimates and related assumptions are based on previous experience and other factors
considered reasonable under the circumstances and have been used to estimate the carrying values of assets and liabilities for which evidence of
value is not readily available from other sources.

Valuation is particularly complex given the uncertainty in the macroeconomic and market environment, which is characterised by both the volatility in
the financial parameters defined for the valuation process and signs of deterioration in credit quality.

The parameters and information used to check the above-mentioned values are therefore significantly affected by such factors, which could change
rapidly in ways that are currently unforeseeable, such that further effects on future carrying amounts cannot be ruled out.
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Estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed. Any changes resulting from these reviews are recognised in the period in which these reviews are
carried out, provided that the change only concerns that period. If the revision concerns both current and future periods, it is recognised accordingly
in both current and future periods.

Uncertainty affecting estimates is generally inherent in the measurement of:

e fair value of financial instruments not listed in active markets (A.7);

¢ |oans and receivables, investments and, in general, any other financial assets/liabilities;
¢ post-employment benefit obligations and other employee benefits (A.6.8);

e provisions for risks and charges (A.6.8, C.26), contingent liabilities and contingent assets;
e goodwill and other intangible assets (A.6.3, C.12) as well as

e deferred tax assets (C.13).

This is because the measurement of these items is mainly dependent on both the evolution of socio-economic conditions and the performance of the
financial markets, which affect interest rates, securities prices, actuarial assumptions and, more generally, the creditworthiness of borrowers and
counterparties.

Given the current public and political discussion on the possibility of amending an Austrian law, there is specific uncertainty about the determination
of the payments to be made to the state pension scheme under the Austrian General Social Insurance Act in connection with the plan curtailment for
active employees (see section A.6.8.1). It is currently not possible to reliably determine or estimate whether and to what extent this will ultimately
result in a change in such payments. Any effects resulting from potential future amendments to the law would have to be taken into consideration in
accordance with IAS 37.50 in the reporting period of such amendment.

A more detailed description of the relevant estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated financial statements of the Bank Austria Group as
well as quantitative sensitivity analyses are disclosed in detail in the relevant notes to the consolidated financial statements.

A.3 — Consolidation principles

This section outlines the consolidation criteria and principles used to prepare the consolidated accounts at 31 December 2015.

Consolidated Accounts
The financial information in the consolidated financial statements includes that of the parent company, UniCredit Bank Austria AG, together with its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015.

Amounts in foreign currencies are converted at closing exchange rates in the statement of financial position, whereas the average exchange rate for
the year is used for the income statement.

The accounts and the explanatory notes of the main consolidated subsidiaries prepared under IFRS are subject to audit by leading audit companies.
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities which the parent company controls in accordance with IFRS 10. An investor controls an entity when it is exposed, or has

rights, to variable returns from its involvement with a subsidiary and has the ability to influence those returns through its power over the subsidiary.

Equity interests held by third parties in a special purpose entity consolidated by the Bank in accor